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About

Tricon is an investment manager focused on the
residential real estate industry in North America
with approximately $5.7 billion (C$7.8 billion)* of
assets under management. We invest in a portfolio
of single-family rental homes, multi-family rental
apartments and for-sale housing assets, and we
manage third-party capital in connection with our
investments. Since its inception in 1988, Tricon has
made investments in residential real estate totaling
approximately $20 billion. More information about
Tricon is available at www.triconcapital.com.

*Assets Under Management includes balance sheet capital and capital
managed on behalf of third-party investors in the Company’s Private Funds
and Advisory business as at February 27, 2019.

This document contains forward-looking statements and information relating
to expected future events and the Company’s financial and operating
results and projections. This document also presents key performance
indicators used by the Company to measure its performance that are not
recognized under International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
Please refer to the enclosed Management’s Discussion and Analysis for
further information and disclaimers concerning these forward-looking
statements and non-IFRS measures.
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Focused on the
Fastest-Growing
Housing Markets

TRICON AMERICAN HOMES

A leading owner and operator of single-family
rental homes focused on the U.S. Sun Belt, with

17,500 rental homes under management. In 2018, ,
TAH announced a transformational $2 billion joint

venture with two leading institutional investors

to acquire 10,000-12,000 over the next 3—4 years.

TRICON LIFESTYLE RENTALS

v
9

%

Tricon’s multi-family development and rental
business focused on the Toronto market. In 2018,
TLR expanded its development pipeline to 3,000
units and commenced leasing at The Selby —

its first completed project.

TRICON HOUSING PARTNERS

A leading equity investor in for-sale housing
across North America. In 2018, THP’s integrated
development platform — Johnson Development —
was the only developer to manage six of the

top 50 master-planned communities in the U.S.

PROJECTED POPULATION GROWTH IN THE NEXT 10 YEARS

10%

Oy
0% to 20%
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2018
Highlights

Assets Under Management
$5.7 Billion

o 9%
10% CANADA

30%
THIRD-PARTY

70%
PRINCIPAL
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*On USD book value per share

A Track Record
of Growth

AUM Book Value Per Share Contractual
27% CAGR 13% CAGR* Fees
PRINCIPAL BOOK VALUE IN CDN $303 M
THIRD-PARTY B K VALUE IN D
- $578 W BOORVALEIN DS $266M  gr54m
$46B $10.88
$8.69 $8.62
$3.0B
- .
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
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TLR Units ~1,300 N/A ~1,300 ~3,200

il T N

Tricon Capital Group 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 15



Decar
Sharcholders



2018 was another year of significant achievement
for Tricon, as strong operational execution and a
favourable backdrop for rental housing propelled
the Company to record results. Adjusted EBITDA
of $364 million and Adjusted Diluted EPS of $1.45
were up 35% and 32% year-over-year, respectively,
driven by enhanced margins and home price
appreciation at our Tricon American Homes (“TAH”)
single-family rental business, development
progress at our Tricon Lifestyle Rentals (“TLR”)
multi-family projects, growth in contractual fees,
and the successful sale of our manufactured
housing business. These results translated into
21% growth in book value per share in 2018, a

key measure of our ability to deploy capital into
attractive residential investment opportunities.

Our housing-centric investment strategy, and

our shift to rental housing in particular, continue to
benefit from robust job growth and household
formation in our target markets on the one hand,
and supply constraints on the other, as higher
mortgage rates and inflated labour and material
costs continue to pressure affordability and curtail
new housing supply. While our smaller for-sale
housing business, Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”),
has suffered in this environment, our much larger
single-family rental business and growing multi-
family rental platform have been able to capitalize
on significantly higher rents and valuations.

In fact, in many ways, our business is uniquely
positioned to appeal to the millennial cohort
(those born between 1980 and 2000) who have
grown up in a sharing economy and who are
more likely to prioritize experiences, including
living a maintenance-free lifestyle (with more
disposable income), over the ownership

of property.

Against this positive backdrop for rental housing,
our team remained focused on growth in 2018.
One of the year's most exciting developments was
the formation of a landmark single-family rental
joint venture with two leading global institutional
investors, which should enable TAH to acquire
approximately 10,000 homes valued at roughly

$2 billion over a three-year investment period.

The joint venture is not only an important endorse-
ment of the single-family rental industry as an
institutional asset class but also positions Tricon
as a leader in the industry and provides us

with a clear path to scale. By the end of 2018,

the joint venture had purchased
approximately 2,000 homes at
a blended nominal cap rate of
just under 6% and is on target
to be roughly 50% committed
by the end of 2019.

6O

Tricon produced an
Adjusted EBITDA of
$364 million and
Adjusted Diluted EPS
of $1.45, up 35%

and 32% vear-over-
vear, respectively

b

Meanwhile, the operating
performance of TAH continues
to outshine the competition.

In Q4 2018, TAH recorded both
the lowest turnover rate (23.6%)
and the highest blended rent
growth (6.4%) among our largest
peers in the single-family rental industry, which
in turn drove sector-leading growth in same home
operating margin of 8.6%. We are also proud to
report that TAH has achieved the highest Google
and Glassdoor ratings for customer and employee
satisfaction in the industry among our peers,
while navigating an expansion of the team from
220 people in 2015 to almost 500 today.

Tricon Capital Group 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 17
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When Kevin Baldridge, President of Tricon American
Homes, took over the day-to-day management of
our single-family rental platform in 2015 he set out
to create a business that would be defined by its
customer service. With organizational mantras
such as “go above and beyond” and “carry your
own water and a little of someone else’s”, Kevin
has instilled a customer service culture where we
try to get to “yes” and afford the resident the
benefit of the doubt. When we provide our residents
with great customer service, we are able to increase
retention, command higher rents, drive referrals
and provide a rewarding work
experience for our employees,
which in turn leads to higher
productivity and lower employee
turnover. In other words, adopting
a customer service culture is not
only the right thing to do, but also
makes good business sense. And
the results speak for themselves.

2018 was also a year of meaningful
progress for our burgeoning
Canadian build-to-core multi-family
development business. We acquired
sites with entitlements for nearly
2,000 multi-family units and currently have
approximately 3,000 units under active develop-
ment — all in marquee, transit-oriented locations

in central Toronto. The recently announced

West Don Lands, Gloucester and Labatt projects

in Toronto demonstrate our ability to invest in
well-located and attractively priced land in a very
competitive property market by working with
government agencies and other landowners

who favour rental housing over condominiums.
These partnerships also enable us to scale

our business faster, manage third-party capital,

and potentially obtain government-backed
financing to enhance the return profile of

the business.

18 2018 ANNUAL REPORT Tricon Capital Group

In December 2018, we opened our first building,
The Selby (at Bloor and Sherbourne streets in
Toronto) to the public and simultaneously launched
our related consumer-facing brand “Tricon House”,
which aims to provide residents with a new
standard in rental living and customer service in

a market that is used to more of a bare bones
approach to property management. Although
leasing of The Selby had just begun as the year
came to a close, we anticipate achieving rents per
square foot that are approximately 30% higher
than those we expected at the time of underwriting,
while at the same time delivering the building on
budget. This, combined with the Ontario provincial
government’s decision to exempt new buildings from
rent control, should result in returns meaningfully
higher than what was underwritten and bodes well
for our other projects.

Tricon, at its heart, is a growth company. We have
grown our AUM and book value per share by
30% and 23% per annum since entering the single-
family rental business in 2012. With $5.7 billion
(C$7.8 billion) of assets currently under manage-
ment, we have a clear path (with capital in tow) to
reach $8 billion by simply finishing what we have
started — investing the remainder of our commit-
ment to our single-family rental joint venture and
completing the 3,000 multi-family units that are
in various stages of development in Toronto.
And so it is not difficult to see how we can reach
our goal of $10 billion of AUM within five years.

As we go forward, our growth will be governed
by two key tenets that we expect will make our
Company easier for investors to understand and to
value. The first is a return to our asset management
roots which we have dubbed “Tricon 3.0”, and
which was launched in earnest with the TAH joint
venture. As you may recall, Tricon went public in
2010 as a pure-play asset manager focused on
for-sale housing (Tricon 1.0); then, with the support
of our shareholders, built out its balance sheet to
establish and prove out other housing verticals



(Tricon 2.0); and is now well-positioned to increasingly
attract third-party capital to our various housing
verticals (Tricon 3.0). Our focus on housing has
never wavered — we have simply altered the way
we capitalize our investments. Tricon 3.0 is a
powerful business model as it allows us to scale up
faster with third-party capital, generate recurring
contractual fee streams, and improve our return on
equity. Also, with one foot firmly planted in the
public markets and another in the private markets,
we are better positioned to raise capital to grow
our business as we can pivot between these two
markets depending on which window is open.

The second tenet of our growth is a shift towards
more recurring rental income streams. Approximately
68% of our AUM comes from business verticals that
generate recurring rental income, up from 41%
three years ago. Conversely, development activity
as a percentage of AUM now stands at 32%, down
from 59% in 2015, and we have a longer-term
target of reducing it to 5-10% by de-emphasizing
our balance sheet investment in the THP for-sale
housing business, harvesting existing THP
investments, and growing our investment in rental
housing at a faster rate. To be clear, development
will remain a core competency of Tricon, but we
intend to capitalize on future opportunities by using
a relatively higher proportion of third-party capital
so that we are more efficient with our own balance
sheet, while at the same time minimizing episodic
cash flows which are harder for the market to value.

As Tricon grows and becomes a bigger company,

it is imperative that we continue to maintain a “small
company” mindset so that we remain entrepreneurial
and opportunistic at our core. Our senior management
team understands implicitly what has made us
successful and is determined to retain our small
company, family-oriented culture even as we grow
our team and assets under management. What
does acting like a small company mean? At Tricon,
this entails making decisions quicker, prioritizing
face-to-face communication over internal emails,
minimizing committees and being frugal (without

being penny wise yet pound foolish). The recent
move into our new head office at 7 St. Thomas
Street in Toronto has been transformational as it
has brought our local team even closer together,
enhancing communication and promoting greater
exchange of ideas in an environment focused on
wellness. The office operates with only two rules:

1) nobody is permitted to eat at their desk and

2) no phones are allowed in meetings of less than
90 minutes. These “restrictions” require our team
to share meals or take breaks in our common area
known as “the hive” and to
increase mindfulness when
meeting with one another. The
results speak for themselves —
our team is more productive,
happier and engaged, and better
positioned than ever to drive
innovation and make money for
our shareholders and investors.

6O

As Tricon grows and
becomes a bigger
company, it is imperative
that we continue to
maintain a “small
company” mindsect

b

Being a bigger company also
means being a good corporate
citizen. Recognizing that investors
have many choices as to where
to allocate their capital, we made a meaningful
effort over the course of the year to improve our
governance. Tricon is committed to increasing
diversity within our organization and has recently
added key female hires to both our executive ranks
and within the investment team. Moreover, we
adopted a Board policy requiring that at least

one third of independent directors be female and
are pleased to report that with the appointment
of Camille Douglas to our Board in 2018, we

now exceed that target. In an effort to improve
transparency about our compensation practices,
we also overhauled our executive compensation
plan so that individual compensation targets are
determined by a market-based benchmarking
study and executive compensation is more heavily
performance-based, with longer-term vesting
periods, and with reduced reliance on dilutive stock
options and deferred share units.

Tricon Capital Group 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 19
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I am incredibly proud

of what the Company has
achieved and the hard
work, commitment and
passion shown by our
670 emplovees.

9

20 2018 ANNUAL REPORT Tricon Capital Group

At Tricon, we come to work every day with

a sense of purpose, knowing that we are
investing in communities and helping to make
lives better by providing essential shelter to
families across North America. It is a responsibility
that we take extremely seriously because we
know that if we do it well, it not only brightens
our residents’ prospects but also drives better
returns for our investors. With another record-
breaking year behind us, | am incredibly proud
of what the Company has achieved and the
hard work, commitment and passion shown by
our 670 employees. In conclusion, | would like

to thank our Board of Directors, shareholders
and private investors for their continued support
and belief in our management team. As always,
it is both my commitment and management’s
commitment to reward your faith in us with continued
strong performance in the years to come.

Gary Berman
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTOR
Toronto, March 13, 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
for the year ended December 31, 2018

NON-IFRS MEASURES AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Company has included herein certain supplemental measures of key performance, including, but not limited to, adjusted EBITDA,
adjusted net income and adjusted earnings per share (“‘EPS”), as well as certain key indicators of the performance of our investees. We utilize
these measures in managing our business, including performance measurement and capital allocation. In addition, certain of these measures
are used in measuring compliance with our debt covenants. We believe that providing these performance measures on a supplemental basis
is helpful to investors in assessing the overall performance of the Company’s business. However, these measures are not recognized under
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Because non-IFRS measures do not have standardized meanings prescribed under IFRS,
securities regulations require that such measures be clearly defined, identified, and reconciled to their nearest IFRS measure. The definition,
calculation and reconciliation of the non-IFRS measures used in this MD&A are provided in Sections 6 and 7 and the key performance
indicators presented are discussed in detail in Section 8.

The supplemental measures presented herein should not be construed as alternatives to net income (loss) or cash flow from the Company’s
activities, determined in accordance with IFRS, as indicators of Tricon’s financial performance. Tricon’s method of calculating these measures
may differ from other issuers’ methods and, accordingly, these measures may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other
publicly-traded entities.

Certain statements in this MD&A may be considered “forward-looking information” as defined under applicable securities laws (“forward-
looking statements”). Statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this document may be forward-looking statements.

» o« “ » o« » o« » ow; » o« » o«

Wherever possible, words such as “may”, “would’, “could’, “will’, “anticipate”, “believe’, “plan’, “expect’, “intend’, “estimate’, “aim”, “endeavour’,
“project’, “continue” and similar expressions have been used to identify these forward-looking statements. These statements reflect
management’s expectations, intentions and beliefs concerning anticipated future events, results, circumstances, economic performance

or expectations with respect to Tricon and its investments and are based on information currently available to management and on

assumptions that management believes to be reasonable.

This MD&A includes forward-looking statements pertaining to: anticipated investment performance including, in particular, project timelines
and sales/rental expectations, projected development costs, projected Internal Rate of Return (“IRR”), Returns on Investment (“ROI”), expected
performance fees, future cash flows and development yields; anticipated demand for homebuilding, lots, single-family rental homes and
purpose-built rental apartments; the pace of acquisition and the ongoing availability of single-family rental homes at prices that match Tricon
American Home’s underwriting model; the anticipated growth of the TAH joint venture (“TAH JV-17) portfolio; the intentions to build portfolios
and attract investment in TAH and Tricon Lifestyle Rentals (“TLR”) and the Company’s investment horizon and exit strategy for each investment
vertical, including the anticipated divestiture of TLR U.S. The assumptions underlying these forward-looking statements and a list of factors
that may cause actual investment performance to differ from current projections are discussed in the Company’s most recent Annual
Information Form (the “AIF”) which is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and in Section 9.7 of this MD&A.

Forward-looking statements involve significant known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks
or uncertainties materialize, or should assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements prove incorrect, actual results, performance or
achievements could vary materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A. See the AIF
and Section 9.7 for a more complete list of risks relating to an investment in the Company and an indication of the impact the materialization
of such risks could have on the Company, and therefore cause actual results to deviate from the forward-looking statements.

Although the forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are based upon what management currently believes to be reasonable
assumptions, there can be no assurance that actual results, performance or achievements will be consistent with these forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements contained in this document are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.

When relying on our forward-looking statements to make decisions with respect to the Company, investors and others should carefully
consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The forward-looking statements in this MD&A are made as of the
date of this document and the Company does not intend to, or assume any obligation to, update or revise these forward-looking statements
or information to reflect new information, events, results or circumstances or otherwise after the date on which such statements are made

to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law, including securities laws.

Tricon Capital Group 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 23



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
for the year ended December 31, 2018

1. INTRODUCTION

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (‘“MD&A”) is dated as of February 25, 2019, the date it was approved by the Board of Directors
of Tricon Capital Group Inc. (“Tricon,” “us,” “we” or the “Company”), and reflects all material events up to that date. It should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and related notes for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Additional information about the Company, including our Annual Information Form, is available on our website at www.triconcapital.com,
and on the Canadian Securities Administrators’ website at www.sedar.com.

The Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 were prepared using International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) accounting policies consistent with the Company’s audited annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2017, with the exception of the adoption of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 as disclosed in Note 2 of the consolidated
financial statements.

All dollar amounts in this MD&A are expressed in U.S. dollars unless otherwise indicated.

11 Who we are and what we do

Tricon Capital Group (TSX: TCN) is an investment manager focused on the residential real estate industry in North America with approximately
$5.7 billion (C$7.8 billion) of assets under management as of December 31, 2018. Tricon invests in a portfolio of single-family rental homes,
purpose-built rental apartments and for-sale housing assets, and manages third-party capital in connection with its investments. Since its
inception in 1988, Tricon has invested in real estate and development projects valued at approximately $20 billion.

$5.7 BILLION

Assets Under Management (AUM)

BY GEOGRAPHY BY INVESTOR BY VERTICAL

PRINCIPAL
70%

THIRD-PARTY
30%

\

CANADA 9%

TAH: Single-family rental homes
TLR: Purpose-built rental apartments
THP: For-sale housing
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
for the year ended December 31, 2018

1. Principal Investments
As a principal investor, the Company currently invests in three related and complementary residential investment verticals, with the
objective of generating investment income and capital appreciation, as follows:

(i) Tricon American Homes (“TAH”) — Investment in single-family rental properties, where homes are renovated to a common standard
and then leased to predominantly working class families.

(i) Tricon Lifestyle Rentals (“TLR”) — Investment to develop and manage a portfolio of Class A purpose-built rental apartments.

(iii) Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”) — Investment in for-sale housing through land development, homebuilding, multi-family construction
and ancillary commercial development.

Until the second quarter of 2018, the Company had also invested in Tricon Lifestyle Communities (“TLC”) — Investment in manufactured
housing communities, where land parcels were leased to owners of prefabricated homes. Investments in TLC were disposed of on
June 29, 2018. See the discussion in Section 3.1.

A detailed description of our investment verticals is included in our Annual Information Form, available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com,
and more information about the revenue recognized from our investments is included in Section 9.1.

2. Private Funds and Advisory

Tricon manages third-party capital across its TAH, TLR and THP investments through private commingled funds, separate accounts, syndicated
investments and joint ventures (“Investment Vehicles”). Tricon manages capital on behalf of Canadian, American and international institutional
investors, including pension funds, sovereign wealth funds, insurance companies, endowments and foundations, as well as family offices and
high net-worth accredited investors. The Company’s business objective in its Private Funds and Advisory business is to earn income through:

(i) Asset management of third-party capital invested through private Investment Vehicles. The Company’s asset management business
includes investments in each of its three investment verticals.

As general partner, sponsor and/or manager of private Investment Vehicles, Tricon typically receives annual contractual fees of 1-2% per
annum based on committed or invested capital during the life of these Investment Vehicles. After the return of capital and a contractual
preferred return percentage, Tricon may receive additional performance fees based on terms outlined in the various Investment Vehicles’
definitive agreements. Commingled funds typically have a life of eight years (before extension provisions) and separate accounts typically
have maturity dates timed to coincide with the underlying investment.

(ii

Development management and related advisory services for master-planned communities through Tricon’s 50.1% investment in
The Johnson Companies LP (“Johnson”) and development management fee revenue generated by TLR Canada projects, which are
operated under the Tricon House consumer-facing brand in Canada.

The following is a list of the active Investment Vehicles managed by the Company:

* Tricon Housing Partners US LP (“THP1 US”)
» Tricon Housing Partners US Il LP (“THP2 US”)
» Tricon Housing Partners Canada LP (“THP1 Canada”)
» Tricon Housing Partners Canada Il LP (“THP2 Canada”)
» Tricon Housing Partners Canada Ill LP (“THP3 Canada”)
* Separate accounts include:
* THP — Cross Creek Ranch, Fulshear Farms, Grand Central Park, Trilogy at Verde River, Viridian, Tricon Housing Partners US
Syndicated Pool | LP (“THP US SP1”) and Tricon Housing Partners US Syndicated Pool Il LP (“THP US SP2”)
* TLR Canada — The Selby, The Taylor (formerly 57 Spadina), The James (formerly Scrivener Square), Shops of Summerhill,
West Don Lands and 8 Gloucester
* TAH — Tricon American Homes Joint Venture-1 (“TAH JV-17)
* U.S. side-cars include THP investments Trilogy at Vistancia West, Trilogy Lake Norman and Arantine Hills
+ Canadian syndicated THP investments include 5 St. Joseph, Heritage Valley and Mahogany

A more detailed description of the sources of fee income from Private Funds and Advisory activities is included in Section 91 and in our
Annual Information Form, available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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1.2 How we invest and create value
A description of each of the principal investments in which we invest is discussed below.

Tricon American Homes

Our single-family rental home investment vertical, Tricon American Homes, has an integrated platform responsible for the acquisition,
renovation, leasing, ongoing maintenance and property management of single-family rental homes within major U.S. cities, predominantly in
the U.S. Sun Belt. TAH is headquartered in Orange County, California and is operationally distinct from the investment management activities
of the Company. TAH employs its own senior management team and approximately 460 employees that oversee all aspects of TAH’s
day-to-day business activities.

TAH’s investment objective is to generate a recurring cash flow stream from its portfolio of single-family rental homes and capture home price
appreciation within attractive U.S. housing markets. TAH adheres to specific investment criteria for each of its target markets and has local
on-the-ground staff who are responsible for underwriting, acquiring and overseeing the renovation of single-family rental homes. Homes are
acquired through multiple channels, including the Multiple Listing Service, trustee sales and foreclosures, and selective portfolio acquisitions.

TAH is focused on providing high-quality rental homes to the broad middle market demographic, which management defines as working class
households earning between $50,000 and $95,000 per year, with stable jobs and who may face difficulties in buying a home for a variety of
reasons. TAH offers these middle market families a compelling value proposition of living in a high-quality, renovated home at a fixed monthly
price without other costly overhead expenses such as maintenance and property taxes and with a high level of customer service. Targeting
qualified middle market families who are likely to be long-term renters generally results in lower turnover rates, thereby reducing turn costs
and providing stable cash flow for TAH.

On June 27, 2018, the Company entered into a joint venture arrangement (“TAH JV-1”) with two leading institutional investors to assemble a
portfolio of single-family rental homes which will be acquired and managed by TAH. The joint venture is funded by a total equity commitment
of $750 million and is projected to acquire 10,000-12,000 homes over its three-year investment period. See Section 4.1 for further details.

Tricon Lifestyle Rentals
Tricon Lifestyle Rentals, our multi-family investment vertical, is focused on developing and managing a portfolio of Class A purpose-built rental
apartments in Canada and the United States.

In Canada, TLR’s investment objective is to add value through the development and construction process and ultimately generate stable

cash flow from its portfolio of rental apartment buildings. Tricon intends to leverage its expertise in multi-family development in assembling

a high-yielding, institutional-quality portfolio of Class A rental apartments over time. TLR acts as the sponsor or general partner of each project
and typically provides 15-50% of the project equity and intends to maintain this ownership stake in the projects. The remaining equity is
provided by institutional investors or other strategic investment partners that pay Tricon development management fees, asset management
fees and possibly performance fees, enabling the Company to enhance its return on investment.

In its existing U.S. investments (both in the Dallas-Fort Worth MSA), TLR has partnered with a local developer which acts as a general partner
and developer for TLR’s current U.S. portfolio. TLR is participating as a limited partner in each investment and has provided 90% of the project
equity, with the balance being invested by the developer.

Tricon has announced that it will be pursuing an orderly exit from TLR’s U.S. development business by divesting its two current projects
following their completion. Management has made this decision because the U.S. multi-family development industry is currently experiencing
a number of headwinds, including cost inflation as well as tighter financing conditions. Going forward, Tricon aims to increase its exposure

to investments with predictable rental income and cash flows which may include U.S. multi-family rental opportunities in the future.
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Tricon Housing Partners

The Company’s THP vertical co-invests in commingled funds, separate accounts, and other private Investment Vehicles which make
investments in the following five core categories: (1) master-planned communities (“MPCs”); (2) land development; (3) homebuilding; (4) infill
condominiums and attached housing; and (5) active-adult communities. Occasionally, the Company will make such investments directly, with a
view to possibly syndicating a portion of the investment to one or more institutional investors to increase diversification for the Company and/
or to bolster investment returns with additional Private Funds and Advisory fees, a strategy which Tricon has successfully employed through
certain of its co-investments and syndicated investments. THP’s investments involve providing financing to developers of the projects, either
by way of equity investment or participating loans. The majority of THP’s investments are situated in the U.S. Sun Belt and adjacent states
where THP currently sees the best opportunities to maximize risk-adjusted returns.

The core investment types described above are structured as self-liquidating transactions generally with cash flows generated as land, lots

or homes are sold to third-party buyers (typically large homebuilders in the case of land and master-planned communities and end consumers
in all other cases). In select cases, a property may also be sold in bulk to a third-party buyer in situations where THP determines that it can
achieve sufficient returns from the sale without participating in the full build-out of the property. With the exception of larger land investments
and master-planned communities, the majority of core investments made by THP are typically expected to be substantially completed within
a three- to six-year time horizon, providing THP with an opportunity to reinvest realized proceeds on an ongoing basis.

Through its investment in Houston-based Johnson, Tricon has the ability to leverage an integrated development platform with expertise

in land entitlement, infrastructure, municipal bond finance and place making, and deep relationships with public and regional homebuilders
and commercial developers. Johnson is an active development manager of master-planned communities in the United States and the only
development manager in the United States to have six MPCs ranked in the top 50 in 2018 (source: Robert Charles Lesser & Co. Real Estate
Advisors). Tricon uses Johnson’s platform to (i) invest in cash flowing MPCs that generate proceeds from lot sales, commercial land sales and
the issuance of municipal bonds, and to (ii) earn development management fee income and sales commissions from the development and
sale of residential lots and commercial land within the master-planned communities that Johnson manages (regardless of whether they are
owned by Tricon or managed on behalf of third-party investors), thereby enhancing its investment returns.

Tricon Lifestyle Communities — disposed of in the second quarter of 2018

Tricon Lifestyle Communities was focused on enhancing and managing existing three- to four-star manufactured housing communities in

the United States through its investment in a joint venture with its third-party operating partner, Cobblestone Real Estate LLC (“Cobblestone”),
a vertically integrated asset and property manager.

On June 29, 2018, TLC completed the sale of its 14 manufactured housing communities to an institutional asset manager for gross proceeds
of $172.5 million. The net proceeds to Tricon were $85.2 million (refer to Section 3.2), which represents a realized return on investment (ROI)
of 17x and a realized internal rate of return (IRR) of 25% on peak equity of $49.3 million over a four-year investment period. Management
believes that the transaction’s success exemplifies Tricon’s ability to create shareholder value by identifying housing verticals with strong
fundamental trends, delivering on value-added business plans, and opportunistically timing the entry and exit of an investment.

It is management’s intention to remain focused on its housing-centric investment strategy and invest only in sectors where Tricon can achieve
sufficient scale and industry leadership. Tricon believes that its TAH and THP businesses are well-positioned to capitalize on the large millennial
cohort (those born between 1980 and 2000) who are in the early stages of forming families, having children and ultimately moving to the
suburbs where they can find relatively affordable single-family housing and good schools. The more affluent are likely to continue to buy
homes, benefiting Tricon’s for-sale housing investments, whereas the workforce may be more likely to rent single-family homes from institu-
tional landlords such as TAH. In Canada, the Company believes that major housing affordability issues in cities like Toronto will ultimately
require more purpose-built rental supply, which TLR intends to capitalize on.
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2. HIGHLIGHTS
Financial highlights

Selected financial information in thousands of U.S. dollars (except per share amounts which are in U.S. dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

Three months

Twelve months

For the periods ended December 31 2018 2017 2018 2017
Total revenue and investment income from

continuing operations $ 60,320 $ 60,226 $ 276,134 $ 169,066
Total investment income from discontinued operations - 1,187 21,170 7,381
Net income 43,297 25,724 216,355 69,348
Basic earnings per share from:
Continuing operations 0.30 0.18 1.40 0.49
Discontinued operations - 0.01 0.17 0.05
Basic earnings per share 0.30 0.19 1.57 0.54
Diluted earnings per share from:
Continuing operations 0.23 0.18 1.14 0.49
Discontinued operations - 0.01 0.14 0.05
Diluted earnings per share 0.23 0.19 1.28 0.54
Dividends per share c$ 007 C$ 0.065 Cc$ 028 C$ 0.26
Non-IFRS measures'
Adjusted EBITDA $ 79,671 $ 96,956 $ 363,996 $ 269,709
Adjusted net income 46,116 59,486 224,675 153,626
Adjusted basic EPS attributable to shareholders of Tricon 0.32 0.44 1.64 1.21
Adjusted diluted EPS attributable to shareholders of Tricon 0.30 0.39 1.45 1.10
As at December 31 2018 2017
Total assets $ 1,687,662 $ 1,430,723
Total liabilities 495,064 502,428
Investments (including investments held for sale) 1,582,623 1,342,051
Debt 374,716 383,604
Assets under management (‘“AUM”)? $ 5,703,910 $ 4,622,309

(1) Non-IFRS measures including Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted net income, Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are presented to illustrate a normalized picture
of the Company’s performance. Refer to Section 6, Non-IFRS measures and Section 7, Reconciliation of non-IFRS financial measures.

(2) See Section 8.2 for a description of AUM.
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Investment highlights by vertical

The following table includes IFRS-measured investment income as well as non-IFRS measures, including key performance metrics for
each investment vertical. Such metrics are further described in detail in Section 4 where we discuss the operational results in each vertical.

The investment values shown below represent Tricon’s equity investment in each vertical.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except for percentages and units) 2018 2017 2018 2017
TRICON AMERICAN HOMES (Refer to Sections 3.1, 3.2 and 4.1)
Investments — TAH $ 1,145,221 $ 884,115
Investment income — TAH $ 38,159 $ 45,709 218,932 113,067
Net operating income (NOI)' 41,425 35,523 150,762 116,334
Net operating income (NOI) margin' 64.5% 64.4% 62.6% 62.3%
Core funds from operations 17,007 12,753 53,991 35,758
Total homes owned 17,442 15,218
Occupancy 92.4% 95.8%
Stabilized occupancy 96.2% 96.7%
Total number of homes in same home portfolio 6,621 6,621
Same home net operating income (NOI)' 16,362 15,070 62,723 58,617
Same home net operating income (NOI) growth' 8.6% N/A 7.0% N/A
Same home net operating income (NOI) margin’ 62.6% 61.1% 61.2% 59.8%
TRICON LIFESTYLE RENTALS (Refer to Sections 3.1, 3.2 and 4.2)
Investments — TLR $ 129,838 $ 89,225
Investment income — TLR $ 10,653 $ 5,950 15,406 12,391
Units under development ~3,200 1,296
TRICON HOUSING PARTNERS (Refer to Sections 3.1, 3.2 and 4.3)
Investments — THP $ 307,564 $ 306,637
Investment income — THP $ 1,943 $ 1,236 11,449 18,209
TRICON LIFESTYLE COMMUNITIES (Refer to Section 3.1)
Investments held for sale — TLC $ - $ 62,074
Investment income from discontinued operations and

gain from disposal of investments held for sale — TLC $ - $ 1,187 21,170 7,381
PRIVATE FUNDS AND ADVISORY (Refer to Sections 3.1 and 4.4)
Third-party assets under management $ 1,721,949 $ 1,238,784
Contractual fees and GP distributions $ 8,108 $ 7,277 27,572 24,874
Performance fees 1,457 54 25475 525

(1) These metrics exclude the impact of non-recurring expenses or insurance recoveries from hurricane-related damages.

The presentation of TAH operating metrics above reflects the performance of the entire portfolio under management, including the TAH JV-1 portfolio, which is managed

by a TAH subsidiary.

All metrics above are non-IFRS measures, except for investments, investment income, contractual fees, GP distributions and performance fees, and have been presented
to illustrate the underlying performance of the Company’s investments in each segment, which management believes is useful in understanding the value of these

investments. Refer to Sections 7 and 8 for definitions and reconciliations to IFRS measures.
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3. FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following section should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and related notes for the
year ended December 31, 2018.

3.1 Review of income statements

Consolidated statements of income
For the periods ended December 31

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except Three months Twelve montfs
per share amounts which are in U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Revenue
Contractual fees $ 7873 $ 6915 $ 958 $ 26,256 $ 23,486 $ 2770
General partner distributions 235 362 (127) 1,316 1,388 (72)
Performance fees 1,457 54 1,403 2,775 525 2,250
9,565 7,331 2,234 30,347 25,399 4,948
Investment income
Investment income — Tricon American Homes 38,159 45,709 (7,550) 218,932 113,067 105,865
Investment income — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 10,653 5,950 4,703 15,406 12,391 3,015
Investment income — Tricon Housing Partners 1,943 1,236 707 11,449 18,209 (6,760)
50,755 52,895 (2,140) 245,787 143,667 102,120
Total revenue and investment income $ 60,320 $ 60,226 $ 94 $ 276,134 $ 169,066 $ 107,068
Expenses
Compensation expense 8,621 4,752 (3,869) 36,875 29,100 (7,775)
General and administration expense 2,658 2,086 (572) 9,800 7,274 (2,526)
Interest expense 6,892 7,207 315 31,686 23,721 (7,965)
Other (income) expenses (7,084) 15,544 22,628 (16,701) 31,818 48,519
Realized and unrealized foreign exchange expense (gain) 438 945 507 (1,511) 1,881 3,392
11,525 30,534 19,009 60,149 93,794 33,645
Income before income taxes 48,795 29,692 19,103 215,985 75,272 140,713
Income tax recovery (expense) — current 1,231 (586) 1,817 (639) (4,889) 4,250
Income tax expense — deferred (6,729) (4,447) (2,282) (22,118) (7,440) (14,678)
Net income from continuing operations $ 43,297 $ 24,659 $ 18,638 $ 193,228 $ 62,943 $ 130,285
Net income from discontinued operations - 1,065 (1,065) 23,127 6,405 16,722
Netincome $ 43,297 $ 25,724 $ 17,573 $ 216,355 $ 69,348 $ 147,007
Attributable to:
Shareholders of Tricon $ 43,098 $ 25385 $ 17,713 $ 215,951 $ 69,252 $ 146,699
Non-controlling interest 199 339 (140) 404 96 308
Net income $ 43,297 $ 25,724 $ 17,573 $ 216,355 $ 69,348 $ 147,007
Basic EPS attributable to shareholders of Tricon
Continuing operations $ 030 $ 018 $ 012 $ 1.40 $ 0.49 $ 0.91
Discontinued operations - 0.01 0.01) 0.17 0.05 0.12
Basic EPS attributable to shareholders of Tricon $ 030 $ 0.19 $ o0mn $ 157 $ 054 $ 103
Diluted EPS attributable to shareholders of Tricon
Continuing operations $ 023 $ 018 $ 005 $ 1.14 $ 0.49 $ 0.65
Discontinued operations - 0.01 (0.01) 0.14 0.05 0.09
Diluted EPS attributable to shareholders of Tricon $ 023 $ 0.19 $ 0.04 $ 1.28 $ 054 $ 074
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 143,911,890 134,369,333 9,542,557 137,157,260 127,152,721 10,004,539
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted’ 162,455,879 136,567,369 25,888,510 162,112,882 129,302,655 32,810,227

(1) For the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018, both of the Company’s convertible debentures were dilutive, as debentures interest expense and loss
on debt extinguishment, net of tax, and the net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments would result in decreased earnings per share upon conversion.
Therefore, in computing the diluted weighted average shares outstanding and the associated earnings per share amount for the three and twelve months ended
December 31, 2018, the impact of the 2020 and 2022 convertible debentures was included (2017 — excluded).
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Contractual fees
The following table provides further details regarding contractual fees for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Management fees —

private Investment Vehicles $ 4,050 $ 2,987 $ 1,063 $ 13,754 $ 11,621 $ 2,133
Development fees —

TLR Canada projects 1,290 404 886 2,892 1,586 1,306
Development fees — Johnson 2,533 3,524 (991) 9,610 10,279 (669)
Contractual fees $ 7,873 $ 6,915 $ 958 $ 26,256 $ 23,486 $ 2,770

Contractual fees for the three months ended December 31, 2018 totaled $7.9 million, an increase of $1.0 million from the same period
in the prior year. The variance is attributable to:

+ Anincrease of $1.0 million in management fees earned from TAH JV-1, which was launched during the second quarter of 2018.

+ Anincrease of $0.9 million in development fees from West Don Lands, a TLR Canada project, which started generating management
fees as the development commenced in the fourth quarter of 2018.

+ An offsetting decrease of $1.0 million in Johnson development fees which was driven by a reduction in lot sales and commercial
acreage sales across the Johnson portfolio. While fees from Johnson were generally in line with recent quarters, the year-over-year
negative variance was driven by a particularly strong comparable quarter in which homebuilders needed to replenish a relatively large
amount of lot inventory.

Contractual fees for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 totaled $26.3 million, an increase of $2.8 million from the prior year.
The increase is largely attributable to the factors listed above as well as additional development fees in relation to the advancement
of The Taylor (formerly 57 Spadina), a TLR Canada multi-family rental development project.
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Investment income — Tricon American Homes

The following table provides details regarding the components of investment income from TAH for the three and twelve months ended
December 31, 2018. The table below represents 100% of the operating portfolio managed by TAH and adjusts for third-party investor
interests to reconcile to the investment income that is attributable to the Company.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Total revenue $ 64,269 $ 55,118 $ 9,151 $ 241,020 $ 186,881 $ 54,139
Total operating expenses (22,844) (20,393) (2,451) (89,824) (72,337) (17,487)
Net operating income (NOI)*?2 $ 41,425 $ 34,725 $ 6,700 $ 151,196 $ 114,544 $ 36,652
Fair value gain®* 24,790 51,307 (26,517) 180,496 143,993 36,503
Other expenses?® (8,666) (20,748) 12,082 (38,626) (83,188) 44,562
Interest expense? (20,138) (19,575) (563) (77,300) (62,282) (15,018)
Third-party investor interests? 748 - 748 3,166 - 3,166
Investment income — TAH $ 38,159 $ 45,709 $ (7,550) $ 218,932 $ 113,067 $ 105,865

]
@)

6

KPI measure; see Section 8.1.

TAH’s NOI, fair value gain, other expenses and interest expense represent the results of the entire operating portfolio managed by TAH, and the portion not
attributable to the Company’s ownership is adjusted for as third-party investor interests below NOI. TAH’s investment income reflects only the Company’s
ownership share in TAH JV-1 (see Section 4.1).

Includes non-recurring storm-related recoveries of nil and $434 for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018, respectively (2017 — storm-related
expenses of $798 and $1,790). Excluding the impact of storm-related items, NOI would have been $41,425 (2017 — $35,523) and $150,762 (2017 — $116,334),
respectively. See Section 4.1.

Fair value gain is net of projected future disposition fees.

Other expenses are comprised of:

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Corporate overhead $ (4309 $  (2,557) $ (1,752 $  (20,144) $  (18,302) $ (1,842)
Transaction costs and non-recurring items® (815) (16,209) 15,394 (8,897) (59,501) 50,604
Depreciation and non-cash items® (2,536) (2,032) (504) (4,877) (3,895) (982)
Deferred tax recovery (expense) 387 50 337 389 (1,490) 1,879
TAH JV-1 partner-level expenses’ (1,393) - (1,393) (5,097) - (5,097)
Other expenses $ (8,666) $ (20,748) $ 12,082 $ (38,626) $ (83,188) $ 44,562

Comparative periods have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation. No changes to the other expenses total were made as a result

of this reclassification.

These expenses represent 100% of TAH JV-1 costs that are not incurred at the operational level and include organization set-up costs, professional fees and interest
expense on partner-level debt. The portion of these expenses not attributable to the Company’s ownership is adjusted for as Third-party investor interests in the
first table above.

TAH’s investment income was $38.2 million for the three months ended December 31, 2018, a decrease of $7.6 million compared to the same
period in 2017. The variance in investment income is attributable to:

An increase of $6.7 million in net operating income (“NOI”, a key performance indicator (“KPI”); refer to Section 8.1 for a description; see also
footnote 2 in the table above) as a result of higher rent growth and expense containment achieved across the portfolio (see Section 4.1).

A decrease of $12.1 million in other expenses primarily as a result of a significant decrease in transaction costs and non-recurring items.
$16.2 million of transaction costs related to the TAH 2017-2 securitization transaction were incurred in the fourth quarter of 2017 while
no major financing activities occurred in the fourth quarter of 2018.

A decrease of $26.5 million in fair value gains as determined by using Broker Price Opinions (“BPOs”) and the Home Price Index (“HPI”)
methodology on the remaining homes not subject to BPOs (see Section 9.1), net of capital expenditures. The HPI increase this quarter
of 1.4% (5.6% annualized) was on par with the HPI increase in the fourth quarter of 2017. BPOs were obtained on 238 homes this quarter
compared to 2,518 homes for the same period in 2017.

TAH’s investment income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 was $218.9 million compared to $113.1 million for the same period
in 2017. The $105.9 million increase is attributable to:

An increase of $36.7 million in NOI as a result of additional NOI contribution from Silver Bay Realty Trust Corp. (“Silver Bay”) homes for the
full year as opposed to eight months following their acquisition on May 9, 2017, as well as strong rent growth and expense containment
achieved across the portfolio.
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An increase of $36.5 million in fair value gain as a result of home price appreciation on a larger portfolio including Silver Bay homes,
which were acquired in the second quarter of 2017.

A decrease of $44.6 million in other expenses primarily as a result of non-recurring transaction costs in 2018 of $8.9 million largely related
to the Silver Bay integration, compared to $59.5 million of transaction costs in 2017 incurred for the Silver Bay acquisition and integration,
as well as the TAH 2017-1 and TAH 2017-2 securitizations.

An increase of $15.0 million in interest expense as a result of a higher outstanding debt balance throughout the year associated with
the growing portfolio.

Investment income — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals
The following table provides details regarding investment income from TLR for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Operating (loss) income

during development $  (554) $ 249 $ (803) $ (312 $ 1,131 $ (1,443)
Fair value gain 12,121 8,660 3,461 20,377 12,673 7,704
Other gain (expenses)' 128 (2,927) 3,055 (3,286) (1,285) (2,001)
Interest expense (1,042) (32) (1,010) (1,373) (128) (1,245)
Investment income — TLR $ 10,653 $ 5,950 $ 4,703 $ 15,406 $ 12,391 $ 3,015

U]

Other gain (expenses) are comprised of:

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Translation adjustment $  (2,941) $  (157) $ (2,784) $ (3,735 $ 1,921 $ (5,656)
Non-controlling interests 98 242 (144) (1,843) 82 (1,925)
Corporate overhead (119) 81) (38) (372) (357) (15)
Income tax recovery (expense) 3,090 (2,931) 6,021 2,671 (2,931) 5,602
Transaction costs and non-recurring costs - - - (7) - )
Other gain (expenses) $ 128 $ (2,927) $ 3,055 $ (3,286) $ (1,285) $ (2,001)

TLR’s investment income was $10.7 million for the three months ended December 31, 2018, an increase of $4.7 million compared
to $6.0 million for the same period in 2017. The variance is mainly attributable to:

An increase of $3.5 million in fair value gain from TLR Canada projects primarily driven by The Selby nearing substantial completion
and The Taylor achieving development milestones.

An increase of $3.1 million in other gains, comprised of an increase of $6.0 million in income tax recovery and a decrease of $2.8 million
related to an unfavourable currency translation adjustment. The income tax recovery of $3.1 million in the current period relates to the
reversal of a deferred tax expense arising from a business reorganization to achieve greater tax efficiencies.

An offsetting increase of $1.0 million in interest expense as TLR U.S. projects have shifted from development phase to lease-up phase
and thus interest expense is no longer capitalized as part of development costs.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, investment income from TLR was $15.4 million, an increase of $3.0 million compared
to $12.4 million in 2017. The main drivers of this variance are attributable to:

An increase of $7.7 million in fair value gain from TLR Canada projects as discussed above, along with fair value gains recognized
on TLR U.S. projects as a result of construction and leasing progress.

An offsetting increase of $2.0 million in other expenses, driven primarily by a $1.9 million increase in income attributable to non-controlling
interests from fair value gains recognized on TLR U.S. projects. Of the remaining variance, a decrease in tax expense as discussed above
largely offset an increase in unfavourable currency translation adjustment.

A decrease of $1.4 million in operating income during development, as the ancillary income prior to construction trailed off at The Taylor,
which commenced construction in 2018. Also, initial operating losses were incurred as The Selby and both TLR U.S. projects began
lease-up in late 2018.
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Investment income — Tricon Housing Partners
The following table provides details regarding investment income from THP for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
THP1US $ (1,713) $ 840 $ (2,553) $ (3,110 $ 7,627 $ (10,737)
THP2 US (1,463) (973) (490) (1,605) 400 (2,005)
THP3 Canada' (102) 164 (266) 282 528 (246)
Trinity Falls 3,629 4,958 (1,329) 12,141 10,422 1,719
Separate accounts? 5,281 4,401 880 7,481 6,436 1,045
Side-cars® (3,689) (8,154) 4,465 (3,740) (7,204) 3,464
Investment income — THP $ 1,943 $ 1,236 $ 707 $ 11,449 $ 18,209 $ (6,760)

(1) Includes a loss predominantly as a result of foreign exchange of $0.5 million and $1.1 million for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018, respectively,
compared to a $0.2 million loss and $0.5 million gain for the same periods in 2017.
(2) Includes Cross Creek Ranch, Fulshear Farms, Grand Central Park, Trilogy at Verde River, Viridian, THP US SP1and THP US SP2.

3

Includes Trilogy at Vistancia West, Trilogy Lake Norman and Arantine Hills.

Investment income for the three months ended December 31, 2018 was $1.9 million, an increase of $0.7 million compared to $1.2 million
for the same period in 2017. The variance is mainly attributable to:

» Anincrease of $4.5 million in investment income from side-car investments as a result of smaller fair value losses recorded compared to
the same period in the prior year; however, higher construction costs, delayed timelines and lower-than-anticipated sales prices persisted
throughout 2018. As a result, long-term cash flow projections were revised this quarter resulting in a fair value loss of $3.7 million, although
the extent of the loss was much smaller than in 2017.

+ An offsetting decrease of $2.6 million in investment income from THP1 US as a result of a lower outstanding investment balance, as well
as some unfavourable budget revisions within the fund, attributable to higher construction costs, extended development timelines and
demand for smaller, lower-margin homes (see Section 4.3).

Investment income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 was $11.4 million, a decrease of $6.8 million compared to $18.2 million
for 2017. The variance is mainly attributable to:

+ A decrease of $10.7 million in investment income from THP1 US as a result of a lower investment balance and the budget revisions
discussed above.

+ Adecrease of $2.0 million in investment income from THP2 US related to: (i) unfavourable budget updates to the valuation of several
projects, including its co-investment in Arantine Hills; and (ii) a decline in the value of its equity investment in a public homebuilder.

« An offsetting increase of $3.5 million in investment income from side-cars as a result of budget revisions with smaller fair value losses
compared to the prior year, as discussed above.

+ Another offsetting increase of $1.7 million in investment income from Trinity Falls as a result of an additional 300 acres of adjacent land
acquired and the re-entitlement of the project to expand available product offerings in the fourth quarter of 2017 which increased expected
future cash flows from the project.
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Compensation expense
The table below provides a breakdown of compensation expense.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Salaries and benefits $ 4,108 $ 3,901 $  (207) $ 14,838 $ 14,169 $ (669)
Annual incentive plan (“AIP”) (2,739) (1,499) 1,240 10,391 11,205 814
Long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) 7,252 2,350 (4,902) 11,646 3,726 (7,920)
Total compensation expense $ 8,621 $ 4,752 $ (3,869) $ 36,875 $ 29,100 $ (7,775)

Compensation expense for the three months ended December 31, 2018 increased by $3.9 million compared to the same period in the prior
year. The variance is attributable to:

+ Anincrease of $4.9 million in long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) expense as a result of an increase in expected future performance fees
that will be paid to management when cash is received from each Investment Vehicle over time.

+ Anincrease of $0.2 million in payroll costs due to staffing increases to accommodate the Company’s ongoing growth plans and normal
course salary adjustments.

+ A decrease of $1.2 million in annual incentive plan (“AlP”) expense as a recovery to reflect the finalization of performance-based payments
which were previously accrued throughout the year.

Compensation expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 increased by $7.8 million largely because of an increase in LTIP
expense as noted above. The decrease in AIP expense of $0.8 million is a result of the Company’s revised AIP framework, which became
effective in 2018.

General and administration expense

General and administration expense for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018 increased by $0.6 million and $2.5 million,
respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. Both variances are primarily attributable to office relocation expenses, as well
as a general increase in line with expectations given the continued growth of the Company.

Interest expense
The table below provides a summary of interest expense.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Credit facility interest $ 3,274 $ 2,087 $ (1,187) $ 12,677 $ 6,580 $ (6,097)
Debentures interest 2,872 3,909 1,037 14,522 13,156 (1,366)
Debentures discount amortization 647 1,175 528 4,104 3,949 (155)
Mortgage interest 81 36 (45) 331 36 (295)
Interest on lease obligation 18 - (18) 52 - (52)
Total interest expense $ 6,892 $ 7,207 $ 315 $ 31,686 $ 23,721 $ (7,965)

Interest expense was $6.9 million for the three months ended December 31, 2018 compared to $7.2 million for the same period last year,

a decrease of $0.3 million. The decrease was primarily driven by a reduction in debentures interest and debentures discount amortization
from the 2020 convertible debentures, which were redeemed in full on October 9, 2018 (see Section 3.2). The decrease was partially offset by
an increase in credit facility interest as a result of a higher outstanding credit facility balance as well as a higher weighted average interest rate.

Interest expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 increased by $8.0 million compared to 2017, primarily driven by a higher
outstanding credit facility balance as well as a higher weighted average interest rate. Additionally, the Company incurred incremental
debentures interest expense and debentures discount amortization associated with the 2022 convertible debentures issued on March 17,
2017 in connection with the Silver Bay acquisition (see Section 3.2), net of reduced expenses from the 2020 convertible debentures, which
were redeemed in full in the fourth quarter of 2018 as discussed above.
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Other (income) expenses
The table below provides a breakdown of other (income) expenses.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Net change in fair value of derivative

financial instruments $ (8,583) $ 13,413 $ 21,996 $ (27,680) $ 23,276 $ 50,956
Loss on debt extinguishment - - - 5,349 - (5,349)
Transaction costs (90) 832 922 90 3,167 3,077
Amortization expense 1,589 1,299 (290) 5,540 5,375 (165)
Total other (income) expenses $ (7,084) $ 15,544 $ 22,628 $ (16,701) $ 31,818 $ 48,519

For the three months ended December 31, 2018, other income of $7.1 million was mainly attributable to a net decrease in the fair value of the
conversion feature of the Company’s outstanding convertible debentures (2017 — net increase), which is reflected as income (2017 — expense)
of the Company. The decrease during the year reflects the fair value gain on the conversion and redemption features of the Company’s
debentures driven by an overall decrease in the Company’s share price on the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”) as well as an unfavourable
exchange rate that was applied to the Company’s share price as of December 31, 2018.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, other income of $16.7 million was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair value of the
conversion feature of the Company’s outstanding convertible debentures as discussed above. The Company incurred a $5.3 million loss on
debt extinguishment, comprised of the recognition of debentures discount and issuance costs of $4.4 million and $0.9 million, respectively,
related to the redemption of the 2020 convertible debentures (see Section 3.2).

Income tax expense

For the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018, income tax expense was higher than the same periods in the prior year as a
result of an increase in the deferred tax expense of $2.3 million and $14.7 million, respectively, which was partially offset by a decrease in the
current tax expense of $1.8 million and $4.3 million, respectively. The increase in deferred tax expense compared to the same periods in the
prior year was primarily the result of the significant increase in investment income from TAH, whereas the decrease in current income tax
expense reflects lower investment income from THP1 US.

Disposition of Tricon Lifestyle Communities

On June 29, 2018, TLC completed the previously-announced sale of its portfolio of 14 manufactured housing communities to an institutional
asset manager for gross proceeds of $172.5 million. At the time of sale, the carrying value of investment properties on TLC’s balance sheet
was $146.3 million, resulting in a gain from disposition of investment properties of $26.2 million in the three months ended June 30, 2018.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, investment income from the discontinued operations of TLC was $21.2 million after deducting
transaction costs and proceeds to TLC’s operating partner.

The following table provides details regarding net income from discontinued operations — TLC for the year ended December 31, 2018.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Fair value gain on investments held for sale $ 33,597
Transaction costs on disposal’ (4,882)
Non-controlling interest, including incentive fees (5,562)
Other expenses? (1,983)
Investment income from discontinued operations — TLC $ 21,170
Income tax recovery from discontinued operations — deferred 1,957
Net income from discontinued operations $ 23,127

(1) Transaction costs related to the disposition include broker commissions, debt defeasance fees, legal fees and other due diligence costs.
(2) Other expenses include net operating income less corporate overhead, interest expense and vertical-level tax expense.
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3.2 Review of selected balance sheet items

ﬁ:titousands of U.S. dollars) December 31,2018  September 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Assets

Cash $ 7,773 $ 6,720 $ 21,792 $ 11,809 $ 14,813
Amounts receivable 17,934 17,257 17,657 13,465 13,506
Prepaid expenses and deposits 819 970 479 674 622
Investments —

Tricon American Homes 1,145,221 1,107,962 1,064,140 1,012,757 884,115
Investments —

Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 129,838 116,243 107,074 90,759 89,225
Investments —

Tricon Housing Partners 307,564 318,187 312,727 309,273 306,637
Investments held for sale —

Tricon Lifestyle Communities - — - 63,946 62,074
Intangible assets 20,733 21,829 22,924 18,893 20,016
Deferred income tax assets 36,135 33,732 29,950 26,787 23,937
Other assets 21,645 21,829 21,077 17,033 15,778
Total assets $ 1,687,662 $ 1,644,729 $ 1,597,820 $ 1,565,396 $ 1,430,723
Liabilities
Amounts payable and

accrued liabilities $ 6,429 $ 14,532 $ 19,438 $ 6,432 $ 11,273
Dividends payable 7,350 7,503 7,115 7,251 6,906
Long-term incentive plan 21,407 16,492 16,154 16,145 15,224
Debt 374,716 396,545 417,659 448,738 383,604
Deferred income tax liabilities 81,226 71,404 64,386 57,647 47,927
Derivative financial instruments 3,936 14,162 17,768 8,241 37,494
Total liabilities 495,064 520,638 542,520 544,454 502,428
Equity
Share capital 793,521 758,830 717,485 715,288 713,553
Contributed surplus 17,468 19,096 17,473 16,426 16,754
Cumulative translation adjustment 19,525 19,189 19,336 20,420 19,184
Retained earnings 353,220 317,472 291,319 258,907 167,849
Total shareholders’ equity 1,183,734 1,114,587 1,045,613 1,011,041 917,340
Non-controlling interest 8,864 9,504 9,687 9,901 10,955
Total equity 1,192,598 1,124,091 1,055,300 1,020,942 928,295
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,687,662 $ 1,644,729 $ 1,597,820 $ 1,565,396 $ 1,430,723
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Investments — Tricon American Homes
Investments in TAH increased by $261.1 million to $1.1 billion as at December 31, 2018, from $884.1 million as at December 31, 2017.
The increase was driven by:

+ Advances of $170.2 million primarily for the acquisition and renovation of rental homes, including a $48.0 million contribution to TAH JV-1.

+ Investment income of $218.9 million consisting of $180.5 million of fair value gains and $151.2 million of NOI, offset by $77.3 million
of interest expense, $8.9 million of non-recurring transaction costs and $26.6 million of overhead and other expenses.

- Offsetting cash distributions of $128.0 million.

As at Investment As at
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2017 Advances income Distributions December 31, 2018
Investments — TAH $ 884,115 $ 170,174 $ 218,932 $ (128,000) $ 1,145,221

Investments — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals

Investments in TLR increased by $40.6 million to $129.8 million as at December 31, 2018, from $89.2 million as at December 31, 2017.

The investment balance is comprised of $70.2 million invested in TLR Canada and $59.6 million invested in TLR U.S. The overall increase
during the year ended December 31, 2018 was mainly driven by advances of $26.0 million relating to the acquisition of new TLR Canada
projects, the purchase of an additional 10% ownership interest in The Taylor, and construction progress on existing projects, along with
investment income of $15.4 million (consisting of $20.4 million of fair value gains offset by $5.0 million of other net expenses — see Section 3.1).

As at Investment As at
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2017 Advances income Distributions December 31, 2018
Investments — TLR $ 89,225 $ 25,974 $ 15,406 $ (767) $ 129,838

Investments — Tricon Housing Partners

Investments in THP increased by $0.9 million to $307.6 million as at December 31, 2018, from $306.6 million as at December 31, 2017. The
increase is a result of investment income of $11.4 million combined with aggregate advances to Investment Vehicles of $8.9 million, of which
$3.9 million was contributed to Trinity Falls. This increase was partially offset by distributions of $19.5 million, including $9.5 million received
from separate account investments and $5.1 million received from THP1 US.

As at Investment As at
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2017 Advances income (loss) Distributions December 31, 2018
THP1US $ 92,731 $ 1,546 $  (3,110) $  (5,100) $ 86,067
THP2 US 26,983 887 (1,605) - 26,265
THP3 Canada 9,651 71 282 (3,405) 6,599
Trinity Falls 95,301 3,900 12,141 - 111,342
Separate accounts’ 69,135 135 7,481 (9,536) 67,215
Side-cars? 12,836 2,399 (3,740) (1,419) 10,076
Investments — THP $ 306,637 $ 8,938 $ 11,449 $ (19,460) $ 307,564

(1) Includes Cross Creek Ranch, Fulshear Farms, Grand Central Park, Trilogy at Verde River, Viridian, THP US SP1and THP US SP2.
(2) Includes Trilogy at Vistancia West, Trilogy Lake Norman and Arantine Hills.
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Investments held for sale — Tricon Lifestyle Communities

On June 29, 2018, TLC completed the previously-announced sale of its 14 manufactured housing communities to an institutional asset
manager for gross proceeds of $172.5 million. The net proceeds to Tricon were $85.2 million, which included $83.5 million in proceeds from
the disposal and $1.6 million in reimbursed expenses. The net proceeds represent a realized ROI of 1.7x and a realized IRR of 25% on peak
equity of $49.3 million over a four-year investment period. Tricon has received distributions of $80.9 million to date; the remaining proceeds
of $4.3 million are included in amounts receivable as at December 31, 2018.

Proceeds
from disposal

As at Investment of investments As at
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2017 Advances income held for sale December 31, 2018
Investments held for sale — TLC $ 62,074 $ 304 $ 21,170 $ (83,548) $ -

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

Sales proceeds from disposition of investment properties $ 172,500
Settlement of mortgage balances (77,621)
Transaction costs on disposition (4,882)
Other net liabilities (102)
Distributions to non-controlling interest $  (6,347)
Proceeds from disposition of investments held for sale to Tricon 83,548
Reimbursable expenses 1,638
Total proceeds to Tricon $ 85,186

Debt
The following table summarizes the consolidated debt position of the Company.

Debt balance

Terms (in thousands of U.S. dollars)’'
Total principal

(in thousands of dollars) Currency amount Maturity date Interest rate terms December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Revolving term credit facility usb $ 365,000 June 2020 LIBOR+3.25% $ 209,250 $ 161,500
2020 convertible debentures? CAD $ — October 2018 5.60% - 60,951
2022 convertible debentures usb $ 172,500 March 2022 5.75% 157,112 153,196
Mortgage CAD $ 9,754 November 2024 4.38% 7,150 7,957
Lease obligation usD $ 1,204 March 2026 5.60% 1,204 -

$ 374,716 $ 383,604

(1) Balances shown are presented in U.S. dollars and exclude the fair value of derivative financial instruments embedded in the convertible debentures (see Section 3.1,
Other (income) expenses). The mortgage is, and the 2020 convertible debentures were, denominated in Canadian dollars. USD/CAD exchange rates used to present
debt balances in U.S. dollars are at December 31, 2018: 1.3642 and at December 31, 2017: 1.2545.

(2) The 2020 convertible debentures were redeemed in full on October 9, 2018.

The Company has access to a $365.0 million corporate revolving credit facility provided by a syndicate of lenders. As of December 31, 2018,
$209.3 million was drawn from the facility, and the Company had a cash balance of $7.8 million.

On August 30, 2018, the Company gave notice to debenture holders of its intention to redeem in full all of the outstanding balance of

5.60% convertible unsecured subordinated debentures due March 31, 2020 (the “2020 convertible debentures”) effective October 9, 2018,
and elected to satisfy the redemption proceeds by the issuance of common shares of the Company. In total, the Company issued 8,695,539
common shares in connection with the conversion or redemption of C$85.7 million aggregate principal amount of 2020 convertible debentures
during 2018.

As of December 31, 2018, there was $172.5 million in outstanding aggregate principal amount of 5.75% extendible convertible unsecured
subordinated debentures of the Company (the “2022 convertible debentures”). The 2022 convertible debentures bear interest at 5.75% per
annum and are convertible into 16,491,397 common shares of the Company at a conversion rate of 95.6023 common shares per $1,000
principal amount, or a conversion price of approximately $10.46 per common share (equivalent to C$14.27 as of December 31, 2018). For the
year ended December 31, 2018, there were no conversions of the 2022 convertible debentures.
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As of December 31, 2018, the Company had an outstanding mortgage loan of $7.2 million (C$9.8 million), which was used to finance the
acquisition of the Company’s new head office in Toronto. The mortgage carries a fixed interest rate of 4.38% per annum compounded
semi-annually and matures on November 22, 2024.

On April 1, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to lease office space at 260 California Street, San Francisco, with an expiration date
of March 2026. The initial lease obligation recognized was $1.3 million, and the carrying value was $1.2 million as at December 31, 2018.

3.3 Assets under management
Assets under management (“AUM”) (KPI measure; refer to Section 8.2) were $5.7 billion as at December 31, 2018, representing an increase
of $1.1 billion since December 31, 2017. Refer to Section 8.2 for a detailed description of AUM.

CHANGES IN ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

(in millions)
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As shown in the chart above, which summarizes the changes in AUM over the year on a vertical-by-vertical basis, the changes in AUM since
December 31, 2017 were:

+ Anincrease of $1.2 billion in TAH AUM driven primarily by $750.0 million of committed capital for TAH JV-1, $190.0 million of fair value
adjustments (excluding projected future disposition fees) related to home price appreciation, as well as substantial home acquisitions and
renovations for the TAH wholly-owned and TAH JV-1 portfolios (see Section 4.1).

+ Anincrease of $224.6 million in TLR AUM resulting from the acquisition of West Don Lands and 8 Gloucester, along with construction
expenditures and fair value gains recognized during the year.

+ A $32.5 million increase in THP AUM primarily as a result of investment income of $12.1 million from Trinity Falls and $9.9 million of investment
income from separate accounts and side-cars.

+ A decrease of $137.8 million in TLC AUM from the portfolio sale of all 14 manufactured housing communities.

« A decrease of $214.6 million in THP AUM predominantly as a result of $121.2 million of distributions and $17.4 million of debt repayments from
several investments. The remainder was a result of foreign exchange adjustments and the release of guarantees across various investments.
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The following table provides a further breakdown of the components of principal investment and Private Funds and Advisory AUM.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31,2018'  September 30, 2018" June 30, 2018" March 31,2018'  December 31, 2017'
PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS?

Tricon American Homes $ 3,333,773 $ 3,267,062 $ 3,247,512 $ 2,866,838 $ 2,717,987
Tricon Lifestyle Rentals

Canada 141,871 134,846 119,314 71,290 71,918
us. 163,545 154,284 139,738 119,697 104,515
Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 305,416 289,130 259,052 190,987 176,433
Tricon Housing Partners

THP1US 95,496 101,447 101,272 103,102 103,706
THP2 US 29,253 30,716 31,246 30,898 30,858
THP3 Canada 12,125 14,994 15,049 15,444 15,790
Trinity Falls 117,643 114,014 111,545 107,882 105,502
Separate accounts 75,444 76,038 77,392 77,306 77,499
Side-cars 12,811 16,698 17,149 17,714 17,970
Tricon Housing Partners 342,772 353,907 353,653 352,346 351,325
Tricon Lifestyle Communities® - - - 146,000 137,780
Principal investments $ 3,981,961 $ 3,910,099 $ 3,860,217 $ 3,556,171 $ 3,383,525
PRIVATE FUNDS AND ADVISORY

Tricon American Homes $ 561,069 $ 497,500 $ 497,500 $ - $ -
Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 274,528 275,918 268,364 178,555 178,862
Tricon Housing Partners

THP1US 24,442 26,324 26,687 26,711 26,729
THP2 US 138,662 176,115 192,603 200,171 226,524
THP1 Canada - - 106 626 634
THP2 Canada 19,981 22,820 23,110 23,603 24,257
THP3 Canada 71,312 105,841 104,046 105,284 108,203
Separate accounts 404,851 417,670 431,460 431,460 435,790
Side-cars 212,090 212,139 212,517 212,517 212,517
Syndicated investments 15,014 19,945 20,970 22,301 25,268
Tricon Housing Partners 886,352 980,854 1,011,499 1,022,673 1,059,922
Private Funds and Advisory $ 1,721,949 $ 1,754,272 $ 1,777,363 $ 1,201,228 $ 1,238,784
Total assets under management $ 5,703,910 $ 5,664,371 $ 5,637,580 $ 4,757,399 $ 4,622,309

(1) USD/CAD exchange rates used at each balance sheet date are: at December 31, 2018: 1.3642; September 30, 2018: 1.2945; June 30, 2018: 1.3168;
March 31, 2018: 1.2894; December 31, 2017: 1.2545.

(2) Principal investment assets under management may differ from Tricon’s investment balance at period-end (see Section 8.2).

(3) Tricon Lifestyle Communities assets under management were disposed of in the second quarter of 2018.

3.4 Subsequent events
On February 5, 2019, TLR Canada announced its participation in a partnership with TAS Design Build and an institutional investor to develop
and manage 7 Labatt, a mixed-use project in downtown Toronto. See Section 4.2 for details.

On February 25, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a dividend of seven cents per share in Canadian dollars payable
on or after April 15, 2019 to shareholders of record on March 31, 2019.
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4. OPERATIONAL REVIEW OF INVESTMENT VERTICALS AND PRIVATE FUNDS
AND ADVISORY BUSINESS

Management believes that information concerning the underlying activities within each of the Company’s investment verticals is useful for
investors in understanding the Company’s overall performance, and this section presents key operating highlights for the quarter and year
on a vertical-by-vertical basis. Although the Company’s performance is primarily measured by investment income and changes in fair value
of its various investments, management also monitors the underlying activities within those investments using key performance indicators

to provide a better understanding of the performance of the Company’s investments. A list of these key performance indicators, together with
a description of what information each measure reflects and the reasons why management believes the measure to be useful or relevant in
evaluating the underlying performance of the Company’s investments, is set out in Section 8.1, Key performance indicators. The supplemental
measures presented herein are not recognized under IFRS and should not be construed as alternatives to investment income determined

in accordance with IFRS as indicators of Tricon’s financial performance. Tricon’s method of calculating these measures may differ from other
issuers’ methods and, accordingly, these measures may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other publicly-traded entities.

4.1 Tricon American Homes

TAH had a year of significant accomplishments, highlighted by the launch of TAH JV-1, a joint venture between Tricon and two large institu-
tional investors capitalized with $750.0 million of equity commitments and approximately $2 billion of buying power, when taking into account
leverage. Operationally, TAH continued to experience NOI margin expansion, with a full-year margin of 62.6%, and achieved a 7.0% year-over-
year same home NOI growth rate as a result of continued rent growth stemming from its revenue management platform and operating cost
containment. Finally, TAH continued to convert its floating rate debt to longer duration fixed rate debt. As of December 31, 2018, 73% of TAH’s
debt had a fixed interest rate compared to 63% at December 31, 2017.

The discussion and presentation of TAH operating metrics throughout this section reflect the performance of the entire portfolio under
management, including the TAH JV-1 portfolio, which is managed by a TAH subsidiary.

TAH’s fourth quarter reflects continued strong operating performance, including 8.6% year-over-year same home NOI growth, 6.1% blended
rent growth for the same home portfolio and a 62.6% same home NOI margin. The consolidated portfolio performed equally well, achieving
6.4% blended rent growth and a 64.5% NOI margin during the quarter.

TAH purchased 802 homes during the quarter (676 homes net of dispositions) through its organic acquisition program, outperforming its
fourth quarter target of 700—750 homes. Of these new homes, 784 were acquired for TAH JV-1 and 18 for its TAH wholly-owned portfolio.
TAH plans to continue growing its portfolio of managed homes over the course of 2019, targeting an average of 800 acquisitions per quarter,
with lower than average volumes expected in the first and fourth quarters and higher volumes anticipated in the second and third quarters,
reflective of the seasonality of listings and home sales. The vast majority of these acquisitions are intended for TAH JV-1. As of December 31,
2018, TAH managed a portfolio of 17,414 rental homes (17,442 total homes, including 28 homes held for sale), of which 2,003 were owned

by TAH JV-1.

TAH’s stabilized occupancy rate (which excludes homes that were recently acquired and not yet leased) was 96.2% at December 31, 2018, a
testament to continued strong market demand for rental homes. The overall leased portfolio occupancy rate was 92.4% at December 31, 2018
as a result of a significant number of recently-acquired homes still in the initial renovation and leasing process.

During the quarter, TAH realized strong average rent growth of 6.4% on its consolidated portfolio, comprised of 7.9% growth on new leases
and 5.6% on renewals. The continued growth reflects both strong demand fundamentals and supportive market conditions as well as the
positive impact of TAH’s revenue management program. TAH’s annualized turnover rate in the fourth quarter of 2018 was 23.6%, a decrease
from 27.6% recorded in the fourth quarter of 2017, as a result of TAH’s diligent resident screening process. On a full-year basis, resident
turnover was 26.8% compared to 29.6% in the prior year, which is reflective of the strong demand from the middle market for high-quality,
professionally managed rental homes.
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The tables in this section provide a summary of certain operating metrics for TAH’s rental home portfolio that management uses to evaluate
the performance of TAH over time and relative to industry peers. These metrics reflect the performance of all homes managed by TAH,
comprised of homes owned by TAH JV-1 and homes wholly-owned by TAH. Many of the metrics referenced in these tables are KPI measures
that are defined in Section 8.1.

Q42018 Q32018 Q2 2018 Q12018 Q4 2017 Q32017 Q22017 Q12017
TAH wholly-owned homes 15,439 15,547 15,995 15,584 15,218 16,594 16,660 7,821
TAH JV-1 homes 2,003 1,219 - - - - - -
Total homes managed 17,442 16,766 15,995 15,584 15,218 16,594 16,660 7,821
Less homes held for sale 28 147 47 89 109 1,613 153 322
Rental homes 17,414 16,619 15,948 15,495 15,109 14,981 16,507 7,499
Homes acquired 802 810 505 396 160 - 9,054 168
Less homes disposed (126) (39) (94) (30) (1,536) (66) (215) (112)
Net homes acquired (disposed)
during the quarter’ 676 771 411 366 (1,376) (66) 8,839 56
Occupancy 92.4% 93.1% 95.2% 95.3% 95.8% 96.1% 96.9% 95.6%
Stabilized occupancy 96.2% 96.3% 97.1% 96.9% 96.7% 96.7% 97.2% 96.5%
Annualized turnover rate 23.6% 27.7% 30.9% 24.9% 27.6% 31.4% 31.2% 25.6%
Average monthly rent $ 1,350 $ 1,336 $ 1,315 $ 1,296 $ 1,283 $ 1,256 $ 1,243 $ 1,247
Average year-over-year
rent growth — renewal 5.6% 5.4% 4.8% 4.3% 4.0% 4.0% 4.4% 4.3%
Average year-over-year
rent growth — new move-in 7.9% 9.4% 9.4% 6.3% 5.0% 5.6% 5.7% 6.0%
Average year-over-year
rent growth — blended 6.4% 6.7% 6.4% 5.0% 4.4% 4.6% 4.9% 5.0%

(1) Of the net homes acquired during the quarter, 784 were acquired by TAH JV-1and a net 108 TAH wholly-owned homes were disposed.

The above metrics are key drivers of TAH revenue and ultimately its net operating income (KPI measure; refer to Section 8.1). Net operating
income and fair value gains from home price appreciation are the main contributors to investment income — TAH (per Tricon’s income
statement). The table below presents a breakdown of TAH net operating income and a reconciliation to investment income — TAH on Tricon’s
income statement. The financial information presented in this table and throughout this section is an aggregation of all entities and balances
within the TAH vertical on a standalone basis and does not necessarily reflect the audited financial information of any particular TAH entity.
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For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Total revenue' $ 64,269 $ 55,118 $ 9,151 $ 241,020 $ 186,881 $ 54,139
Property taxes 10,014 8,044 (1,970) 37,380 28,112 (9,268)
Repairs, maintenance and turnover? 5,600 5,727 127 24,598 21,456 (3,142)
Property management fees 4,509 3,852 (657) 16,927 13,138 (3,789)
Property insurance 1,033 1,048 15 3,958 3,807 (151)
Homeowners’ association (HOA) costs 724 718 (6) 2,958 2,385 (573)
Other direct expenses 964 1,004 40 4,003 3,439 (564)
Total operating expenses 22,844 20,393 (2,451) 89,824 72,337 (17,487)
Net operating income (NOI) $ 41,425 $ 34,725 $ 6,700 $ 151,196 $114,544 $ 36,652
Net operating income (NOI) margin 64.5% 63.0% 62.7% 61.3%

Net operating income (NOI),

excluding impact of hurricanes $ 41,425 $ 35,523 $ 5,902 $ 150,762 $116,334 $ 34,428
Net operating income (NOI) margin,
excluding impact of hurricanes 64.5% 64.4% 62.6% 62.3%
Fair value gain 24,790 51,307 (26,517) 180,496 143,993 36,503
Other expenses? (8,666) (20,748) 12,082 (38,626) (83,188) 44562
- Interest expense® (20,138) (19,575) (563) (77,300) (62,282) (15,018)
Third-party investor interests 748 - 748 3,166 - 3,166
Investment income — TAH
(per Tricon income statement) $ 38,159 $ 45,709 $ (7,550) $ 218,932 $113,067 $ 105,865
Warehouse credit facility interest $ 1,171 $ 3,866 $ 2,695 $ 6497 $ 6581 % 84
 Securitization debt 2015-1 interest = 441 441 = 9,256 9,256 |
Securitization debt 2016-1 interest 3,370 3,357 (13) 13,488 13,428 (60)
Securitization debt 2017-1 interest 4,168 4,156 (12) 16,674 5,954 (10,720)
Securitization debt 2017-2 interest 3,435 460 (2,975) 13,730 460 (13,270)
 Securitization debt 2018-1 interest 3,164 - (3,164) 8,875 - (8,875)
Silver Bay acquisition warehouse facility interest 204 5,132 4,928 3,073 24,440 21,367
{ Term loan interest 3813 2,163 (1,650) 14,150 2,163 (11,987)}
: { TAH JV-1 warehouse credit facility interest 813 - 813) 813 - (813)
> Interest expense $ 20138  $ 19575 $  (563) $ 77300 $ 62282 $ (15018)!
Weighted average interest rate 3.7% 3.8% 3.7% 3.7% :

() Includes bad debt expense of $520 (2017 — $330) and $1,908 (2017 — $2,068) for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018, respectively.

(2) Includes non-recurring storm-related recoveries of nil and $434 for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018, respectively (2017 — storm-related
expenses of $798 and $1,790).

(3) Refer to Section 3.1 for a discussion of other expenses and interest expense.
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Total portfolio

During the fourth quarter of 2018, TAH'’s total revenue increased by $9.2 million or 17% to $64.3 million compared to $55.1 million in the same
period in 2017. The increase of $9.2 million in rental revenue is attributable to (i) higher in-place rents achieved across the entire portfolio
(average monthly rent of $1,350 in Q4 2018 versus $1,283 in Q4 2017); and (ii) continued strong acquisition and leasing activity resulting in

an increased average leased portfolio (16,086 homes for Q4 2018 versus 14,474 homes for Q4 2017). This significant revenue growth, offset
by an increase in operating expenses (discussed below), contributed to a 17% net increase in NOI to $41.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2018
compared to $35.5 million in the same period in 2017.

TAH’s NOI margin increased marginally to 64.5% for the fourth quarter of 2018 compared to 64.4% for the same period in the prior year as
the increase in revenue was largely offset by higher property tax expense. Note that the property tax expense in the fourth quarter of 2017
included a one-time favourable impact related to a true-up of previously accrued tax expenses. While TAH experienced a rise in property
taxes in all markets due to home price appreciation, the increase was generally in line with expectations and with accruals that were made
over the course of the year. The portfolio expense metrics exclude $0.8 million of non-recurring storm-related incremental expenses for the
three months ended December 31, 2017.

TAH’s fair value gain in the three months ended December 31, 2018 was $24.8 million compared to $51.3 million in the three months ended
December 31, 2017. The HPI increase this quarter of 1.4% (5.6% annualized) was on par with the HPI increase in the fourth quarter of 2017.
BPOs were obtained on 238 homes this quarter compared to 2,518 homes for the same period in 2017. The gain during the quarter reflected
ongoing home price appreciation supported by strong demand fundamentals in TAH’s target markets.

Funds from operations and core funds from operations

Funds from operations (“FFO”) and core funds from operations (“Core FFO”) (KPl measures; refer to Section 8.1) are metrics that management
believes to be helpful in evaluating TAH'’s business and comparing its performance to industry peers. FFO represents investment income
excluding the impact of fair value adjustments and other non-cash items. Core FFO presents FFO as a normalized figure, adjusting for
transaction costs and non-recurring items. The table below provides a reconciliation of investment income — TAH (as presented on Tricon’s
income statement) to FFO and Core FFO.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Investment income — TAH $ 38,159 $ 45,709 $ (7,550 $ 218932 $ 113,067 $ 105,865

Fair value gain' (24,790) (51,307) 26,517 (180,496) (143,993) (36,503)
Third-party investor interests (748) - (748) (3,166) 706 (3,872)
Depreciation and non-cash items? 2,536 2,032 504 4,877 3,895 982

Deferred tax expense (recovery) (387) (50) (337) (389) 1,490 (1,879)
Deferred financing costs 29 (638) 667 673 (698) 1,371

TAH JV-1 partner-level expenses 1,393 — 1,393 5,097 — 5,097
Funds from operations (FFO) $ 16,192 $ (4,254) $ 20,446 $ 45528 $ (25,533) $ 71,061

Transaction costs and non-recurring costs®® 815 17,007 (16,192) 8,463 61,291 (52,828)
Core funds from operations (Core FFO) $ 17,007 $ 12,753 $ 4,254 $ 53,991 $ 35758 $ 18,233

(1) Fair value gain is presented net of change in projected future disposition fees and illustrates the gain on all rental homes managed by TAH.

(2) Comparative periods have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation.

(3) Results for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 include loan facility issuance costs of $7,970 and other non-recurring costs of $3,371 (including Silver Bay
integration-related expenses of $851 and non-recurring legal costs of $1,277), offset by $2,878 in storm-related insurance recoveries. Results for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2017 include transaction costs of $12,191 related to the Silver Bay acquisition, Silver Bay integration-related expenses of $5,307, loan facility
issuance costs of $42,003, and repair costs for hurricane damage of $1,790.

For the fourth quarter of 2018, Core FFO increased by $4.3 million or 33% to $17.0 million compared to $12.8 million in the same period in the
prior year. This improvement was attributable to increases in rental revenue driven by a larger number of leased properties and higher rent
growth, partially offset by an increase in corporate overhead associated with staffing increases to accommodate the growth plan for TAH JV-1.
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Same home portfolio

“Same home” or “same home portfolio” includes homes that were stabilized 90 days prior to the first day of the prior year comparative period
as per the guidelines of the National Rental Home Council. It excludes homes that have been sold and homes that have been designated for
sale. This same home portfolio is defined on January 1 of each reporting year. Based on this definition, any home included in the same home
portfolio will have satisfied the conditions described above prior to September 30, 2016, and those homes are held in operations throughout
the full periods presented in both 2017 and 2018.

For the periods ended December 31

Three months

Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per home data) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Operating metrics — same home
Rental homes 6,621 6,621 - 6,621 6,621 -
Occupancy 95.8% 96.4% (0.6%) 95.8% 96.4% (0.6%)
Annualized turnover rate 28.2% 28.2% - 29.1% 30.2% 1.1%
Average monthly rent $ 1,361 $ 1,298 $ 63 $ 1,361 $ 1,298 $ 63
Average year-over-year rent growth — renewal 5.6% 3.9% 1.7% 5.1% 4.3% 0.8%
Average year-over-year rent growth —
new move-in 7.0% 3.2% 3.8% 7.6% 4.2% 3.4%
Average year-over-year rent growth — blended 6.1% 3.6% 2.5% 6.0% 4.3% 1.7%

For the 6,621 homes comprising the same home portfolio, rent growth was 6.1% (including 7.0% on new leases), offset by a 0.6% decrease
in occupancy to 95.8% from 96.4% recorded in the same period in 2017. TAH continues to focus on maintaining an occupancy rate of between
95.0% and 96.5%, while increasing rents, in particular for new move-in homes. The portfolio’s annualized turnover remained consistent at
28.2% for the three months ended December 31, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017.

For the periods ended December 31

Three months

Twelve months

% of % of % of % of
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018  revenue 2017  revenue Variance 2018  revenue 2017  revenue Variance
Income statement — same home
Rental revenue $ 25,377 § 24,317 $ 1,060 $ 99,903 $ 96,208 $ 3,695
Fees and other revenue 989 807 182 3,502 3,425 77
Bad debt (212) (441) 229 (906) (1,547) 641
Total revenue 26,154 100% 24,683 100% 1,471 102,499 100% 98,086 100% 4,413
Revenue growth 6.0% 4.5%
Property taxes 4,109 16% 3,558 14% (551) 15,831 15% 14,840 15% (991)
Repairs, maintenance and turnover 2,642 10% 2,836 1% 194 11,676 1% 12,025 12% 349
Property management fees 1,836 7% 1,735 7% (101) 7,208 7% 6,910 7% (298)
Property insurance 486 2% 560 2% 74 1,926 2% 2,339 2% 413
Homeowners’ association (HOA) costs 300 1% 342 1% 42 1,269 1% 1,325 1% 56
Other direct expenses 419 2% 582 2% 163 1,866 2% 2,030 2% 164
Total operating expenses 9,792 9,613 (179) 39,776 39,469 (307)
Operating expense variance (1.9%) (0.8%)
Net operating income (NOI) $ 16,362 $ 15,070 $1,292 $ 62,723 $ 58,617 $ 4,106
Net operating income (NOI) growth 8.6% 7.0%
Net operating income (NOI) margin 62.6% 61.1% 61.2% 59.8%
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Total revenue for the same home portfolio increased by $1.5 million or 6% to $26.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2018 compared to
$24.7 million for the same period in the prior year. The increase in revenue is primarily a result of increases in the average monthly rent,
lower bad debt expense driven by enhancements to TAH’s resident screening process and an increase in miscellaneous fees earned,
including higher application fees.

Same home operating expenses increased by $0.2 million or 2% to $9.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2018 from $9.6 million in the same
period in 2017. This variance is largely a result of increases in property taxes and property management fees, partly offset by favourable
reductions across all other cost categories. As noted earlier, the property tax expense in the fourth quarter of 2017 included a one-time
favourable impact related to a true-up of previously accrued tax expenses that year. Management believes that the full-year tax expense
increase of 7% provides a more accurate picture of year-over-year trends.

The following is a full description of these expenses:

- Property taxes — Property taxes increased by $0.6 million or 15% to $4.1 million in the current quarter, based on the actual property taxes
assessed from municipalities. TAH has worked with a property tax consultant to monitor tax assessments throughout the year, and the
final assessments were in line with expectations, while the prior year’s fourth quarter included a one-time favourable adjustment to
the property tax accrual.

* Repairs, maintenance and turnover — Operating efficiencies from an increasingly internalized repairs and maintenance function resulted
in a $0.2 million or 7% decrease in costs to $2.6 million.

+ Property management fees — These fees increased by $0.1 million or 6% to $1.8 million, in line with revenue growth. They are consistent
with the comparative period and remain at approximately 7% of revenue.

+ Property insurance — The 2018 insurance premiums decreased by $0.1 million or 13% to $0.5 million from the 2017 premiums as a result
of scale-related savings.

+ HOA costs and other direct expenses — These costs have decreased by $0.2 million or 22% to $0.7 million as a result of operating
improvements in transferring billing to new residents on a more timely basis. TAH is responsible for these expenses on homes until
they are leased.

In summary, with strong revenue growth and reduced expenses, same home NOI increased by 8.6% year-over-year to $16.4 million in the
fourth quarter of 2018 compared to $15.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2017. Same home NOI margin increased to 62.6% in the fourth quarter
of 2018 (61.2% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018) from 61.1% in the same period in the prior year (59.8% for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2017). These same home metrics exclude the impact of non-recurring storm-related recoveries or expenses.

Assets under management and investment balance
TAH’s principal investment AUM (KPI measure; refer to Section 8.2) is based on TAH’s share of the fair value of the homes in the portfolio,
which is determined via the HPI or BPO methodologies discussed in Section 9.1, plus its own unfunded equity commitment.

TAH principal investments

TAH's A Unfundgd ‘ Principal

share of Fair value 'equlty investment

investment of homes commitment AUM

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) vehicle Q ‘3 Q + 9
TAH wholly-owned 100.0% $ 3,013,157 $ - $ 3,013,157
TAH JV-1 33.7% 116,086 204,530 320,616
Total $ 3,129,243 $ 204,530 $ 3,333,773
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The table below represents 100% of the assets and liabilities of TAH entities wholly-owned by Tricon as well as TAH JV-1 operating entities.
The third-party investors’ 66.3% ownership interest in the TAH JV-1 operating entities is then deducted to arrive at Tricon’s investment in TAH

as shown on Tricon’s balance sheet.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Q42018 Q32018 Q22018 Q12018 Q42017 Q32017 Q22017 Q12017
Purchase price of homes $ 2,510,590 $ 2,378,431 $ 2,259,951 $ 2,180,878 $ 2,122,574 §$ 2,095,693 $ 2,237,442 § 830,501
Cumulative capital expenditures' 278,629 252,218 234,301 220,058 208,764 222,347 207,927 199,282
¢ Total cost basis of rental homes $ 2,789,219 $ 2,630,649 $ 2,494,252 $ 2,400,936 $ 2,331,338 $ 2,318,040 $ 2,445369 § 1,029,783
. Cost of homes held for sale 2,863 15,816 4,078 11,904 10,779 166,973 15,901 31,920
Cumulative fair value adjustment? 565,885 540,698 496,682 453,998 375,870 293,044 230,059 210,293
Portfolio home price appreciation
during the quarter 1.4% 1.5% 1.7% 1.5% 1.4% 1.2% 1.2% 1.3%
- - - Fair value of managed homes $3,357,967 $3,187,163 $2,995,012 $2,866,838 $2,717,987 $2,778,057 $2,691,329 $1,271,996
H Less projected future disposition fees 30,563 30,340 30,713 29,303 27,793 28,160 14,205 14,221
-+ Fair value of managed homes, net O 3327404 3,156,823 2,964,299 2,837,535 2,690,194 2,749,897 2,677,124 1,257,775
Add:
Other net assets (liabilities)* (B] (44,837) (29,784) 76,729 83,689 71,693 52,216 62,962 45,633
Less:
Warehouse credit facility (LIBOR+3.00%) 100,546 74,443 99,687 216,251 184,167 42,376 73,608 68,626
Securitization debt 2015-1 (LIBOR+1.96%) - - - - - 337,220 339,611 347,091
Securitization debt 2016-1(3.59% fixed) 361,440 361,906 362,234 362,470 362,601 362,601 362,601 362,601
Securitization debt 2017-1(3.50% fixed) 462,594 462,594 462,594 462,594 462,594 462,594 - -
Securitization debt 2017-2 (3.58% fixed) 364,574 364,819 365,000 365,000 365,000 - - -
Securitization debt 2018-1(3.86% fixed) 313,865 313,865 313,865 - - - - -
Silver Bay acquisition warehouse facility
(LIBOR+3.26% blended) - 22,602 25,926 154,570 155,828 778,915 1,197,902 -
Term loan (LIBOR+2.00%) 347,582 347,582 347,582 347,582 347,582 - - -
TAH JV-1 warehouse credit facility
(LIBOR+2.50%) 95,832 - - - - - - -
Total debt ® 2046433 1,947,811 1,976,888 1,908,467 1,877,772 1,983,706 1,973,722 778,318
Third-party investor interests’ (D] 90,913 71,266 - - - - - -
Investments — TAH (per Tricon
balance sheet) O:O-O-0 $1,145221 $1,107,962 $1,064,140 $1,012,757 $ 884,115 $ 818,407 $ 766,364 $ 525,090
Fair value of TAH wholly-owned homes O $ 3,013,157 $ 2,983,297 $ 2995012 $ 2,866,338 “$ 2,717,987 $ 2,778,057 $ 2,691,329 $ 1,271:5;96
344,810 203,866 - - - - - -

¢ Fair value of TAH JV-1 homes (F)

>
Tricon’s share of
total fair value @+337%of @)/O

- Cash
i i) Debt-to-cost (net of cash)
f) Debt-to-value (net of cash)

93.2%

82,214
70.3%
58.5%

95.8%

79,992
70.6%
58.6%

100.0%

84,142
75.8%
63.2%

100.0%

84,499
75.6%
63.6%

100.0%

88,704
76.4%
65.8%

100.0%

87,797
76.3%
68.2%

100.0% 100.0%
91,709 41,559
76.5% 69.4%
69.9% 57.9%

(1) Cumulative capital expenditures include initial, post-rehab and other capital expenditures.

@

Cumulative fair value adjustment is net of capital expenditures and third-party operator performance fees.

(3) Other net assets (liabilities) include working capital of Tricon SF Home Rental ULC and its wholly-owned subsidiaries as well as TAH JV-1 working capital and

partner-level debt.

(4) The portion of the fair value of homes, debt and other net assets (liabilities) not attributable to the Company is adjusted for as third-party investor interests.
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The table below presents Tricon’s share of the key operating metrics of TAH’s total portfolio under management.

Three months Twelve months
) Total Total
For the periods ended December 31, 2018 Tricon’s managed Tricon’s Tricon’s managed Tricon’s
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) share portfolio share (%) share portfolio share (%)
Net operating income (NOI) $ 39897 $ 41,425 96.3% $ 149,425 $ 151,196 98.8%
Core funds from operations (Core FFO) 16,615 17,007 97.7% 53,617 53,991 99.3%
Fair value of homes 3,129,243 3,357,967 93.2% 3,129,243 3,357,967 93.2%

As at December 31, 2018, TAH’s rental portfolio is diversified across 16 target markets. Market-level details on all the homes managed by TAH
are presented below.

Total Vacant Vacant homes

homes Rental Homes homes under under turn or Stabilized
Geography managed1 homes leased marketing renovation Occupancy occupancy
Atlanta 4,195 4,191 3,767 116 308 89.9% 94.9%
Charlotte 1,891 1,888 1,635 60 193 86.6% 96.3%
Phoenix 1,862 1,862 1,820 22 20 97.7% 98.6%
Tampa 1,553 1,549 1,475 46 28 95.2% 96.7%
Dallas 1,370 1,367 1,247 72 48 91.2% 95.0%
Houston 1,122 1,122 997 74 51 88.9% 91.9%
Northern California 1,010 1,009 999 7 3 99.0% 99.0%
Columbia 764 755 646 19 90 85.6% 92.7%
Southeast Florida 725 724 696 1 17 96.1% 96.3%
Las Vegas 601 601 588 6 7 97.8% 97.9%
Indianapolis 561 561 519 26 16 92.5% 97.9%
Jacksonville 490 490 473 5 12 96.5% 97.7%
Orlando 442 441 435 1 5 98.6% 98.9%
San Antonio 326 324 267 26 31 82.4% 91.7%
Southern California 279 279 276 1 2 98.9% 98.9%
Reno 251 251 246 2 3 98.0% 98.0%
Total/Weighted average 17,442 17,414 16,086 494 834 92.4% 96.2%

(1) Includes 28 homes held for sale.
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Average

Average capital Average Average

purchase price expenditures total cost Average size Average monthly rent

Geography per home per home' per home (sq. feet) monthly rent per sq. foot
Atlanta $ 128,000 $ 12,000 $ 140,000 1,775 $ 1,244 $ 0.70
Charlotte 128,000 19,000 147,000 1,591 1,228 0.77
Phoenix 168,000 7,000 175,000 1,697 1,236 0.73
Tampa 153,000 17,000 170,000 1,545 1,484 0.96
Dallas 139,000 15,000 154,000 1,567 1,415 0.90
Houston 125,000 22,000 147,000 1,605 1,347 0.84
Northern California 196,000 21,000 217,000 1,304 1,730 1.33
Columbia 107,000 19,000 126,000 1,516 1,202 0.79
Southeast Florida 121,000 40,000 161,000 1,404 1,668 1.19
Las Vegas 164,000 12,000 176,000 1,648 1,314 0.80
Indianapolis 119,000 20,000 139,000 1,584 1,206 0.76
Jacksonville 141,000 4,000 145,000 1,509 1,280 0.85
Orlando 171,000 5,000 176,000 1,499 1,382 0.92
San Antonio 115,000 27,000 142,000 1,614 1,307 0.81
Southern California 151,000 31,000 182,000 1,295 1,700 1.31
Reno 150,000 24,000 174,000 1,548 1,550 1.00
Total/Weighted average $ 141,000 $ 16,000 $ 157,000 1,606 $ 1,350 $ 0.84

(1) Average capital expenditures per home only reflects capital expenditures incurred by TAH and not by prior institutional owners, where applicable.

4.2 Tricon Lifestyle Rentals
TLR’s active projects under development progressed according to their business plans during 2018. A summary of TLR’s principal investments
is presented below with a reconciliation of the investment balances to AUM (KPI measure; refer to Section 8.2).

TLR principal investments

Investment Share of Unfunded Principal

I B et SO Sy

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) esie (actacF::l'tsE:) 0 9 G 0 + 9 + G
TLR Canada $ 43,769 $ 68978 $ 31,044 $ 41,849 $ 141,871
TLR US. 58,720 80,889 81,043 1,613 163,545
Total $ 102,489 $ 149,867 $ 112,087 $ 43,462 $ 305,416

(1) Investments — TLR per Tricon balance sheet of $129,838 is comprised of investment in TLR Canada of $70,200 and investment in TLR U.S. of $59,638. In the table
above, TLR U.S. investment at fair value of $80,889 is shown before net liabilities and non-controlling interest of $21,251, and the TLR Canada investment at fair value
of $68,978 is shown before other net assets of $1,222.
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Additional details pertaining to TLR’s development projects are presented below:

TLR’s share ) . Projected Projected

of Investment Projected construction total cost Projected retail/office

Location Vehicle Start End ($000) rental units (sq. feet)

The Selby (592 Sherbourne) Toronto, ON 15.0% Q12015 Q42018 $ 146,400 500 ~5,000

The Taylor (57 Spadina) Toronto, ON 30.0% Q12018 Q12021 119,300 286 ~45,000

The James (Scrivener Square) Toronto, ON 50.0% TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

Shops of Summerhill Toronto, ON 25.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A 30,820

West Don Lands Toronto, ON 33.3% Q22019 ~2023 TBD ~1,500 TBD

8 Gloucester Toronto, ON 47.0% Q4 2019 Q32022 97,900 232 3,200
TLR Canada ~30% ~$ 1,000,000 ~2,700

The McKenzie Dallas, TX 90.0% Q4 2015 Q42018 93,100 183 -

The Maxwell Frisco, TX 90.0% Q22016 Q12019 58,900 325 -
TLRUS. 90.0% $ 152,000 508
Total ~$ 1,152,000 ~3,200

(1) Projected timelines and costs and anticipated rentable building elements are forward-looking statements. Refer to page 23, Non-IFRS measures and forward-looking
statements.

Operational highlights include the following:

Tricon Lifestyle Rentals — Canada

In 2018, TLR Canada added three marquee development sites in prime locations in the Distillery District/West Don Lands and Yonge and
Bloor neighbourhoods in Toronto. At year-end, TLR Canada had six projects totaling ten buildings in downtown Toronto, making TLR Canada
one of the most active developers and operators of Class A rental apartments in Canada’s largest city. Its portfolio at year-end consisted

of approximately 2,700 total units under development or construction with an aggregate expected total cost of approximately $1.0 billion
(C$1.3 billion). TLR Canada currently holds an approximate 30% average equity interest in this portfolio, with the balance held by institutional
and strategic partners in its various projects. TLR Canada continues to demonstrate an ability to acquire development sites in prime downtown
locations, despite a very competitive land market, by partnering with the provincial or municipal government on rental-only sites and entering
into joint ventures with landowners seeking to intensify their sites and to benefit from stable, long-term cash-generating rental assets.

TLR Canada continues to evaluate new development sites in transit-oriented nodes in the Greater Toronto Area, and currently has an active
pipeline of high-quality opportunities that it hopes to execute on in 2019.

Market fundamentals for purpose-built rental in Toronto remained very robust in 2018, buoyed by strong net immigration, the city’s strong
diversified employment base, downtown urbanization trends and increasingly stringent home ownership lending standards. During 2018,
year-over-year rental growth registered 10% and vacancy remained negligible at 0.3% in Toronto, according to UrbanRental. Construction
costs began increasing in early 2018 and upward pressure was visible within certain trades by year-end, namely formwork, mechanical and
drywall, as a result of a limited trade base and heightened overall level of for-sale condominium construction activity. Despite cost escalation,
market rental growth has generally offset these increases to maintain expected development yields in the 5.25% to 5.75% range.

TLR Canada’s first project, The Selby, launched leasing on November 30 and was open for move-ins from the 6th to the 14th floor as at
year-end. Demand has been robust with over 110 tours in the month after the launch, and 18 of the 72 available units under signed lease or
approved application by year-end, despite a seasonally-slower holiday period. Leasing is expected to ramp up significantly in the first quarter
of 2019 as amenities such as the spa and the Oliver & Bonacini-managed restaurant open. Finishing trade work continues on the 15th to
50th floors, and the building expects to receive its final occupancy permit in the first half of 2019. TLR Canada is also working to close on

a long-term permanent loan in the first half of 2019. Subsequent to year-end, The Selby was voted by Urban Toronto’s readership as the

Best High Rise over 40 storeys.

The Selby’s opening marks the introduction of Tricon House, TLR Canada’s consumer-facing resident brand. Tricon House buildings are
to be defined by architectural and design excellence that unite the best in form and function, exceptional amenities including state-of-the-art
fitness facilities and reimagined common spaces, elevated service levels that simplify residents’ lives, and curated lifestyle programming.

In November 2018, the Province of Ontario announced that the rent control provisions of the previous government’s “Fair Housing Plan”
would only apply to buildings that had occupancy on or before November 15, 2018 and, as such, The Selby and other TLR Canada projects
are not subject to such rent control measures.
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At 57 Spadina, which has been named The Taylor as a nod to its Garment District location, the existing retail building was demolished,
excavation of the parking garage was completed, and 35% of trades were secured during 2018. In addition, the project secured a construction
loan in the fourth quarter of 2018 at attractive terms. The site crane is scheduled to be erected in the first quarter of 2019. The Entertainment
District submarket has sustained above-average rent growth as it continues to be one of the most sought-after rental neighbourhoods among
millennial renters.

At Scrivener Square (now named The James), located in the upmarket Rosedale/Summerhill neighbourhood, zoning and design were
advanced significantly with Toronto’s City Council supporting the project design by internationally acclaimed Danish architects, COBE. Final
zoning approvals are expected in mid-2019 following the Ontario Municipal Board Settlement Hearing. Demolition of existing buildings
on-site is anticipated to commence in the last quarter of 2019.

TLR Canada and its joint venture partners, Dream Unlimited Corp. and Kilmer Group, continue to advance the design and entitlements on
Block 8/20, the first phase to be developed as rental, in the historic Distillery District neighbourhood. Block 8/20 is part of the Province of
Ontario’s Affordable Housing Lands Program and contains a mix of market-rate and affordable housing on a 70/30 basis, respectively. Block
8/20 is also being designed by COBE (the same architect as The James) along with a leading Toronto-based architect. Design development
of Block 8/20 is expected to be completed by the second quarter of 2019 with construction expected to commence in the second half of the
same year. Discussions with the City of Toronto on design and massing of the next phase, Blocks 3/4/7, commenced in the first quarter of 2019.

At 8 Gloucester, prominently located within Toronto’s Yonge and Bloor submarket, design development advanced rapidly following the site
acquisition in the second quarter of 2018. TLR Canada and its co-developer, Angel Developments Inc., are working with two high-profile
Canadian architecture firms to advance design development and site demolition is expected to commence in the second half of 2019.

Subsequent to year-end, TLR Canada announced its participation in a partnership with TAS Design Build and an institutional investor to
develop and manage a mixed-use project in downtown Toronto. The 1.3-acre site is located at the corner of Labatt Avenue and River Street
(7 Labatt Avenue and 77 River Street) and is immediately adjacent to the Regent Park redevelopment, a 69-acre master-planned community
that has been transformed into a vibrant, family-oriented urban community. The site is zoned for an approximately 560,000-square-foot
building that will include approximately 300 purpose-built rental units and 295 for-sale condominium units, as well as 65,000 square feet
of commercial space. Construction is expected to commence in mid-2020 and project completion is anticipated in late 2023.

The addition of the project at 7 Labatt brings Tricon’s Toronto-based multi-family development pipeline to over 3,000 units with an estimated
total cost of approximately $1.2 billion (C$1.6 billion). TLR Canada’s equity stake in this portfolio remains at approximately 30%.

Tricon Lifestyle Rentals — U.S.
In the U.S,, Tricon is pursuing an orderly exit of its two multi-family development projects, targeting to complete the sale in 2019 with the
net proceeds to be used primarily to reduce Tricon’s corporate debt.

At The McKenzie, adjacent to Dallas’ affluent Highland Park neighbourhood, construction of the 183-unit rental building was substantially
completed during the fourth quarter of 2018. Lease-up continued during the quarter, and the building was 32% leased as of year-end with
average in-place rent per square foot “10% higher than underwriting. In the fourth quarter of 2018, The McKenzie won the “Multifamily
Development of the Year: High Rise” award from D Magazine. The building is currently in an active sale process.

At The Maxwell in Frisco, Texas, construction of the 325-unit rental building continued as planned with substantial completion of construction
expected in early 2019. Lease-up continued during the quarter, and the building was 25% leased as of year-end with average in-place rent
per square foot largely in line with underwriting.
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4.3 Tricon Housing Partners

A summary of THP’s principal investments is presented in the following table with a reconciliation of the investment balances to AUM (KPI
measure; refer to Section 8.2). The table also summarizes historical and projected cash flows to Tricon arising from the sale of finished lots,
homes and condominium units from THP’s projects generally over the next eight to ten years (forward-looking information; refer to page 23).

THP principal investments Tricon’s cash flows

THP’s  Outstanding Principal Projected

share of invested Investment Unfunded investment distributions

(in thousands Investment capital atfairvalue  commitment AUM Advances Distributions  net of advances
of U.S. dollars) Vehicle (at cost) (A) (B) (ARYE] to date to date’ remaining®
THP1US 68.4% $ 57,051 $ 86,067 $ 9,429 $ 95496 $ 271,222 $ 280,574 $ 108,960
THP2 US 7.5% 21,958 26,265 2,988 29,253 22,012 28 20,115
THP3 Canada 10.2% 7,343 6,599 5,526 12,125 9,135 6,580 7,683
Trinity Falls 100.0% 85,119 111,342 6,301 117,643 85,449 - 290,473
Separate accounts? 12.9% 55,548 67,215 8,229 75,444 72,113 33,213 127,645
Side-cars® 7.5% 20,775 10,076 2,735 12,811 20,878 1,848 22,238

Total $ 247,794 $ 307,564 $ 35,208 $ 342,772 $ 480,809 $ 322,243 $ 577,114

Adjusted EBITDA* — 2018

(12 months) $ 12517
As a % of invested capital
at December 31,2018 5%

1) Distributions include repayments of preferred return and capital.

2) Separate accounts include Cross Creek Ranch, Grand Central Park, Fulshear Farms, Trilogy at Verde River, Viridian, THP US SP1and THP US SP2.

) Side-cars include Trilogy at Vistancia West, Trilogy Lake Norman and Arantine Hills.

4) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure. Projected distributions are forward-looking information. Refer to page 23, Non-IFRS measures and forward-looking
statements.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, THP Adjusted EBITDA of $12.5 million represented a 5% net return on outstanding invested capital
at cost. As discussed in prior quarters, THP continued to experience higher construction costs and extended development timelines, driven
by labour constraints, lengthened municipal permitting and approvals, as well as increased competition for active-adult housing. These
challenges have generally pushed out development timelines and cash flows, resulting in lower fair value when discount rates are applied
to determine the present value. Despite this, net cash flows across the aggregate portfolio remain largely unchanged.

From an operational perspective, highlights for THP’s principal investments include:

THP1 US

Over the course of 2018, THP1 US distributed $7.5 million to investors, including $5.1 million to Tricon. THP1 US investment income declined
year-over-year as a result of a lower investment balance as well as budget revisions reflecting delays in the timing of expected cash flows
from certain projects. As discussed in prior quarters, the budget revisions were driven by rising construction costs as a result of the aforemen-
tioned labour constraints and extended development timelines, as well as increased competition in the market for THP’s active-adult projects.
Despite these challenges, THP1 US is expected to continue to generate meaningful cash distributions in excess of $100 million to Tricon.

THP2 US

In 2018, THP2 US distributed $80.1 million to its investors. Of the total distributions, the two largest contributors were: (i) $33.6 million from the
sale of a multi-family development in Austin, Texas; and (i) $16.1 million from the sale of condominium units in a development in Mountain View,
California, which sold out during the year.

In spite of meaningful cash flow distributions from assets being harvested, the fund’s performance was negatively impacted by its co-invest-
ment in Arantine Hills, which has undergone unfavourable budget revisions in the fourth quarter as reflected in its annual appraisal, and its
investment in a public homebuilder whose stock has underperformed. See the discussion in the Side-cars section below.
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THP3 Canada

THP3 Canada distributed $38.6 million (C$52.7 million) to its investors during 2018, including $3.4 million (C$5.4 million) to Tricon. Of the total
distributions, $19.0 million (C$25.9 million) was generated from the Mahogany master-planned community development in Calgary, Alberta,
and $9.5 million (C$13.0 million) was generated from the sale of the fund’s interest in the Metrotown condominium development in Burnaby,
British Columbia.

Trinity Falls

At the Trinity Falls master-planned community in Dallas-Fort Worth, Texas, home and lot sales were tempered during the year while the
project executed a change in the product mix to deliver a greater number of smaller lots in response to increased demand for smaller and
more affordable homes. A total of 116 lots were sold to homebuilders and 181 homes were sold by homebuilders to end consumers in 2018
compared to 177 lots and 220 homes sold in 2017. The project plans to offer a range of smaller lots to homebuilders in early 2019 and its
grand reopening is currently scheduled for the second quarter of 2019.

Separate accounts

The Viridian master-planned community in Dallas-Fort Worth, Texas continued to perform as expected, with $24.4 million distributed to

its investors during 2018, including $4.4 million to Tricon. A total of 261 lots were sold to homebuilders and 357 homes were sold by home-
builders to end consumers in 2018 compared to 350 lots and 291 homes sold in 2017. Total lot closings in 2018 were moderately impacted
by development delays caused by inclement weather during the second half of 2018; however, these delayed lot closings are projected to
occur in the first quarter of 2019. In 2018, Viridian was ranked in the “Top 50 Top-Selling Master-Planned Communities” according to RCLCO.

The Cross Creek Ranch master-planned community in Houston, Texas distributed $37.2 million to its investors in 2018, including $3.7 million
to Tricon, and the project continued to perform in line with expectations. A total of 413 lots were sold to homebuilders and 455 homes were
sold by homebuilders to end consumers in 2018 compared to 417 lots and 397 homes sold in 2017, and the community was once again ranked
in the “Top 50 Top-Selling Master-Planned Communities” according to RCLCO.

At the Grand Central Park master-planned community in Houston, Texas, a total of 123 lots were sold to homebuilders and 117 homes were
sold by homebuilders to end consumers in 2018 compared to 161 lots and 98 homes sold in 2017. Notwithstanding the improvement in home
sales year-over-year, lot sales were tempered in 2018 as the project continued to optimize its branding and marketing and improve its amenity
package. This includes supplementing existing amenities and designing a large central amenity centre that is currently planned to break
ground in the second half of 2019.

Trilogy at Verde River, an active-adult community in Phoenix, Arizona, achieved 107 home sales in 2018 compared to 103 home sales in 2017
and distributed $13.2 million in 2018, including $1.3 million to Tricon. To address increased competition in the active-adult market, new home
designs and a new lower-priced affordable product line, the “Resort Collection”, will be launched in the first quarter of 2019.

Side-cars

Trilogy at Vistancia West, an active-adult community in Phoenix, Arizona, distributed $13.5 million in 2018, including $1.0 million to Tricon.
The project recorded 156 homes sales in 2018 compared to 123 homes sales in 2017. Strong sales have been driven by the opening of the
new model gallery adjacent to the community amenity centre at the end of 2017.

Trilogy Lake Norman, an active-adult community in Charlotte, North Carolina, distributed $5.9 million in 2018, including $0.4 million to Tricon.
The project’s home sales slowed marginally in 2018 to 113 home sales from 123 home sales in 2017. Sales declines were a result of price
increases, lower buyer traffic and higher competition in the market. In response to increased competition, a new lower-priced affordable
product line called “The Freedom Collection” was launched near the end of the year.

Arantine Hills (marketed as “Bedford”), a master-planned community in Corona, California, held its grand opening at the end of the third
quarter of 2018 and attracted approximately 2,000 visitors. The clubhouse, model homes and main entryway are now complete. Buyer traffic
and home sales throughout the Inland Empire region are significantly below expectations, which was reflected in the project’s muted 18 home
sales in 2018 following the grand opening. Consequently, the budget has been revised to reflect a general market softening resulting from
lower buyer traffic and home sales, lot sale delays and price reductions.
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Total project inventory and sales summary
The following table outlines total units and total units sold (since inception of the THP Investment Vehicles included below) by market and by

type to provide a comprehensive view of home and lot sales.

Total units? Total units sold
Single- Multi- Single- Multi-

Land family Homes family Retail Land family Homes family Retail
As of December 31, 2018’ (acres) lots (units) units (sq. ft.) (acres) lots® (units) units (sq. ft.)
us. 1,091 26,648 6,387 1,537 46,173 334 7,403 4,088 1,422 32,373
Canada 268 3,661 1,034 5,097 195,060 202 2,797 799 5055 181,860
Total units 1,359 30,309 7,421 6,634 241,233 536 10,200 4,887 6,477 214,233
As of December 31, 2017
uU.s. 1,097 26,477 6,138 1,556 46,053 309 6,358 3,447 1,260 32,373
Canada 267 3,691 1,045 5,384 195,060 197 2,656 718 5066 181,860
Total units 1,364 30,168 7,183 6,940 241,113 506 9,014 4,165 6,326 214,233

(1) Total units and total units sold shown above include all projects in the Company’s active private Investment Vehicles under the THP investment vertical (THP1 US,

THP2 US, THP1 Canada, THP2 Canada, THP3 Canada, Trinity Falls, separate accounts and side-cars).

(2) Total units are based on the developers’ current business plans for all projects and may change as a result of business plan updates.

(3) Single-family lots sold as of December 31, 2017 were adjusted from 7,171 (previously reported) to 6,358 to exclude lots sold prior to THP’s acquisition of the

Cross Creek Ranch project.
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4.4 Private Funds and Advisory

Tricon manages $1.7 billion of third-party capital across Tricon’s TAH, TLR and THP investments through private commingled funds, separate
accounts, syndicated investments and joint ventures. Tricon manages capital on behalf of Canadian, American and international institutional
investors, including pension funds, sovereign wealth funds, insurance companies, endowments and foundations, as well as family offices and
high net-worth accredited investors. The Company’s strategy is to continue raising and managing third-party capital in each of its investment
verticals to scale its business faster, generate additional fee income and drive shareholder value. Tricon manages third-party capital for seven
of the top 50 investors listed on the PERE 2018 Top 50 Global Investor report published in November 2018.

In the second quarter of 2018, Tricon formed a joint venture with two leading institutional investors, TAH JV-1. The launch of this joint venture
is a significant milestone as it helps further institutionalize the burgeoning single-family rental asset class and broadens the appeal of Tricon
and its housing-centric investment strategy to private investors. TAH JV-1 adds immediate scale to Tricon’s Private Funds and Advisory
business and is expected to augment investment returns with management and performance fees. With the launch of TAH JV-1, Tricon now
has third-party capital under management in all three of its investment verticals.

The table below provides a summary of Investment Vehicles in which Tricon manages third-party capital, along with a reconciliation of the
investment balances to AUM (KPI measure; refer to Section 8.2).

Third-party investments

Outstanding Share of Unfunded
invested capital outstanding equity Third-party
(at cost) project debt commitment’ AUM
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Q 9 G Q + G + G
TAH? $ 96,130 $ 142,837 $ 322,102 $ 561,069
TLR Canada® 94,440 106,787 73,301 274,528
THP
THP1US 21,081 - 3,361 24,442
THP2 US 112,443 - 26,219 138,662
Separate accounts* 342,852 — 61,999 404,851
Side-cars® 186,979 - 25,111 212,090
THP1 Canada - - - -
THP2 Canada 18,947 - 1,034 19,981
THP3 Canada 61,727 - 9,585 71,312
Canadian syndicated investments® 10,025 - 4,989 15,014
Subtotal — THP $ 754,054 $ - $ 132,298 $ 886,352
Total — Third-party investments $ 944,624 $ 249,624 $ 527,701 $ 1,721,949

(1) Commitments to projects include guarantees made under loan agreements plus reserves. Project commitments can exceed total capitalization as a result
of reinvestment rights.

(2) TAH includes TAH JV-1. Third-party investors’ share of the outstanding debt includes their share of the TAH JV-1 warehouse credit facility and the TAH JV-1

subscription loan, the latter of which is a substitute for invested capital and can be replaced by equity funding at management’s discretion.

TLR Canada includes The Selby, The Taylor, The James, Shops of Summerhill, West Don Lands and 8 Gloucester.

Separate accounts include Cross Creek Ranch, Grand Central Park, Fulshear Farms, Trilogy at Verde River, Viridian, THP US SP1and THP US SP2.

Side-cars include Trilogy at Vistancia West, Trilogy Lake Norman and Arantine Hills.

Canadian syndicated investments include Heritage Valley, 5 St. Joseph and Mahogany.
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Third-party AUM at December 31, 2018 increased by $483.2 million or 39% to $1.7 billion compared to $1.2 billion as at December 31, 2017.
This increase was driven by $561.1 million of third-party capital from the formation of TAH JV-1, along with an increase of $95.7 million from
new acquisitions and incremental funded debt in TLR Canada. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in THP third-party AUM
as a result of distributions throughout the year.

During the fourth quarter of 2018, the Private Funds and Advisory business continued to generate contractual fees in its various investment
verticals. Details of contractual fees by Investment Vehicle are presented below, including management fees earned from private Investment
Vehicles, development fees earned through the TLR investments, development fees earned from Johnson, and performance fees.

For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance

Tricon American Homes

Management fees $ 1,003 $ $ 1,003 $ 2,050 $ - $ 2,050
Subtotal — TAH $ 1,003 $ - $ 1,003 $ 2,050 $ - $ 2,050
Tricon Lifestyle Rentals
Management fees 238 210 28 875 799 76
Development fees — TLR Canada projects 1,290 404 886 2,892 1,586 1,306
Subtotal — TLR $ 1,528 $ 614 $ 914 $ 3,767 $ 2,385 $ 1,382
Tricon Housing Partners
THP1US 212 224 (12) 826 969 (143)
THP2 US 709 731 (22) 2,863 2,902 (39)
Separate accounts 1,076 1,041 35 4,125 3,984 141
Side-cars 472 441 31 1,641 1,608 33
U.S. syndicated investments - 5 (5) 4 7 (3)
Trinity Falls 214 185 29 826 740 86
THP1 Canada = 3 3) 2 13 (11
THP2 Canada 82 87 (5) 338 339 (1)
THP3 Canada 235 362 (127) 1,316 1,388 (72)
Canadian syndicated investments 44 60 (16) 204 260 (56)
Management fees and

general partner distributions 3,044 3,139 (95) 12,145 12,210 (65)
Development fees — Johnson 2,533 3,524 (991) 9,610 10,279 (669)
Performance fees 1,457 54 1,403 2,775 525 2,250
Subtotal — THP $ 7,034 $ 6,717 $ 317 $ 24,530 $ 23,014 $ 1,516
Total revenue $ 9,565 $ 7,331 $ 2,234 $ 30,347 $ 25,399 $ 4,948

Private Funds and Advisory revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2018 totaled $9.6 million, an increase of $2.2 million from
$7.3 million in the same period in the prior year. The increase is largely attributable to:

+ Anincrease in revenue of $1.0 million from TAH as a result of management fees earned from the new single-family rental joint
venture (TAH JV-1).

+ Anincrease in revenue of $0.9 million from TLR as a result of additional development fees from new acquisitions during the year.

+ Anincrease in revenue of $0.3 million from THP primarily as a result of $1.3 million of performance fees earned from Mahogany, partially
offset by a $1.0 million decrease in Johnson development fees as a result of decreased lot and commercial land sales compared to the
same period in the prior year.

Private Funds and Advisory revenue for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 totaled $30.3 million, an increase of $4.9 million from
$25.4 million in the prior year, largely attributable to the factors listed above that impacted the quarterly variance.
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The table below provides a summary of projected returns for each Investment Vehicle along with projected performance fees that Tricon could
earn over time based on current business plans (forward-looking information; see page 23). Projected returns and estimated performance fees
are based on Tricon’s analysis of projected cash flows over their expected life for existing investments in its Investment Vehicles. Projected cash
flows are determined based on detailed quarterly and/or annual budgets prepared by management or third-party developers or in certain cases
based on third-party appraisals performed in the fourth quarter. Net returns presented reflect all fees paid by investors; the net return to any
given investor will vary depending on the individual investor's management fee and carried interest rate.

Projected returns performanE:t:’:eastig
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Gross ROI Gross IRR Net ROI Net IRR Tricon remaining
TAH' 2.2x 14% 2.0x 12% $ 32,000
TLR Canada? 2.5x 12% 2.4x 12% 10,213
THP
THP1US 2.1x 13% 1.7x 10% 12,940
THP2 US 1.6x 11% 1.4x 8% -
Separate accounts® 2.2x 14% 2.2x 14% 28,384
Side-cars* 1.4x 3% 1.4x 3% -
THP1 Canada 2.0x 15% 1.6x 1% 6,890
THP2 Canada 1.6x 13% 1.4x 9% -
THP3 Canada 1.9x 13% 1.5x 9% -
Canadian syndicated investments and other® 2.0x 10% 1.9x 9% 1,887
Subtotal — THP $ 50,101
Total $ 92,314

(1) TAH includes TAH JV-1.

(2) TLR Canada includes The Selby, The Taylor, The James, Shops of Summerhill, West Don Lands and 8 Gloucester. Performance fees are earned only on The Selby
and The Taylor.

(3) Separate accounts include Cross Creek Ranch, Grand Central Park, Fulshear Farms, Trilogy at Verde River, Viridian, THP US SP1and THP US SP2.

(4) Side-cars include Trilogy at Vistancia West, Trilogy Lake Norman and Arantine Hills.

(5) Canadian syndicated investments include Heritage Valley, 5 St. Joseph and Mahogany.

The Johnson Companies LP (“Johnson”)

The following table provides a summary of Johnson’s development advisory fees, as well as unit sales of lots and land parcels to homebuilders
which generate fee revenue for Johnson. In addition, the table provides total third-party home sales at Johnson’s active communities as an
indicator of end-consumer demand, which should ultimately drive homebuilder demand for future lot inventory within Johnson communities.
Note that the table below includes sales data for THP-owned projects, as well as those in which Tricon holds no ownership interest but does
receive lot development and/or commercial brokerage fees resulting from its majority ownership interest in Johnson.

For the periods ended December 31

Three months Twelve months
(in thousands of U.S. dollars,
except for land, lot and home sales) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
Development fees — Johnson $ 2,533 $ 3,524 $ (991) $ 9,610 $ 10,279 $ (669)
Lot closings 639 963 (324) 2,326 2,819 (493)
Land sales (acres) 10 77 (67) 13 524 (411)
Third-party home sales 752 795 (43) 3,820 3,293 527

Lot closings for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018 experienced a decline from the same periods in 2017, primarily due
to a large number of lot closings in late 2017 which resulted in relatively high land inventory among homebuilders across the portfolio going
into 2018. With more inventory on hand, a successful shift to smaller lots, and a strengthening housing market in Houston, Johnson communities
achieved record third-party home sales of 3,820 compared to 3,293 during 2017. Given that home sales in 2018 substantially exceeded lot
deliveries, Johnson is well positioned to accelerate lot production and drive development fees in 2019. Meanwhile, land sales for the three
and twelve months ended December 31, 2018 decreased largely as a result of a one-time 300-acre sale in the third quarter of 2017.

Johnson’s reputation for developing high-quality master-planned communities is further evidenced by Johnson being the only master-planned
community developer in the United States to have six MPCs ranked in the top 50 in 2018 according to Robert Charles Lesser & Co. Real Estate
Advisors and John Burns Real Estate Consulting. The increased demand for third-party homes at Johnson communities is expected to drive
strong future lot sales as builders replenish their land inventory.
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5. LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

5. Financing strategy
The Company seeks to maintain financial strength and flexibility by lowering its cost of debt and equity capital and minimizing interest rate
fluctuations over the long term. Some key elements of Tricon’s financing strategy are:

» Using various forms of debt such as floating rate bank financing and unsecured debentures with conversion features, and attempting
to stagger the maturity of its obligations.

* Using convertible debentures where the principal can be redeemed by the issuance of common shares at the Company’s option.

* Redeploying capital as its interests in investments are liquidated to capitalize on further investment opportunities with attractive returns.
* Where appropriate, raising equity through the public markets to finance its growth and strengthen its financial position.

5.2 Liquidity

Tricon generates substantial liquidity through:

» Cash distributions generated from the turnover of assets with shorter investment horizons.

» Syndicating investments to private investors and thereby extracting Tricon’s invested capital.

+ Stable cash flow received from our income-generating TAH investment vertical.

* Repatriation of equity extracted through refinancings within TAH.

* Fee income from our Private Funds and Advisory business.

To enable us to react to attractive investment opportunities and deal with contingencies when they arise, we typically maintain sufficient
liquidity at the corporate level and within our key investment platforms. Our primary sources of liquidity consist of cash and a corporate
credit facility.

Working capital
As at December 31, 2018, Tricon had a net working capital surplus of $12.5 million, reflecting current assets of $26.5 million, offset by payables
and accrued liabilities of $14.1 million.

5.3 Capital resources

Debt structure

Management mitigates interest rate risk by maintaining the majority of its debt at fixed rates. The impact of variable interest rate increases
or decreases is discussed in the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements. Management also mitigates its exposure to fixed-rate
interest risk by staggering maturities with the objective of achieving even, annual maturities over a ten-year time horizon to reduce Tricon’s
exposure to interest rate fluctuations in any one period. The Company’s long-term debt structure is summarized in Section 3.2.

The Company provides non-recourse guarantees for certain TAH indebtedness and provides limited financial guarantees for all land and
construction financing under TLR.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all of its financial covenants.
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Equity issuance and cancellations

The Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”) provides eligible holders of common shares with the opportunity to reinvest their
cash dividends paid on the Company’s common shares to purchase additional common shares at a price equal to the average market price
(as defined in the DRIP) on the applicable dividend payment date, less an applicable discount of up to 5% determined by the Board from
time to time. In the current quarter, the Board approved a 1% discount.

On October 4, 2017, the Company announced that the Toronto Stock Exchange had approved its notice of intention to make a normal course
issuer bid to repurchase up to 2,700,000 of its common shares during the twelve-month period commencing October 6, 2017 (the “NCIB”).
To date, the Company has repurchased 1,414,831 of its common shares for C$15.0 million under the NCIB, of which 431,931 common shares
were repurchased during the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 for $3.7 million (C$4.6 million). Common shares that are purchased
under the NCIB are cancelled by the Company.

On October 9, 2018, the Company completed the redemption of its outstanding 5.60% convertible unsecured subordinated debentures due
March 31, 2020. See Section 3.2 for further details.

As of December 31, 2018, there were 143,246,968 common shares issued by the Company, of which 143,011,130 were outstanding and
235,838 shares were reserved to settle restricted share awards in accordance with the Company’s Restricted Share Plan.

6. NON-IFRS MEASURES

The Company has included in this MD&A certain supplemental measures of performance, including those described below. We utilize these
measures in managing the business and evaluating its performance. Management believes that adjusted EBITDA in particular (and the other
non-IFRS measures listed below) is an important indicator of the Company’s ability to generate liquidity through operating cash flows to fund
future working capital needs, service outstanding debt, and fund future capital expenditures. We believe that providing these performance
measures on a supplemental basis is helpful to investors in assessing the overall performance of the Company’s business. Refer to the
discussion of our use of non-IFRS measures on page 23.

In preparing the adjusted financial information presented in this section, management has eliminated both non-recurring and non-cash items
to present a normalized picture of the Company’s financial performance. The measures used include:

« Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to shareholders of Tricon before
income tax (from both consolidating and investment entities), interest (from both consolidating and investment entities), amortization,
stock option expense, transaction costs and non-recurring and non-cash expenses.

« Adjusted net income is defined as net income (loss) from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to shareholders of Tricon
before transaction costs and non-recurring and non-cash expenses.

» Adjusted basic EPS is defined as adjusted net income divided by the weighted average basic common shares outstanding in the period.
Adjusted diluted EPS is defined as adjusted net income, plus the interest expense recognized on any dilutive convertible debt (net of the
tax impact of that interest), divided by the weighted average diluted common shares outstanding in the period, assuming the conversion
of all dilutive convertible debt. See the notes to the table entitied Consolidated statements of income in Section 3.1 for a description of
the potential dilutive impact of outstanding convertible debt.
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The table below provides a breakdown of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted net income.

For the periods ended December 31
(in thousands of U.S. dollars,
except per share amounts

Three months

Twelve months

which are in U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance
TAH Adjusted EBITDA (A $ 61,196 $ 83,475 $ (22,279) $ 310,710 $ 240,235 $ 70,475
TLR Adjusted EBITDA B) 11,444 9,070 2,374 17,724 13,529 4,195
THP Adjusted EBITDA (c) 2,477 1,393 1,084 12,517 17,696 (5,179)
TLC Adjusted EBITDA ® - 1,475 (1,475) 31,394 9,440 21,954
Fee income net of adjusted

non-controlling interest G 8,967 6,440 2,527 28,181 22,894 5,287
Adjusted EBITDA before

corporate overhead 84,084 101,853 (17,769) 400,526 303,794 96,732
Adjusted compensation expense G (1,755) (2,811) 1,056 (26,730) (26,811) 81
General and administration expense (2,658) (2,086) (572) (9,800) (7,274) (2,526)
Adjusted EBITDA 79,671 96,956 (17,285) 363,996 269,709 94,287
Stock option expense (255) (138) (117) (1,180) (1,078) (102)
Adjusted interest expense G (27,258) (26,493) (765) (107,806) (85,565) (22,241)
Adjusted amortization expense @ (1,190) (747) (443) (3,778) (2,966) (812)
Adjusted net income before taxes 50,968 69,578 (18,610) 251,232 180,100 71,132
Adjusted income tax expense 0 (4,852) (10,092) 5,240 (26,557) (26,474) (83)
Adjusted net income $ 46,116 $ 59,486 $ (13,370) $ 224,675 $ 153,626 $ 71,049
Adjusted basic EPS attributable

to shareholders of Tricon $ 032 $ 044 $ (0.12) $ 1.64 $ 1.21 $ 043
Adjusted diluted EPS attributable

to shareholders of Tricon $ 030 $ 039 $ (0.09) $ 1.45 $ 1.10 $ 035
Weighted average shares

outstanding — basic 143,911,890 134,369,333 9,542,557 137,157,260 127,152,721 10,004,539
Weighted average shares

outstanding — diluted 162,455,879 161,802,950 652,929 162,112,882 148,756,608 13,356,274

Refer to Section 7 for detailed reconciliations of the non-IFRS measures marked “A” to “I” in the table above to net income determined

under IFRS.

+ For the three months ended December 31, 2018, Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $17.3 million or 18% to $79.7 million compared to
$97.0 million in the same period in the prior year. This decrease was mainly attributable to a reduction in TAH Adjusted EBITDA, which
included a $26.5 million decrease in fair value gain offset by a $6.7 million increase in NOI driven by rental revenue growth and cost
containment achieved across the TAH portfolio. The decrease in TAH Adjusted EBITDA was partially offset by increases in TLR and THP
Adjusted EBITDA, as a result of fair value gains recognized, along with an increase in fee income from new Investment Vehicles.

-+ For the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, Adjusted EBITDA increased by $94.3 million or 35% to $364.0 million compared to
$269.7 million in the prior year. This increase was mainly attributable to significant growth in TAH and TLC Adjusted EBITDA. TAH Adjusted
EBITDA growth was driven by a $36.5 million increase in fair value gain and a $36.7 million increase in NOI driven by the acquisition
of Silver Bay (full year of NOI from Silver Bay homes in 2018 versus eight months in 2017) as well as NOI growth achieved across the TAH
portfolio. The increase in TLC Adjusted EBITDA was a result of the gain on disposal and a fair value gain booked in the first quarter for
a total gain of $33.6 million before transaction costs.

+ Adjusted net income, which excludes non-recurring items, decreased by $13.4 million or 22% to $46.1 million for the three months ended

December 31, 2018 compared to $59.5 million for the same period in the prior year. The decrease is attributable to lower Adjusted EBITDA,
as discussed above, partially offset by lower adjusted income tax expense.
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» Adjusted net income increased by $71.0 million or 46% to $224.7 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 compared to
$153.6 million for the prior year. The increase is attributable to higher Adjusted EBITDA, partially offset by higher adjusted interest expense
as a result of: (i) a higher outstanding debt balance at TAH driven by the Silver Bay acquisition financing; and (ii) a higher outstanding
balance and higher effective interest rate on the corporate credit facility throughout the year.

+ Adjusted basic EPS decreased by $0.12 or 27% to $0.32 and increased by $0.43 or 36% to $1.64 for the three and twelve months ended
December 31, 2018, respectively, compared to $0.44 and $1.21in the same periods in the prior year. Adjusted diluted EPS decreased by
$0.09 or 23% to $0.30 and increased by $0.35 or 32% to $1.45 for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018, respectively,
compared to $0.39 and $1.10 in the same periods in the prior year. In the three months ended December 31, 2018, the decrease in Adjusted
basic and diluted EPS is attributable to lower Adjusted net income for the reasons noted above. In the twelve months ended December 31,
2018, the increase in Adjusted basic and diluted EPS is attributable to higher Adjusted net income for the reasons noted above, offset by
a higher weighted average share count primarily as a result of the common shares issued in May 2017, along with the inclusion of the
dilutive impact of all outstanding convertible debentures. In 2017, the 2022 convertible debentures were included on a weighted average

basis for the eight months they were outstanding during the year.

7. RECONCILIATION OF NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES

The tables below reconcile the adjusted non-IFRS financial measures presented in Section 6 to measures reflected in the Company’s

consolidated financial statements for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2018.

For the periods ended December 31

Three months

Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Net income $ 43,297 $ 25,724 $ 216,355 $ 69,348
Non-recurring adjustments:

Transaction costs at investment level 3,351 18,501 19,886 63,811
Transaction costs and formation costs (90) 832 90 3,167
Non-cash adjustments:

Non-controlling interest (199) (339) (404) (96)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) at investment level 3,362 205 4,455 (2,592)
Accrued LTIP expense' 6,611 1,803 8,965 1,211
Debentures discount amortization 647 1,175 4,104 3,949
Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (8,583) 13,413 (27,680) 23,276
Loss on debt extinguishment - - 5,349 -
Realized and unrealized foreign exchange expense (gain) 438 945 (1,511) 1,881
Tax effect of above adjustments (expense) (2,718) (2,773) (4,934) (10,329)
Adjusted net income? $ 46,116 $ 59,486 $ 224,675 $ 153,626
Add:

Stock option expense $ 255 $ 138 $ 1,180 $ 1,078
Adjusted interest expense? 27,258 26,493 107,806 85,565
Adjusted amortization expense? 1,190 747 3,778 2,966
Adjusted income tax expense? 4,852 10,092 26,557 26,474
Adjusted EBITDA? $ 79,671 $ 96,956 $ 363,996 $ 269,709

(1) Includes the estimate of the potential LTIP expense based on the fair value of assets within Investment Vehicles managed as required by IFRS.

(2) Non-IFRS measure; see further details in the following table, which describes reconciliation.
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For the periods ended December 31 Three months Twelve months

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Investment income — TAH per financial statements $ 38,159 $ 45,709 $ 218,932 $113,067

Interest expense 20,073 19,575 77,354 62,282

Transaction costs, non-recurring and non-cash expenses 3,351 18,241 14,813 63,396
Tax (recovery) expense (387) (50) (389) 1,490
TAH Adjusted EBITDA' (A) $ 61,196 $ 83,475 $ 310,710 $ 240,235
Investment income — TLR per financial statements $ 10,653 $ 5,950 $ 15,406 $ 12,391

Interest expense 940 32 1,247 128

Translation adjustment 2,941 157 3,735 (1,921)
Transaction costs, non-recurring and non-cash expenses - - 7 -
Tax (recovery) expense (3,090) 2,931 (2,671) 2,931

TLR Adjusted EBITDA! (B) $ 11,444 $ 9,070 $ 17,724 $ 13,529

Investment income — THP per financial statements $ 1,943 $ 1,236 $ 11,449 $ 18,209

Tax expense 13 109 348 158

Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 421 48 720 (671)
THP Adjusted EBITDA! G $ 2,477 $ 1,393 $ 12,517 $ 17,696

Net income from discontinued operations —

TLC per financial statements $ - $ 1,065 $ 23,127 $ 6,405
Interest expense - 854 1,623 3,383
Transaction costs and non-cash expenses - 260 5,066 415
Tax (recovery) expense - (704) 1,578 (763)
TLC Adjusted EBITDA' ® $ = $ 1,475 $ 31,394 $ 9,440
Contractual fees, GP distributions and performance fees

per financial statements $ 9,565 $ 7,331 $ 30,347 $ 25,399
NCI change per financial statements (199) (339) (404) (96)
NCI portion of amortization (399) (552) (1,762) (2,409)
Fee income net of adjusted non-controlling interest G $ 8,967 $ 6,440 $ 28,181 $ 22,894
Compensation expense per financial statements $ (8,621) $ (4,752) $ (36,875) $ (29,100)
Accrued LTIP expense 6,611 1,803 8,965 1,211
Stock option expense 255 138 1,180 1,078
Adjusted compensation expense’ G $ (1,755) $ (2,811) $ (26,730) $ (26,811)
Interest expense per financial statements $ (6,892) $ (7,207) $ (31,686) $ (23,721)
TAH interest expense (20,073) (19,575) (77,354) (62,282)
TLR interest expense (940) (32) (1,247) (128)
TLC interest expense - (854) (1,623) (3,383)
Debentures discount amortization 647 1,175 4,104 3,949
Adjusted interest expense’ (G) $ (27,258) $ (26,493) $ (107,806) $ (85,565)
Amortization expense per financial statements $ (1,589) $ (1,299) $ (5,540) $ (5,375)
NCI portion of Johnson’s amortization expense 399 552 1,762 2,409
Adjusted amortization expense’ @ $ (1,190) $ (747) $ (3,778) $ (2,966)
Tax expense per financial statements $ (5,498) $ (5,033) $ (22,757) $ (12,329)
TAH tax recovery (expense) 387 50 389 (1,490)
TLR tax recovery (expense) 3,090 (2,931) 2,671 (2,931)
THP tax expense (113) (109) (348) (158)
TLC tax recovery (expense) - 704 (1,578) 763
Tax expense on non-recurring and non-cash expenses (2,718) (2,773) (4,934) (10,329)
Adjusted income tax expense’ (1) $ (4,852) $ (10,092) $ (26,557) $ (26,474)

(1) ltems Ato | are first presented in the table in Section 6, above, and are non-IFRS measures. Refer to page 23 for a discussion of our use of non-IFRS measures.
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8. OPERATIONAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

8.1 Key performance indicators
The key performance indicators discussed throughout Section 4, above, for each of the Company’s investment verticals are defined
as follows:

Tricon American Homes

The Company reflects ongoing performance through investment income for TAH and reports changes in the underlying fair value of the
investments through TAH fair value adjustment, which includes the fair value of properties calculated based on Broker Price Opinion and
Home Price Index methodologies. However, the Company believes other information or metrics related to the net assets and operating
results of TAH are relevant in evaluating the operating performance of the assets underlying its TAH investment.

» Net operating income (NOI) represents total rental revenue, less rental operating expenses and property management fees. NOI excludes
overhead expenses such as general and administration expenses, professional fees (such as legal costs), as well as non-core income or
expenses such as gains or losses on the disposition of homes.

* Net operating income (NOI) margin represents net operating income as a percentage of total revenue. Management believes NOI and
NOI margin are helpful to investors in understanding the core performance of TAH’s operations.

» Occupancy rate represents the number of homes in the portfolio that are leased at period-end, including those pending move-in with
signed lease agreements, as a percentage of total rental homes in the portfolio (total homes managed less homes held for sale).

« Stabilized occupancy represents the number of homes in the portfolio that are leased at period-end, including those pending move-in
with signed lease agreements, as a percentage of total rental homes, and excludes vacant rental homes that are currently under renovation
or within 60 days of completion of renovation.

* Annualized turnover rate during the period represents the number of move-outs divided by average rental homes (total homes managed
less homes held for sale) in the period, annualized for a twelve-month period.

* Average monthly rent represents average expected monthly rent on all leased homes.

« Average rent growth during the period represents the average of all the rent growth achieved on lease renewals and new leases.
Management believes occupancy and TAH’s ability to increase rent directly affect investment income available to Tricon, Tricon’s
shareholders and third-party investors.

* Funds from operations (“FFO”) represents investment income — TAH plus third-party investor interests, excluding fair value gains and other
non-cash items such as deferred taxes, periodic non-cash accrual adjustments, depreciation and deferred financing costs. Core funds from
operations (“Core FFO”) represents FFO less transaction costs and non-recurring items. Management believes these metrics are helpful
to investors in understanding TAH’s business and comparing its performance to industry peers.

Tricon Lifestyle Rentals
Development yield represents the estimated stabilized net operating income of a property following its completion as a percentage of its
estimated total development cost.

Tricon Housing Partners

Gross IRR represents an aggregate, annual, compounded, gross internal rate of return after taking into account the effects of investment-level
debt financing. Similarly, gross ROI represents an aggregate return on investment after investment-level debt financing. Net IRRs and ROls
reflect all fees paid by investors. IRRs and ROlIs are based in part on Tricon’s projected cash flows for incomplete projects in its Investment
Vehicles. Such figures are derived through a process where the developers for projects in Tricon’s Investment Vehicles prepare for Tricon
detailed quarterly and annual budgets and cash flow projections for all incomplete projects, which are based on current market information
and local market knowledge and, upon receipt of such information, Tricon reviews the information and makes necessary adjustments based
on its experience, including making provisions for necessary contingencies or allowances when appropriate. Management believes IRRs and
ROIs are important measures in assessing the financial performance of its Investment Vehicles. Without such measures, investors may receive
an incomplete overview of the financial performance of such Investment Vehicles. Investors are, however, cautioned that these measures are
not appropriate for any other purpose.
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8.2 Assets under management

Management believes that monitoring changes in the Company’s AUM is key to evaluating trends in revenue. Principal investment AUM
and Private Funds and Advisory AUM are the main drivers for investment income and fee income. Growth in AUM is driven by principal
investments and capital commitments to our managed Investment Vehicles by private investors.

For reporting purposes, AUM includes balance sheet capital invested in the Company’s principal investment segment and capital managed
on behalf of third-party investors in its Private Funds and Advisory business, and is calculated as follows:

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Principal Investments

Tricon American Homes - Fair value of investment properties and investment properties held for sale before projected
future disposition fees plus unfunded commitment

Tricon Lifestyle Rentals - Fair value of development/investment properties plus unfunded commitment
Tricon Housing Partners « Fair value of invested capital plus unfunded commitment
Tricon Lifestyle Communities « Fair value of assets including in-place leases and park assets

(disposed of on June 29, 2018)

Private Funds and Advisory

Commingled funds « During the investment period, AUM = capital commitment

« After the investment period, AUM = outstanding invested capital

Separate accounts/side-cars/ «  TAH/TLR Canada — Outstanding invested capital and project-level funded debt plus unfunded
syndicated investments/ commitment less return of capital

joint ventures «  THP — Outstanding invested capital and unfunded commitment less return of capital
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9. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES, CONTROLS
AND PROCEDURES, AND RISK ANALYSIS

9.1 Revenue, investments and fair value determination
The following table summarizes the investment income and revenue earned from the Company’s investments and activities.

TOTAL REVENUE AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Revenue

Contractual fees - Asset management fees from managing third-party capital invested through private
Investment Vehicles within TAH, TLR and THP

« Development management and advisory fees from The Johnson Companies LP

« Development management fees generated from TLR Canada projects

General partner distributions - Distributions from managing third-party capital within the THP3 Canada commingled fund

Performance fees « Performance fees from private Investment Vehicles

Investment income

Investment income — TAH « Realized rental income net of expenses from leasing single-family rental homes

« Unrealized investment income from changes in the fair value of the single-family rental homes

Investment income — TLR « Realized rental income net of expenses from leasing rental units within multi-family
apartment/development projects

« Unrealized investment income from changes in the fair value of the apartment/development
projects

Investment income — THP « Realized cash distributions and interest earned from investments and co-investments
in for-sale housing private Investment Vehicles and direct investments into projects

« Unrealized gains as a result of changes in the fair value of such investments based
on expected cash flows

Investment income from « Realized rental income net of expenses from leasing pads within manufactured housing
discontinued operations — TLC communities

« Unrealized investment income from changes in the fair value of the underlying properties

« Realized investment income from the sale of the underlying properties

The Company manages third-party capital across its TAH, TLR and THP investments through private commingled funds, separate accounts,
syndicated investments and joint ventures. Tricon manages capital on behalf of Canadian, American and international third-party institutional
investors, including pension funds, sovereign wealth funds, insurance companies, endowments and foundations, as well as family offices
and high net-worth accredited investors. Our objective in our Private Funds and Advisory business is to earn:

« Contractual fees, general partner distributions and performance fees from asset management of capital invested through private
Investment Vehicles, including private commingled funds, separate accounts or joint ventures, side-cars and syndicated investments.
Refer to Section 1.1 for a list of active investments.

« Development management and related advisory fees through Tricon’s subsidiary, Johnson, a developer of master-planned communities.
We view these fees as a means of enhancing returns from certain THP investments.

* Development management fees generated by TLR Canada projects. We view these fees as a means of enhancing returns from
TLR Canada investments.

The Company also earns investment income through distributions and changes in the fair value of its investment verticals.
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Tricon American Homes (“TAH”)

Investment income is comprised of: (i) realized rental income net of expenses from leasing single-family rental homes; (ii) property manage-
ment fees, acquisition fees and construction management fees from assets managed on behalf of third-party investors; and (iii) investment
income from changes in the fair value of single-family rental homes. The fair value of TAH homes is based on the Broker Price Opinion (“BPO”)
methodology and supplemented by the Home Price Index (“HPI”) methodology. TAH typically obtains a BPO for a home once every three
years or when a home is included in a new debt facility. Once a BPO is obtained, the fair value of the home is adjusted using the HPI on

a quarterly basis until it is replaced by a more recent BPO. Refer to Note 5 in the financial statements for specific details of these valuation
methodologies.

Tricon Lifestyle Rentals (“TLR”)

Investment income is comprised of realized rental income net of expenses from leasing multi-family units and investment income from
changes in the fair value of the projects in which it invests. Fair value changes are based on the income approach, the direct comparison
approach or the discounted cash flow methodology, depending on the stage of development and completion. For projects still in the
development phase, and similar to THP (as described below), the discount rate is adjusted downwards as development and construction
milestones are achieved and the project is de-risked under the discounted cash flow methodology. Refer to Note 5 in the financial statements
for specific details of these valuation methodologies.

Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”)

Investment income is earned from its share of the changes in the net asset value (“NAV”) of each of the Investment Vehicles in which it invests.
The NAV of a THP Investment Vehicle is based on the net amount advanced to the respective investment plus net earnings of one or more

of the following types:

Investment income — Investment Vehicles make investments through both joint venture equity investments and participating debt invest-
ments. With respect to joint venture investments, investment income is comprised of realized cash distributions received from each project
and unrealized gains as a result of changes in the fair value of the investment based on expected future net cash flows. Participating debt
investments generate investment income comprised of interest earned at the stated rate of fixed interest, as well as unrealized fair value gains
in respect of the “participating” or “contingent” portion of the loans, which is also valued based on the fair value of expected future cash flows
(in excess of loan principal and accrued interest). Any amount of cash distribution received in excess of loan principal and accrued interest

will be recognized as realized interest income.

Project-related fees — In the majority of its investments, an Investment Vehicle earns a combination of commitment/acquisition fees and
asset management/loan maintenance fees from the respective project entity (e.g., a project-specific partnership entered into with the local
developer). Commitment and acquisition fees are typically calculated on the basis of the Investment Vehicle’s capital commitment and are
payable upon closing of the investment. Asset management and loan maintenance fees are typically charged on the basis of the outstanding
investment in a particular transaction at any given time and are typically paid quarterly over the life of the investment.

The reported fair value of the Company’s THP investments is based on its ownership share of the net asset value in each Investment Vehicle
in which it invests, and that is typically determined using a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) methodology. The DCF analysis involves modelling
developers’ cash flows to determine the quantum and timing of project funding requirements and cash distributions to the Investment Vehicle.
Estimates of developers’ cash flows are based on detailed quarterly and annual budgets and are required to determine the Investment
Vehicle’s eventual returns on its investments and, for participating debt investments, may include contingent interest if the developers’
projects generate returns that exceed the underlying contractual interest.

The developer may redeploy project cash flows into subsequent project phases and only distribute excess cash to the Investment Vehicle
over the life of the project. In determining the discount rate to be utilized, the risks associated with entitlement, sales and construction are
taken into account. Entitlement risk relates to the ability to obtain the entitlements necessary to develop the underlying project as underwritten.
Sales risk correlates to the ability to generate the projected underwritten revenues and the time required to do so. Construction risk relates to
determining the costs associated with developing the project and, if required, obtaining financing. Upon project entitlement, the discount rate
used is the lower of 20% and the expected return for the project. Such discount rate is periodically updated to reflect the market conditions
as well as stage of the development project. The initial discount rate is then reduced by 2.5% as each of the following development milestones
is achieved: commencement of sales, commencement of construction, and achieving 75% of project sales. Therefore, the discount rate is
generally reduced as the various risks are mitigated over time.

The Company’s Valuation Committee evaluates other risk factors impacting each project, including market risks and risks relating specifically
to the development partner, and may adjust the discount rate to reflect these additional risks if the Valuation Committee believes there
is uncertainty that the project will generate the expected returns.
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9.2 Accounting estimates and policies

Accounting estimates

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that may differ from actual results. Refer to the notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements for details on critical accounting estimates.

Accounting standards adopted in the current year

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company has adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”), on a modified retrospective
basis. The IFRS 15 revenue recognition model requires management to exercise significant judgment and make estimates that affect revenue
recognition. In applying IFRS 15, the Company used the practical expedient in the standard that permits contracts which were completed prior
to the transition date to not be assessed. There were no adjustments to the balance sheet as at January 1, 2018 as a result of adopting IFRS 15.

Revenue from contracts with customers comprises contractual fees, general partner distributions and performance fees. The Company earns
contractual fees by managing an investment portfolio of residential real estate assets on behalf of and in partnership with third-party investors
in the U.S. and Canada. Specifically, the Company earns contractual fees in exchange for providing asset management services to private
Investment Vehicles. This includes managing investments in Tricon American Homes, Tricon Lifestyle Rentals and Tricon Housing Partners.
Asset management services are satisfied over time and revenues for such services are recognized as services are provided. The Company
recognizes revenue based on the best estimate of the amounts earned for those services, which typically reflects annual contractual fees of
1-2% of committed or invested capital throughout the life of the Investment Vehicles. Contractual fees earned in exchange for providing asset
management services are billed on a quarterly basis.

The Company also earns contractual fees in exchange for providing development management and advisory services to third parties and/or
related parties through The Johnson Companies LP (“Johnson”) and Tricon Development Group Ltd. (“TDG”). Development management

and advisory services are satisfied over time. Revenues are recognized based on the best estimate of the amounts earned for those services,
which typically reflects contractual fees of 2—4% of the sales price of single-family lots, residential land parcels and commercial land within
master-planned communities for Johnson, and 4-5% of overall development costs of purpose-built rental apartments for TDG. The Company
includes consideration in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant amount of the cumulative revenue
recognized will not reverse. Specifically for Johnson, consideration for these services is variable as it is dependent upon the occurrence

of a future event that is the sale of the developed property. Revenue is typically recognized as the development of the investment property

is complete, and control has been transferred to the respective buyer. Contractual fees earned in exchange for providing development
management and advisory services are billed upon the sale of the investment property.

For general partner distributions, the timing and pattern of revenue recognition are consistent with contractual fees earned from providing
asset management services.

The Company earns performance fees in exchange for providing asset management services to Investment Vehicles. Performance fees are
earned once targeted returns are achieved. Performance fees are calculated based on fixed percentages of the distributions of each of the
Investment Vehicles in excess of predetermined thresholds as outlined in the governing documents for the respective Investment Vehicle. The
Company includes consideration in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant amount of the cumulative
revenue recognized will not reverse. Consideration for these services is variable as it is dependent upon the occurrence of a future event that
is the repayment of investor capital and a predetermined rate of return. Revenue from performance fees is typically earned and recognized
towards the end of the life of the Investment Vehicle.

The Company is obligated to continue to provide asset management, development management and advisory services over the remaining
terms of the contracts with its customers. The Company will recognize revenue on these remaining performance obligations based on the
amounts determined in accordance with the above policy, at each reporting date. Determining the timing of the satisfaction of performance
obligations and estimating the transaction price are significant judgments applied. As it relates to the expected amount of revenue earned
for the performance of development management and advisory services, the Company uses the most likely amount method to estimate the
variable consideration to include in the transaction price. This is because the amount of revenue earned is dependent upon a future event
that is the sale of the developed properties.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), which replaced IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measure-
ment, effective January 1, 2018. IFRS 9 provides new guidance on the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting for
financial instruments in addition to clarification for the treatment of modifications of financial liabilities. The Company implemented the new
requirements for classification and measurement including impairment on January 1, 2018 retrospectively and elected not to restate compara-
tive periods. The adoption of the new classification requirements under IFRS 9 did not result in significant changes in measurement or the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities. The Company also applied related amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
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Classification and Measurement: IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the
business model in which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently classified and measured in one of three categories: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
and fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”"). Financial liabilities are also measured at fair value at initial recognition and subsequently
classified and measured in one of two categories: amortized cost or FVTPL. The following table summarizes the classification impacts upon
the adoption of IFRS 9.

Assets/Liabilities Classification under IAS 39 Classification under IFRS 9
Cash Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Amounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost

Equity investments FVTPL FVTPL

Debt investments FVTPL FVTPL

Amounts payable and accrued liabilities Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Dividends payable Other financial liabilities Amortized cost

Debt Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Derivative financial instruments FVTPL FVTPL

Impairment: IFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL’) model. The ECL model
requires considerable judgment, including consideration of how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which will be determined on

a probability-weighted basis. The new impairment model is applied, at each balance sheet date, to financial assets measured at amortized
cost or those measured at FVOCI, except for investments in equity instruments. The Company adopted the practical expedient to determine
ECL on amounts receivable using a provision matrix based on forward-looking macroeconomic information to estimate lifetime ECL. Given
the short-term nature of the Company’s amounts receivable, the low default rate and the creditworthiness of the counterparties, there was
no material impact on the carrying value of the Company’s amounts receivable on the adoption of IFRS 9.

Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company can no longer defer the recognition of a gain or loss from the modification to the terms
of borrowing during the year. Modification gains or losses are recognized over the remaining life of the borrowing by adjusting the effective
interest rate, on the basis that the terms and conditions of the facility remained largely unchanged. No refinancing occurred during 2018.

IFRS 9 also introduces a new hedge accounting standard. IFRS 9 requires the Company to ensure that hedge accounting relationships
are aligned with the Company’s risk management objectives and strategies and to apply a more qualitative and forward-looking approach
to assessing hedge effectiveness. The Company does not currently apply hedge accounting, and therefore is not impacted by this aspect
of IFRS 9.

IFRS 16, Leases

On January 13, 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”), which will replace IAS 17, Leases. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recog-
nition, measurement and disclosure of leases. IFRS 16 provides revised guidance on identifying a lease and on separating lease and non-lease
components of a contract. IFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model for all lessees and requires a lessee to recognize right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Under IFRS 16, lessor accounting for operating and finance leases will remain substantially unchanged. IFRS 16 is effective

for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier application permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15.

The Company has also early adopted IFRS 16 in its consolidated financial statements effective January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospec-
tive approach on transition, together with its adoption of IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 16 resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets and
liabilities on the Company’s existing leases as of January 1, 2018, as well as new leases entered into during the year. The Company used the
following practical expedients when following the modified retrospective approach:

» accounted for lease and non-lease components as a single lease component;

» used a single discount rate for a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
» applied IFRS 16 only to contracts previously identified as leases;

» excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset on transition;
* excluded short-term leases; and

* excluded low-value leases.

The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements as the Company had no
significant operating lease arrangements. The Company entered into a new lease arrangement during the year which has been accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 16, and is described in Note 12 of the consolidated financial statements.
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IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

In November 2016, the IFRS Interpretations Committee issued IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.

The interpretation clarifies that the date of foreign currency transactions for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. The adoption of IFRIC 22 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements as the Company has no significant foreign currency advance transactions with a third party.

Accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted

In June 2016, the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2, Share-Based Payments, addressing (i) certain issues related to the accounting

for cash-settled awards, and (ii) the accounting for equity-settled awards that include a “net settlement” feature in respect of employee
withholding taxes. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. The Company is currently reviewing
the amendment to assess the impact it may have upon adoption.

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that are expected to have
a material impact on the Company.

9.3 Controls and procedures

Pursuant to National Instrument 52-109 released by the Canadian Securities Administrators, the Company’s CEO and CFO have evaluated the
design and operating effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and the Company’s internal controls over financial
reporting for the year ended December 31, 2018. The CEO and CFO did not identify any material weaknesses in the Company’s system of
internal controls over financial reporting.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, there were no changes to policies, procedures and processes that comprise the system of internal
controls over financial reporting that may have affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Such controls and procedures are subject to continuous review and changes to such controls and procedures may require
management resources and systems in the future.

9.4 Transactions with related parties
Tricon had a ten-year sub-lease commitment on the Company’s previous head office premises with Mandukwe Inc., a company owned
and controlled by a director of the Company. The sub-lease was terminated as at June 30, 2018.

Senior management of the Company also own units, directly or indirectly, in the various Tricon private funds, as well as common shares
and debentures of the Company.

Refer to the related party transactions and balances note in the consolidated financial statements for further details.

9.5 Dividends
On February 25, 2019, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of seven cents per share in Canadian dollars payable on or after April 15,
2019 to shareholders of record on March 31, 2019.

9.6 Compensation incentive plan
The Company’s annual compensation incentive plans include an annual incentive plan (“AlP”) and a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”).

The Company’s AIP has been amended beginning in 2018 and provides for an aggregate bonus pool based on the sum of all employees’
individual AIP targets, which are market-benchmarked. This pool is then subject to an adjustment factor, subject to the Board’s discretion,

of between 50% and 150%, based on achievement of Company performance objectives determined by the Board at the beginning of each
year. The final pool is then allocated among employees based on individual and collective performance. AIP awards will be made in cash and
equity-based grants, with the proportion of equity-based awards being correlated to the seniority of an individual’s role within the Company.

LTIP expense is generated from two sources: (i) 50% of the Company’s share of performance fees or carried interest from Investment Vehicles,
paid in cash when received; and (ii) 15% of THP1 US investment income, payable in DSUs which vest over a five-year period.

Complete details concerning the Company’s compensation plans are set out in the Company’s most recent Management Information Circular,
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and on the Company’s website at www.triconcapital.com.
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9.7 Risk definition and management

There are certain risks inherent in the Company’s activities and those of its investees, including the ones described below, which may impact
the Company’s performance, the value of its investments and the value of its securities. The risks described below are not the only ones
facing the Company and holders of common shares. Additional risks not currently known to us or that we currently consider to be immaterial
may also affect our activities and those of our investees.

General risks
The following risks may affect the Company as a whole and may be relevant to the activities of its investees across all of its investment verticals.

General economic conditions

The success of our business is highly dependent upon conditions in the Canadian and United States real estate markets (and in particular

the residential sector) and economic conditions throughout North America that are outside our control and difficult to predict. Factors such

as interest rates, housing prices, availability of credit, inflation rates, energy prices, economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including laws
relating to taxation), trade barriers, currency exchange rates and controls, and national and international political circumstances (including wars,
terrorist acts or security operations) could have a material negative impact on the value of our investments and our financial performance.

Unpredictable or unstable market conditions, adverse economic conditions, or volatility in the capital markets may result in reduced opportuni-
ties to find suitable risk-adjusted investments to deploy capital, may reduce the market value of our assets under management, and may

make it more difficult for the Company and its investment vehicles to exit and realize value from existing real estate investments, any of which
could materially adversely affect our revenues, the value of our investments, and our ability to raise and deploy new capital and sustain our
profitability and growth.

Real estate industry conditions

The residential real estate industry is cyclical and is significantly affected by changes in general and local economic and industry conditions,
such as employment levels, availability of financing for homebuyers, interest rates, consumer confidence, levels of new and existing homes
for sale, demographic trends and housing demand. In addition, an oversupply of new homes or alternatives to new homes, such as resale
homes, including homes held for sale by investors and speculators, foreclosed homes and rental properties, may reduce the ability to rent or
sell residential properties, depress prices and reduce margins from the rental and sale of residential properties. Conversely, if property prices
in target markets increase at a rate faster than rents, this could result in downward pressure on gross rental yields and impact the ability to
make acquisitions. Any of these factors could negatively impact the value of the Company’s investments and its financial performance.

Builders, developers and renovators are also subject to risks related to the availability and cost of materials and labour, and adverse weather
conditions that can cause delays in construction schedules and cost overruns. Furthermore, the market value of undeveloped land, buildable
lots and housing inventories can fluctuate significantly as a result of changing economic and real estate market conditions and may result

in impairment charges. If there are significant adverse changes in economic or real estate market conditions, residential properties may have
to be sold at a loss, rented at less than expected rates, or held longer than planned. These circumstances can result in losses in a poorly
performing investment or market. If market conditions deteriorate, some of the Company’s investments may be subject to impairments and
write-off charges, adversely affecting the Company’s financial results.

Portfolio concentration

Although our investments span numerous markets across North America, real estate is a local business, and our revenues are directly
and indirectly derived from investments in residential real estate located in our primary geographic markets. A prolonged downturn in the
economies of these markets, or the impact that a downturn in the overall national economies of Canada or the United States may have
upon these markets, could negatively impact the value of our investments and our financial performance.

Furthermore, because we primarily invest in residential real estate (as compared to a more diversified real estate portfolio), a decrease
in demand specifically for residential real estate could adversely affect the value of our investments and our financial performance.

Competition

The real estate investment business is competitive and each segment of our business is subject to competition in varying degrees. We
compete on the basis of a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the quality of our employees, transaction execution, innovation and
reputation. We compete in pursuit of investor capital to be invested in our securities and investment vehicles and also in acquiring investments
in attractive assets. Competition for investor capital, in particular, is intense and investors are increasingly seeking to manage their own assets
or reduce their management fees. Further, our competitors may have certain competitive advantages, including greater financial, technical,
marketing and other resources, more personnel, less onerous regulatory requirements, or a lower cost of capital, and access to funding
sources or other resources that are not available to us. These pressures, or an increase in competition, could result in downward pressure

on revenues, which could, in turn, reduce operating margins and thereby reduce operating cash flows and investment returns, and negatively
affect our overall financial condition.
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Furthermore, competition may affect the performance of investments in our investment verticals. Numerous developers, managers and
owners of properties compete with the Company’s investees in seeking attractive tenants and home purchasers. This competition could have
an impact on the performance of the Company’s investments. Furthermore, there is significant competition for suitable real property invest-
ments, with other investors seeking similar investments to those targeted by the Company and its investees. A number of these investors may
have greater financial resources than those of the Company, or operate without the same investment or operating restrictions. An increase in
competition for real property investments may increase purchase prices, diminish the number of suitable investments available, and reduce
the ability to achieve optimal portfolio size or expected yields, which could impact the Company’s investments and financial performance.

The residential development, homebuilding, renovation and rental industries are themselves highly competitive. Residential developers,
homebuilders, renovators and operators compete not only for homebuyers and/or tenants on the basis of price and product offering, but

also for desirable properties, building materials, labour and capital. Competitive conditions in the industry could result in: difficulty in acquiring
suitable properties at acceptable prices; increased selling or rental incentives; lower sales volumes and prices; higher vacancy; lower profit
margins; development yields; impairments in the value of inventory and other assets; increased construction costs; and delays in construction.
These factors may negatively impact the Company’s investments and financial performance.

Investment pipeline

An important component of residential real estate investment performance is the ongoing availability of attractive investment opportunities.
If we are not able to find sufficient residential real estate investments in a timely manner, our investment performance could be adversely
affected. Furthermore, if we do not have sufficient investment opportunities, we may elect to limit our growth and reduce the rate at which
we attract third-party capital, which could impact our assets under management and revenues. Finally, a scarcity of desirable investment
opportunities may lead us to make investments with lower expected returns than those we have historically targeted. Any of these factors
could negatively impact our financial condition.

Long investment periods

The investment horizons in each of our principal investment verticals are relatively long (refer to Section 1.2, How we invest and create value).
These extended timelines increase the risk that circumstances will arise which delay investment realization, and that markets may deteriorate
between the time of our initial investment and our exit. This may be the result of many factors that present themselves over the duration of an
investment, including local and overall market and economic conditions, increasing competition over time, market value fluctuation and chang-
ing interest rates. Delays or market deterioration over time could have an adverse effect on the returns from our investments, our fee revenue,
and our financial condition.

Liquidity risk

Residential real estate investments generally cannot be sold quickly, particularly if local market conditions are poor. As a result, the Company
and its investees may not be able to enter, exit or modify investments promptly in response to economic or other conditions. This inability

to promptly reallocate capital or exit the market in a timely manner could adversely affect the Company’s financial results and investment
performance. Additionally, financial difficulties of other property owners resulting in distressed sales could depress real estate values in the
markets in which we invest. These restrictions could reduce our ability to respond to changes in the performance of our investments and
could adversely affect our financial condition and results.

Transaction execution

Before making investments, we conduct extensive due diligence reviews that we deem reasonable and appropriate based on the facts

and circumstances applicable to each investment. Our due diligence process includes in-depth reference checks of developers (where
applicable), environmental audits, market analysis, site analysis, financial and construction cost analysis and legal review. When conducting
due diligence, we may be required to evaluate important and complex business, financial, tax, accounting, environmental and legal issues.
Outside consultants, legal advisors, accountants and investment banks may be involved in the due diligence process in varying degrees
depending on the type of investment. Nevertheless, when conducting due diligence and making an assessment regarding an investment,

we rely on the resources available to us, including information provided by the developer or operating partner (where applicable) and, in some
circumstances, third-party investigations. The due diligence investigation that we carry out with respect to any investment opportunity may not
reveal or highlight all relevant facts that may be necessary or helpful in evaluating such investment opportunity. Moreover, such an investiga-
tion will not necessarily result in the investment being successful. Unknown factors or unforeseen risks may cause investment performance

to fall short of expectation and may negatively impact the value of our investments and our financial performance.

Rising interest rates

Rising interest rates, decreased availability of mortgage financing or of certain mortgage programs, higher down payment requirements or
increased monthly mortgage costs may increase the cost of capital for the Company and its investees, and may lead to reduced demand for
new home sales and resales and mortgage loans, which could have a material adverse effect on the value of our investments, our investment
prospects, liquidity and financial performance.
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Sustaining growth

Our continuing growth has caused, and if it continues will continue to cause, significant demands on our legal, accounting and operational
infrastructure, and increased expenses. In addition, we are required to continuously develop our systems and infrastructure in response

to the increasing sophistication of the residential real estate investment industry, the investment management market, and legal, accounting
and regulatory developments.

Our future growth will depend, among other things, on our ability to maintain an operating platform and management systems sufficient to
address our growth, and will require us to incur additional expenses and to commit additional senior management and operational resources.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to manage our expanding operations effectively or that we will be able to continue to grow,
and any failure to do so could adversely affect our ability to generate revenue and control our expenses.

Insurance

We have various types of insurance, including errors and omissions insurance and general commercial liability insurance. Also, relevant
insurance is arranged through our investment verticals in order to protect the value of the underlying investments. The adequacy of insurance
coverage is evaluated on an ongoing basis, including the cost relative to the benefits. However, there can be no assurance that potential
claims or losses will not exceed the limits, or fall outside the scope, of available insurance coverage or that any claim or claims will be
ultimately satisfied by an insurer. A loss or judgment in excess of available insurance or in respect of which insurance is not available could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and the value of our investments. There can be no assurance that insurance
coverage on favourable economic terms will continue to be available in the future.

Environmental risk

Underlying all of our activities is investment in real property that is subject to various Canadian and United States federal, provincial, state

and municipal laws relating to environmental matters. These laws could hold developers or property owners liable for the costs of removal
and remediation of certain hazardous substances or wastes released or deposited on properties or disposed of at other locations. The failure
to remove or remediate such substances, if any, could adversely affect the developer’s or owner’s ability to sell the properties or to borrow
using real estate as collateral, and could potentially result in claims or other proceedings. We are not aware of any material non-compliance
with environmental laws in respect of our investments or by the developers in which our investment vehicles invest. We are also not aware

of any material pending or threatened investigations or actions by environmental regulatory authorities, or any material pending or threatened
claims relating to environmental conditions, in connection with any of the residential real estate in which we or our investment vehicles invest.
Environmental laws and regulations can change rapidly and may impose more stringent environmental laws and regulations in the future.
Compliance with more stringent environmental laws and regulations could have an adverse effect on a developer or a particular development
project or our own investments, which, in turn, could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and investment performance.

Conflicts of interest

Some of the parties in which and with which we currently invest may have competing interests in the markets in which Tricon invests. While
the Company takes precautions and negotiates contractual restrictions in definitive legal documentation in order to avoid such conflicts,
conflicts of interest may nonetheless arise and may have an adverse effect on the Company’s financial performance and the value of our
investments.

Certain of the directors and officers of the Company may also serve as directors and/or officers of other companies and consequently the
possibility exists for such directors and officers to be in a position of conflict. Any decision made by any such director or officer involving the
Company is to be made in accordance with their duties and obligations to deal fairly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the
Company, but there can be no assurance that a conflict of interest will not have an adverse effect on the Company or its financial condition.

Management team

The Company’s executive officers and other senior management have a significant role in our success and oversee the execution of

our strategy. Our continued ability to respond promptly to opportunities and challenges as they arise depends on cooperation across our
organization and our team-oriented management structure, which benefits greatly from management continuity. Our ability to retain our
management group or attract suitable replacements, should any members of the management group leave, is dependent on, among other
things, the competitive nature of the employment market and the career opportunities that we can offer. Ensuring that we continue to pay
market compensation in order to retain key professionals may lead to increasing costs. We have experienced departures of key professionals
in the past and may do so in the future, and we cannot predict the impact that any such departures will have on our ability to achieve our
objectives. Competition for the best people is intense and the loss of services from key members of the management group or a limitation
in their availability could adversely impact our financial performance. Furthermore, such a loss could be negatively perceived in the
capital markets.
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Government regulation

The Company’s activities and those of its investees are subject to numerous regulations across various jurisdictions in North America.
Changes in legislation and regulation could result in increased costs and increased risk of non-compliance, which could adversely affect
the Company'’s financial condition and the value of its investments. For example, the City of Toronto introduced a new development charge
bylaw in 2018 which increased the quantum of fees collected from developers.

Certain jurisdictions have enacted residential tenancy legislation which imposes, among other things, rent control guidelines that limit the
ability to raise rental rates at residential properties. In addition to limiting the ability to raise rental rates, residential tenancy legislation in some
jurisdictions prescribes certain limitations on terminations of residential tenancies. While the Company’s overall exposure to such jurisdictions
is expected to be minimal, any limits on TAH’s or TLR’s ability to raise rental rates at their properties, or to terminate defaulting tenancies,

may adversely affect their financial performance.

Acquisitions and development projects undertaken by the Company’s investees may require zoning and other approvals from local govern-
ment agencies. The process of obtaining such approvals may take months or years, and there can be no assurance that the necessary
approvals for any particular project will be obtained. Holding costs accrue while regulatory approvals are being sought, and delays could
negatively impact investment performance.

Construction industry risks

The success of our investments and the successful performance of our investment vehicles is very often dependent on stability in the
construction industry. This industry has from time to time experienced significant difficulties in the supply of materials and services, including
with respect to: shortages of qualified trades people; labour disputes; shortages of building materials; unforeseen environmental and
engineering problems; and increases in the cost of certain materials. When any of these difficulties occur, it may cause delays and increase
anticipated costs, which could adversely affect the Company’s investment performance and financial condition.

Taxation risks

We endeavour to structure our investments and activities to be efficient under the prevailing U.S. and Canadian tax frameworks. Changes
in tax legislation or policy could adversely affect the after-tax return we can earn on our investments and activities, capital available for
investment (including from our institutional investors), and the willingness of investors to acquire our securities or invest in our investment
vehicles. A number of other factors may increase our effective tax rates, which would have a negative impact on our net income. These
include, but are not limited to, changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any reassessment of taxes by

a taxation authority.

Furthermore, tax changes (such as rising property and franchise tax rates) could impact the efficiency of the activities of our investees

(for example, the tax efficiency of TAH'’s operations) and could also impact the overall economic conditions relevant to the success of those
activities. For example, in the United States, the significant expenses of owning a home, including mortgage interest and state and property
tax, are generally deductible for tax purposes (subject to various limitations). The 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “TCJA”) reduced the tax
benefits for luxury homes but the mid-market and small homes were largely not impacted. The overall financial performance of our invest-
ments should have a limited negative impact from these and other similar tax changes.

The 2017 corporate tax rate reductions in the United States under the TCJA combined with the interest deductibility exemption for real estate
investments do not appear to have a negative impact on the Company’s effective tax rate or net income. Furthermore, the proposed tax
regulations that usually accompany any new tax legislation (such as the TCJA) were released in 2018 and support our initial views on the
limited impact on our investments. It is prudent for prospective investors to consult with their own tax advisor.

Divestitures

While the Company expects to divest certain of its non-core assets and business (including the two current U.S. development projects of
the TLR investment vertical), there is no assurance that these divestitures will be completed on terms favourable to the Company, or at all.
Accordingly, any opportunities for debt reduction resulting from these divestitures, the anticipated effects of these divestitures on the
Company’s leverage position, or any other anticipated benefits of the divestitures, including redeployment of divestiture proceeds, may
never be realized, or may not be realized to the extent the Company currently anticipates.
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Risks related to principal investments
In addition to the general risks described above, the following risks are inherent in our principal investments. Many of these risks relate
specifically to the activities of our investees and could have an impact on the value of the Company’s investments and our financial condition.

Risks related to Tricon American Homes and Tricon Lifestyle Rentals

Lease renewal and turnover risk

If a tenant decides to vacate a rental property, whether as a result of deciding not to renew their lease or by vacating prior to the expiry
of the lease, TAH or TLR may not be able to re-let that property in a short amount of time or at all. Additionally, even if they are successful
in renewing a lease or re-letting a property, the terms of the renewal or re-letting may be less favourable than the original terms.

The ability to rent residential properties is affected by many factors, including changes in general economic conditions (such as the availability
and cost of mortgage funds, vacancy rates, the availability of suitable potential tenants and the job market for prospective tenants), local
conditions (such as an oversupply of space or a reduction in demand for real estate in the area), government regulations, changing demo-
graphics or social preferences, competition from other available properties, and various other factors.

If TAH or TLR are unable to promptly renew leases or re-let properties, or if the rental rates upon renewal or re-letting are significantly lower
than expected rates, their financial performance may be negatively impacted, which may adversely affect the value of the Company’s
investments and financial performance.

Furthermore, if a significant number of tenants are unable to meet their obligations under their leases or if a significant number of properties
become vacant and cannot be re-leased on economically favourable terms, the TAH and TLR properties may not generate revenues
sufficient to meet operating expenses, including debt service and capital expenditures.

Resident default

The success of the Company’s rental income-producing verticals depends in large part upon the ability to attract and retain qualified
residents. This will depend, in turn, upon the ability to screen applicants, identify qualified residents, and avoid residents who may default.
The Company’s investees rely on information supplied by prospective residents in their rental applications to make leasing decisions, and
this information may not be accurate. Investees may not successfully screen applicants, and as a result, may rent to residents who default
on leases or fail to comply with the terms of the lease or applicable homeowners’ association regulations, which may negatively affect
financial performance, reputation, and the quality and value of our properties.

In the event of a resident default or bankruptcy, our investees may experience delays in enforcing their rights as landlord and obtaining
possession of the premises and incur legal, maintenance and other costs in protecting their investment. In addition, they will incur turnover
costs associated with re-leasing the property such as marketing and brokerage commissions, will not collect revenue while the property
sits vacant, and may be unable to re-lease the property at the rental rate previously received.

Reliance on vendors

Our investees rely on local vendors and service providers, including house renovation professionals, maintenance providers, leasing

agents and property management companies in situations where it is cost-effective to do so or if their internal staff is unable to perform
these functions. They generally do not have exclusive or long-term contractual relationships with any of these providers, and can provide

no assurance that they will have uninterrupted or unlimited access to their services. Furthermore, selecting, managing and supervising these
service providers requires significant management resources and expertise. Poor performance by service providers, especially those who
interact with residents in its properties, will reflect poorly on the Company and its investees, could significantly damage their reputation
among desirable residents and potentially impact investment performance. Moreover, notwithstanding efforts to implement and enforce
strong policies and practices regarding service providers, we may not successfully detect and prevent fraud, incompetence or theft by service
providers, which could expose us to liability or responsibility for associated damages and cause us to incur fines or penalties. In addition,
any delay in identifying a service provider or removal or termination of existing service providers would require our investees to seek new
vendors or providers, which could create delays and adversely affect their operating results.

Substitutions for rental properties

Demand for rental properties is impacted by and inversely related to the relative cost of home ownership. The cost of home ownership
depends upon, among other things, interest rates offered by financial institutions on mortgages and similar home financing transactions.

If the interest rates offered by financial institutions for home ownership financing remain low or fail to rise, demand for TAH properties may
be adversely affected.

An economic downturn may also impact job markets and the ability of tenants to afford the rents associated with certain rental properties,
which may result in increased demand for lower-cost rental options. Such a reduction in demand may have an adverse effect on TAH’s
revenues.
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Tenant relief laws

As the landlord of numerous properties, TAH is (and TLR is likely to be) involved from time to time in evicting residents who are not paying
their rent or who are otherwise in material violation of the terms of their lease. Eviction activities impose legal and managerial expenses that
increase costs and expose us to potential negative publicity. The eviction process is typically subject to legal barriers, mandatory “cure”
policies, internal policies and procedures and other sources of expense and delay, each of which may delay our ability to gain possession
and stabilize the property. Additionally, state, provincial and local landlord-tenant laws may impose legal duties to assist residents in relocating
to new housing, or restrict the landlord’s ability to remove the resident on a timely basis or to recover certain costs or charge residents for
damage residents cause to the landlord’s premises. Because such laws vary by state, province and locality, TAH and TLR must be familiar with
and take all appropriate steps to comply with all applicable landlord-tenant laws, and need to incur supervisory and legal expenses to ensure
such compliance. To the extent that our investees do not comply with state, provincial or local laws, they may be subjected to civil litigation
filed by individuals, in class actions or actions by state or local law enforcement and their and the Company’s reputation and financial results
may suffer. TAH and TLR may be required to pay their adversaries’ litigation fees and expenses if judgment is entered against them in such
litigation or if they settle such litigation.

Title risk

TAH’s acquisition of homes is often completed through a title company with an owner’s title insurance policy being obtained. However,

U.S. distressed single-family homes are often acquired through trustee auctions. Although TAH conducts due diligence and employs a title
company to review title on target housing assets prior to purchasing such homes, title on the homes purchased through foreclosure sales
and auctions is occasionally only assumed weeks after the purchase. Furthermore, an owner’s title insurance policy is not available to protect
against the inherent title risk arising through the foreclosure auction process. In the event that TAH fails to independently and properly assess
a title risk or fails to assume one or more homes because of such failed analysis, it may not achieve its expected returns or yields relating

to such investment.

Homeowners’ association issues

A number of the properties in TAH’s portfolio are located within homeowners’ associations (“HOAs”), which are private entities that regulate
the activities of and levy assessments on properties in a residential subdivision. HOAs in which TAH owns properties may have or enact
onerous or arbitrary rules that restrict its ability to renovate, market or lease its properties or require it to renovate or maintain such properties
at standards or costs that are in excess of its planned operating budgets. Such rules may include requirements for landscaping, limitations
on signage promoting a property for lease or sale, or the use of specific construction materials in renovations. Some HOAs also impose limits
on the number of property owners who may rent their homes, which if met or exceeded, would cause TAH to incur additional costs to resell
properties within the HOA and may also result in opportunity costs of lost rental income. Many HOAs impose restrictions on the conduct

of occupants of homes and the use of common areas, and TAH may have residents who violate HOA rules and for which it may be liable

as the property owner. The boards of directors of the HOAs in which TAH owns properties may not make important disclosures about the
properties or may block its access to HOA records, initiate litigation, restrict its ability to sell its properties, impose assessments, or arbitrarily
change the HOA rules. TAH may be unaware of or unable to review or comply with HOA rules before purchasing a property and any such
excessively restrictive or arbitrary regulations may cause it to sell such property at a loss, prevent it from renting such property, or otherwise
reduce its cash flow from such property, which would have an adverse effect on TAH’s returns from the property.

Government subsidies

Some of TAH’s rental income is derived from government-subsidized rental support programs, such as the Section 8 program operated by
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. A reduction or elimination of government funding of such programs could result
in higher rental turnover and downward pressure on rental rates, which could negatively impact TAH’s financial performance.

Guarantees of project debt

The Company may agree to provide financial assistance to the TLR project entities in which it invests. Such financial assistance may include
the provision of payment guarantees to a project entity’s lenders of acquisition financing, construction debt or long-term financing, and the
provision of construction completion guarantees. Such guarantees may be joint or several with other partners in a particular investment. The
Company’s and its partners’ guarantees of project-level obligations may not be in proportion to their respective investments in the project
entity. The provision of such guarantees may reduce the Company’s capacity to borrow funds under its separate credit facilities, which may
impact its ability to finance its operations. If such guarantees are called upon for payment or performance, they may have a negative impact
on the Company’s cash position and financial performance. If the Company provides a joint guarantee with an investment partner, a default
by the partner in its payment or performance obligation under the guarantee could cause the Company to pay a disproportionate amount

in satisfaction of the guarantee, which may have a negative impact on the Company’s cash position and financial performance.
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Risks related to Tricon Housing Partners

Operational and credit risks

On a strategic and selective basis, our private investment vehicles provide financing to develop properties. The residential real estate
development business involves significant risks that could adversely affect THP performance, including: the developer may not be able

to complete construction on schedule or within budget, resulting in increased debt service expense and construction costs and delays

in selling the properties; the developer may not be able to obtain, or may experience delays in obtaining, all necessary zoning, land-use,
building, occupancy and other governmental permits and authorizations for the properties; the developer may not be able to sell properties
on favourable terms or at all; construction costs, total investment amounts and THP’s share of remaining funding may exceed our estimates;
and projects may not be completed and delivered as planned.

THP investments are made through the financing of local developers, including Johnson, and, consequently, we rely to a great extent on
those developers to successfully manage their development projects. Furthermore, given the Company’s majority interest in Johnson, we rely
on Johnson’s ability to execute on portions of our investment strategy in THP. Investments in partnerships, joint ventures or other entities may
involve risks not present were a third party not involved, including the possibility that the development partners might become bankrupt or
otherwise fail to fund their share of required capital contributions. Additionally, the development partners might at any time have economic

or other business interests or goals which are inconsistent with our business interests or goals. In addition, we do not have sole control of
certain important decisions relating to these development properties, including decisions relating to: the sale of the development properties;
refinancing; timing and amount of distributions of cash from such development properties; and capital improvements. Any of these factors
could negatively impact the value of our investments and financial condition.

The above risks are also relevant to TLR.

Risks relating to Private Funds and Advisory
In addition to the general risks described above, the following risks are inherent in our Private Funds and Advisory business.

Formation of future investment vehicles

The ability to raise capital for any future investment vehicles remains subject to various conditions which Tricon cannot control, including the
negotiation and execution of definitive legal documentation and commitments made by third-party investors. There can be no assurance that
any capital will be raised through future investment vehicles or that any future warehoused investments of the Company will be acquired by
any other future vehicles. A failure to raise sufficient capital through other investment vehicles could result in lower assets under management
and impair our future revenues and growth.

Structure of future investment vehicles

There can be no assurance that the manner in which contractual fees, general partner distributions, performance fees, and/or investment
income are calculated in respect of future investment vehicles will be the same as the active investment vehicles, including with respect to
the treatment of the Company’s principal investments in such vehicles through Tricon Housing Partners. Any such changes could result in
the Company earning less contractual fees, general partner distributions and/or performance fees from the same assets under management
as compared to the active investment vehicles and could expose the Company’s principal investment in such future investment vehicles to
increased risk, including, but not limited to, the risk of reduced investment income (at comparable investment performance levels) and the
increased risk of loss of capital of the Company.

Ongoing investment performance

We believe that our ongoing investment performance is one of the most important factors for the success and growth of Private Funds and
Advisory activities. Poor investment performance could impair our ability to raise future private capital, which could result in lower assets
under management and could impact our ability to earn contractual fees. In addition, our ability to earn performance fees is directly related
to our investment performance and therefore poor investment performance may cause us to earn less or no performance fees.

Investment vehicle governance

The limited partnership agreements for certain active investment vehicles provide that the general partner or manager of the investment
vehicle may be removed by the limited partners in certain prescribed circumstances, including in some cases (and with the approval of

a prescribed number of limited partners), without cause. These agreements may not provide for termination payments to the general partner
or manager in the event of removal without cause. The removal of the general partner or the manager of an active investment vehicle prior
to the termination of such investment vehicle could materially adversely affect the reputation of Tricon, lower assets under management
and, as a result, reduce our contractual fees and performance fees.
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Capital commitment

The third-party investors in Tricon’s investment vehicles comprise a relatively small group of reputable, primarily institutional, investors.

To date, each of these investors has met its commitments on called capital and we have received no indications that any investor will be
unable to meet its capital commitments in the future. While our experience with our investors suggests that commitments will be honoured,
and notwithstanding the adverse consequences to a defaulting investor under the terms of the applicable investment vehicle, no assurances
can be given that an investor will meet its entire commitment over the life of an investment vehicle. A failure by one or more investors to
satisfy a drawdown request could impair an investment vehicle’s ability to fully finance its investment, which could have a material adverse
effect on the performance and value of that investment, which in turn could negatively impact the Company’s financial condition.

Risks related to a public company and common shares
Stock exchange prices
The market price of our common shares could fluctuate significantly as a result of many factors, including the following:

« economic and stock market conditions generally and specifically as they may impact participants in the real estate industry;
« our earnings and results of operations and other developments affecting our business;

« changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts following our common shares;

« earnings and other announcements by, and changes in market evaluations of, participants in the real estate industry;

* changes in business or regulatory conditions affecting participants in the real estate industry;

+ addition or departure of the Company’s executive officers and other key personnel;

« sales or perceived sales of additional common shares; and

« trading volume of the common shares.

In addition, the financial markets may experience significant price and volume fluctuations that affect the market prices of equity securities
of companies and that are unrelated to the operating performance, underlying asset value or prospects of such companies. Accordingly, the
market price of our common shares may decline even if our operating results or prospects have not changed. The value of the common
shares is also subject to market fluctuations based upon factors which influence the Company’s operations, such as legislative or regulatory
developments, competition, technological change and global capital market activity. As well, certain institutional investors may base their
investment decisions on consideration of the Company’s environmental, governance and social practices and performance against such
institutions’ respective investment guidelines and criteria, and failure to meet such criteria may result in limited or no investment in the
common shares by those institutions, which could adversely affect the trading price of the common shares.

Additional capital

The Company’s ability to carry on its business generally, and in particular to take advantage of investment opportunities, may require it to
raise additional capital. Additional capital may be sought through public or private debt or equity financings by Tricon or another Tricon entity
and may result in dilution to or otherwise may have a negative effect on existing Tricon shareholders. Further, there can be no assurances
that additional financing will be available to Tricon when required or desired by Tricon, on advantageous terms or at all, which may adversely
affect Tricon’s ability to carry on its business.

Additional indebtedness

The degree to which the Company is leveraged could have important consequences to the Company, including: (i) the Company’s future
ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures or other purposes may be limited; (ii) the Company may be
unable to refinance indebtedness on terms acceptable to the Company or at all; (iii) a significant portion of the Company’s cash flow

(on a consolidated basis) could be dedicated to the payment of the principal of and interest on its indebtedness, thereby reducing funds
available for future operations, capital expenditures and/or dividends on its common shares; and (iv) the Company may be more vulnerable
to economic downturns and be limited in its ability to withstand competitive pressures.
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Dividends

Holders of common shares do not have a right to dividends on such shares unless declared by the Board of Directors. Although the Board
has established a dividend policy authorizing the declaration and payment of dividends to holders of common shares on a quarterly basis,
the declaration of dividends is at the discretion of the Board of Directors even if the Company has sufficient funds, net of its liabilities, to pay
such dividends.

The Company may not declare or pay a dividend if there are reasonable grounds to believe that (i) the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realizable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate quantum of its liabilities. Liabilities of the Company will include those arising in the ordinary course of business and indebtedness.

Future sales and dilution

The Company’s articles permit the issuance of an unlimited number of common shares, and shareholders have no pre-emptive rights in
connection with such further issuances. The Board has the discretion to determine the price and the terms of issue of further issuances of
common shares and securities convertible into common shares. Any future issuances of common shares could be dilutive to shareholder
interests at the time of issuance.

Holding company

Tricon Capital Group Inc. is a holding company and a substantial portion of its assets are the equity interests in its subsidiaries. As a result,
investors are subject to the risks attributable to its subsidiaries. As a holding company, the Company conducts substantially all of its business
and makes its investments through its subsidiaries, which generate substantially all of its revenues. Consequently, the Company’s perfor-
mance and growth are dependent on the earnings of its subsidiaries and the distribution of those earnings to the Company. The ability of
these entities to pay distributions will depend on their operating results and may be subject to applicable laws and regulations and to
contractual restrictions contained in the instruments governing their debt. In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization of any of
the Company’s subsidiaries, holders of indebtedness and trade creditors will generally be entitled to payment of their claims from the assets
of those subsidiaries before any assets are made available for distribution to the Company.

Financial reporting and other public company requirements

The Company is subject to reporting and other obligations under applicable Canadian securities laws and Toronto Stock Exchange rules,
including National Instrument 52-109 — Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings. These reporting and other obligations
place significant demands on Tricon’s management, administrative, operational and accounting resources. Moreover, any failure to maintain
effective internal controls could cause the Company to fail to meet its reporting obligations or result in material misstatements in its consoli-
dated financial statements. If the Company cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, its reputation and operating results could
be materially harmed, which could also cause investors to lose confidence in the Company’s reported financial information, and could result
in a lower trading price of its common shares.

Management does not expect that Tricon’s disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all
errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and implemented, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
that its objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits
of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Due to the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues within a company are detected. The inherent limitations include the realities that judgments
in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented by
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the controls. Due to the inherent limitations
in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected in a timely manner or at all.
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10. HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table shows selected IFRS measures for the past eight quarters.

For the three months ended

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
per share amounts which are in U.S. dollars) 2018 2018 2018 2018
Financial statement results
Total revenue and investment income from

continuing operations $ 60,320 $ 65,889 $ 54,014 $ 95911
Investment income from discontinued operations

and gain from disposal of investments held for sale - - 19,602 1,568
Net income 43,297 33,826 39,763 99,469
Basic earnings per share 0.30 0.25 0.29 0.74
Diluted earnings per share 0.23 0.24 0.29 0.46
For the three months ended
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
per share amounts which are in U.S. dollars) 2017 2017 2017 2017
Financial statement results
Total revenue and investment income from

continuing operations $ 60,226 $ 69,408 $ 13,820 $ 25612
Total investment income from discontinued operations 1,187 2,262 1,613 2,319
Net income (loss) 25,724 57,512 (21,643) 7,755
Basic earnings (loss) per share 0.19 0.43 (0.17) 0.07
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.19 0.29 (0.17) 0.07

For the twelve months ended
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

which are in U.S. dollars, unless otherwise indicated) 2018 2017 2016
Financial statement results
Total revenue and investment income from

continuing operations $ 276,134 $ 169,066 $ 106,292
Total investment income from discontinued operations 21,170 7,381 5,108
Net income 216,355 69,348 59,760
Basic earnings per share 1.57 0.54 0.53
Diluted earnings per share 1.28 0.54 0.46
Dividends per share c$ 0.28 Cc$ 0.26 c$ 0.26

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2018 2017 2016
Total assets $ 1,687,662 $ 1,430,723 $ 972,744
Debt 374,716 383,604 168,857
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Tricon Capital Group Inc.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Tricon Capital Group Inc. and its subsidiaries (together, the Company) as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

What we have audited
The Company's consolidated financial statements comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2018 and 2017;

. the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the years then ended;

. the consolidated statements of changes in equity for the years then ended;

. the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant

accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and the information,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, included in the 2018
annual report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PwC Tower, 18 York Street, Suite 2600, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 0B2
T: +1 416 863 1133, F: +1 416 365 8215

“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express an opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. When we read the information, other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, included in the annual report,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
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obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Derek Hatoum.
;ﬁWW LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, Ontario
February 25, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Notes December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
ASSETS
Cash $ 7,773 $ 14,813
Amounts receivable 17,934 13,506
Prepaid expenses and deposits 819 622
Investments — Tricon American Homes 4,5 1,145,221 884,115
Investments — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 4,5 129,838 89,225
Investments — Tricon Housing Partners 4,5 307,564 306,637
Investments held for sale — Tricon Lifestyle Communities 4,5 - 62,074
Intangible assets 10 20,733 20,016
Deferred income tax assets 9 36,135 23,937
Other assets 1,12 21,645 15,778
Total assets $ 1,687,662 $ 1,430,723
LIABILITIES
Amounts payable and accrued liabilities 7 $ 6,429 $ 11,273
Dividends payable 13 7,350 6,906
Long-term incentive plan 16 21,407 15,224
Debt 6,12 374,716 383,604
Deferred income tax liabilities 9 81,226 47,927
Derivative financial instruments 8 3,936 37,494
Total liabilities 495,064 502,428
Equity
Share capital 14 793,521 713,553
Contributed surplus 17,468 16,754
Cumulative translation adjustment 19,525 19,184
Retained earnings 353,220 167,849
Total shareholders’ equity 1,183,734 917,340
Non-controlling interest 8,864 10,955
Total equity 1,192,598 928,295
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,687,662 $ 1,430,723
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Approved by the Board of Directors
David Berman Michael Knowlton
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts which are in U.S. dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

For the years ended Notes December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Revenue
Contractual fees 2,17 $ 26,256 $ 23,486
General partner distributions 2,17 1,316 1,388
Performance fees 2,17 2,775 525
30,347 25,399
Investment income
Investment income — Tricon American Homes 17,18 218,932 113,067
Investment income — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 17,18 15,406 12,391
Investment income — Tricon Housing Partners 17,18 11,449 18,209
245,787 143,667
276,134 169,066
Expenses
Compensation expense 16 36,875 29,100
General and administration expense 9,800 7274
Interest expense 6 31,686 23,721
Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 8 (27,680) 23,276
Loss on debt extinguishment 6 5,349 -
Transaction costs 90 3,167
Amortization and depreciation expense 5,540 5,375
Realized and unrealized foreign exchange (gain) expense (1,511) 1,881
60,149 93,794
Income before income taxes 215,985 75,272
Income tax expense — current 9 (639) (4,889)
Income tax expense — deferred 9 (22,118) (7,440)
Net income from continuing operations $ 193,228 $ 62,943
Investment income from discontinued operations and gain from
disposal of investments held for sale — Tricon Lifestyle Communities 17,18 21,170 7,381
Income tax recovery (expense) from discontinued operations — deferred 9 1,957 (976)
Net income from discontinued operations $ 23,127 $ 6,405
Net income $ 216,355 $ 69,348
Attributable to:
Shareholders of Tricon 215,951 69,252
Non-controlling interest 404 96
Net income $ 216,355 $ 69,348
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to net income
Cumulative translation reserve 341 473
Comprehensive income for the year $ 216,696 $ 69,821
Attributable to:
Shareholders of Tricon $ 216,292 $ 69,725
Non-controlling interest 404 96
Comprehensive income for the year $ 216,696 $ 69,821
Basic earnings per share attributable to shareholders of Tricon
Continuing operations 15 $ 1.40 $ 0.49
Discontinued operations 15 0.17 0.05
Basic earnings per share attributable to shareholders of Tricon 15 $ 1.57 $ 0.54
Diluted earnings per share attributable to shareholders of Tricon
Continuing operations 15 $ 1.14 $ 0.49
Discontinued operations 15 0.14 0.05
Diluted earnings per share attributable to shareholders of Tricon 15 $ 1.28 $ 0.54
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 15 137,157,260 127,152,721
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 15 162,112,882 129,302,655

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cumulative Total Non-
Share Contributed translation Retained shareholders’ controlling
Notes capital surplus adjustment earnings equity interest Total

Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 713,553 $ 16,754 $19,184 $ 167,849 $ 917,340 $ 10,955 $ 928,295
Net income - - - 215,951 215,951 404 216,355
Cumulative translation reserve - - 341 - 341 - 341
Distributions to

non-controlling interest - - - - - (2,495) (2,495)
Dividends/Dividend

reinvestment plan 13 9,138 - - (29,157) (20,019) - (20,019)
Repurchase of common shares 14 (2,310) - - (1,423) (3,733) - (3,733)
Debentures conversion 14 72,125 - - - 72,125 - 72,125
Stock options 16 470 1,147 - - 1,617 - 1,617
Shares repurchased and

reserved for restricted

share awards 16 (1,723) - - - (1,723) - (1,723)
Deferred share units 16 2,268 (433) - - 1,835 - 1,835
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 793,521 $ 17,468 $ 19,525 $ 353,220 $ 1,183,734 $ 8864 $ 1,192,598
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 567,677 $ 15,835 $ 18,711 $ 127,691 $ 729914 $ 13,747 $ 743,661
Net income - - - 69,252 69,252 96 69,348
Cumulative translation reserve - - 473 - 473 - 473
Distributions to

non-controlling interest - - - - - (2,888) (2,888)
Dividends/Dividend

reinvestment plan 13 6,608 - - (26,100) (19,492) - (19,492)
Repurchase of common shares 14 (5,249) - - (2,994) (8,243) - (8,243)
Debentures conversion 14 28 - - - 28 - 28
Bought deal offering 14 141,140 - - - 141,140 - 141,140
Stock options 16 722 329 - - 1,051 - 1,051
Deferred share units 16 2,627 590 - - 3,217 - 3,217
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 713,553 $ 16,754 $19,184 $ 167,849 $ 917,340 $ 10,955 $ 928,295

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the years ended Notes December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
Operating activities
Net income $ 216,355 $ 69,348
Adjustments for non-cash items
Amortization and depreciation expense 1,12 5,540 5,375
Deferred income taxes 9 20,161 8,416
Long-term incentive plan 16 10,254 3,447
Annual incentive plan 16 2,084 2,727
Amortization of debentures discount and issuance costs 5,922 5,509
Accrued investment income — Tricon American Homes 5 (218,932) (113,067)
Accrued investment income — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 5 (15,406) (12,391)
Accrued investment income — Tricon Housing Partners 5 (11,449) (18,209)
Accrued investment income from discontinued operations —
Tricon Lifestyle Communities 5 (21,170) (7,381)
Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 8 (27,680) 23,276
Loss on debt extinguishment 6 5,349 -
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss (164) 3,238
Distributions to non-controlling interest (2,495) (2,888)
Advances made to investments 5 (205,086) (390,030)
Distributions received from investments 5 148,227 97,855
(88,490) (324,775)
Changes in non-cash working capital items 21 (9,469) 5,744
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities from continuing operations (97,959) (319,031)
Advances made to investments held for sale 5 (304) (2,102)
Proceeds from disposal of investments held for sale 5 80,944 -
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities from discontinued operations 80,640 (2,102)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (17,319) (321,133)
Investing activities
Purchase of building, furniture, office and computer equipment,
and leasehold improvements 1 (7,087) (14,824)
Placement fees 10 (5,000) -
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (12,087) (14,824)
Financing activities
Lease payments 12 (104) -
Issuance (repurchase) of common shares — net of issuance costs 14 (5,456) 130,843
Debt financing, net 6 47,574 55,592
Issuance of convertible debentures — net of deferred financing costs 6 — 164,554
Dividends paid 13 (19,584) (18,032)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 22,430 332,957
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference on cash (64) 33
Change in cash during the year (7,040) (2,967)
Cash — beginning of year 14,813 17,780
Cash — end of year $ 7,773 $ 14,813
Supplementary information
Cash paid on
Income taxes $ 2,638 $ 4,370
Interest $ 26,900 $ 13,664

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2018
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

Tricon Capital Group Inc. (“Tricon” or the “Company”) is an investment manager focused on the residential real estate industry in North America.
The Company primarily invests through Tricon American Homes (“TAH”), Tricon Lifestyle Rentals (“TLR”) and Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”).

In Private Funds and Advisory, the Company manages third-party capital across its TAH, TLR and THP investments through private commingled
funds, separate accounts, syndicated investments and joint ventures (“Investment Vehicles”). Tricon manages capital on behalf of Canadian,
American and international institutional investors, including pension funds, sovereign wealth funds, insurance companies, endowments and
foundations, as well as family offices and high net-worth accredited investors. As general partner, sponsor and/or manager of various private
Investment Vehicles, the Company earns contractual fee revenue, namely asset management fees, general partner distributions, development
fees and performance fees.

Tricon was incorporated on June 16, 1997 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) and its head office is located at 7 St. Thomas Street,
Suite 801, Toronto, Ontario, M5S 2B7. The Company is domiciled in Canada. Tricon became a public company on May 20, 2010, and its
common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) (symbol: TCN).

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue on February 25, 2019 by the Board of Directors of Tricon.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation and measurement
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going-concern basis and have been presented in U.S. dollars, which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information is presented in thousands of U.S. dollars except where otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as
set out in the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying Tricon’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for (i) investments in Tricon
American Homes, Tricon Lifestyle Rentals, Tricon Housing Partners and Tricon Lifestyle Communities; and (ii) derivative financial instruments,
which are recorded at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The Company presents its consolidated balance sheet with its assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity. The notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements provide information on the Company’s current assets and current liabilities (Note 19). The Company believes this
presentation is more relevant given the nature of the Company’s operations, which do not have specifically identifiable operating cycles.

Accounting standards adopted in the current year

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company has adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”), on a modified retrospective
basis. The IFRS 15 revenue recognition model requires management to exercise significant judgment and make estimates that affect revenue
recognition. In applying IFRS 15, the Company used the practical expedient in the standard that permits contracts which were completed prior
to the transition date to not be assessed. There were no adjustments to the balance sheet as at January 1, 2018 as a result of adopting IFRS 15.

Revenue from contracts with customers comprises contractual fees, general partner distributions and performance fees. The Company earns
contractual fees by managing an investment portfolio of residential real estate assets on behalf of and in partnership with third-party investors
in the U.S. and Canada. Specifically, the Company earns contractual fees in exchange for providing asset management services to private
Investment Vehicles. This includes managing investments in Tricon American Homes, Tricon Lifestyle Rentals and Tricon Housing Partners.
Asset management services are satisfied over time and revenues for such services are recognized as services are provided. The Company
recognizes revenue based on the best estimate of the amounts earned for those services, which typically reflects annual contractual fees

of 1-2% of committed or invested capital throughout the life of the Investment Vehicles. Contractual fees earned in exchange for providing
asset management services are billed on a quarterly basis.

The Company also earns contractual fees in exchange for providing development management and advisory services to third parties and/or
related parties through The Johnson Companies LP (“Johnson”) and Tricon Development Group Ltd. (“TDG”). Development management

and advisory services are satisfied over time. Revenues are recognized based on the best estimate of the amounts earned for those services,
which typically reflects contractual fees of 2—4% of the sales price of single-family lots, residential land parcels and commercial land within
master-planned communities for Johnson, and 4-5% of overall development costs of purpose-built rental apartments for TDG. The Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2018
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)

includes consideration in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant amount of the cumulative revenue
recognized will not reverse. Specifically for Johnson, consideration for these services is variable as it is dependent upon the occurrence of

a future event that is the sale of the developed property. Revenue is typically recognized as the development of the investment property is
complete, and control has been transferred to the respective buyer. Contractual fees earned in exchange for providing development
management and advisory services are billed upon the sale of the investment property.

For general partner distributions, the timing and pattern of revenue recognition are consistent with contractual fees earned from providing
asset management services.

The Company earns performance fees in exchange for providing asset management services to Investment Vehicles. Performance fees are
earned once targeted returns are achieved. Performance fees are calculated based on fixed percentages of the distributions of each of the
Investment Vehicles in excess of predetermined thresholds as outlined in the governing documents for the respective Investment Vehicle. The
Company includes consideration in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant amount of the cumulative
revenue recognized will not reverse. Consideration for these services is variable as it is dependent upon the occurrence of a future event that
is the repayment of investor capital and a predetermined rate of return. Revenue from performance fees is typically earned and recognized
towards the end of the life of the Investment Vehicle.

The Company is obligated to continue to provide asset management, development management and advisory services over the remaining
terms of the contracts with its customers. The Company will recognize revenue on these remaining performance obligations based on the
amounts determined in accordance with the above policy, at each reporting date. Determining the timing of the satisfaction of performance
obligations and estimating the transaction price are significant judgments applied. As it relates to the expected amount of revenue earned
for the performance of development management and advisory services, the Company uses the most likely amount method to estimate the
variable consideration to include in the transaction price. This is because the amount of revenue earned is dependent upon a future event
that is the sale of the developed properties.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), which replaced IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measure-
ment, effective January 1, 2018. IFRS 9 provides new guidance on the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting

for financial instruments in addition to clarification for the treatment of modifications of financial liabilities. The Company implemented the new
requirements for classification and measurement including impairment on January 1, 2018 retrospectively and elected not to restate compara-
tive periods. The adoption of the new classification requirements under IFRS 9 did not result in significant changes in measurement or the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities. The Company also applied related amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

Classification and Measurement: IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business
model in which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently
classified and measured in one of three categories: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are also measured at fair value at initial recognition and subsequently classified and measured in one of two categories:
amortized cost or FVTPL. The following table summarizes the classification impacts upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

Assets/Liabilities Classification under IAS 39 Classification under IFRS 9
Cash Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Amounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost

Equity investments FVTPL FVTPL

Debt investments FVTPL FVTPL

Amounts payable and accrued liabilities Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Dividends payable Other financial liabilities Amortized cost

Debt Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Derivative financial instruments FVTPL FVTPL

Impairment: IFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL’) model. The ECL model
requires considerable judgment, including consideration of how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which will be determined on a
probability-weighted basis. The new impairment model is applied, at each balance sheet date, to financial assets measured at amortized cost
or those measured at FVOCI, except for investments in equity instruments. The Company adopted the practical expedient to determine ECL
on amounts receivable using a provision matrix based on forward-looking macroeconomic information to estimate lifetime ECL. Given the
short-term nature of the Company’s amounts receivable, the low default rate and the creditworthiness of the counterparties, there was no
material impact on the carrying value of the Company’s amounts receivable on the adoption of IFRS 9.
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Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company can no longer defer the recognition of a gain or loss from the modification to the terms of
borrowing during the year. Modification gains or losses are recognized over the remaining life of the borrowing by adjusting the effective
interest rate, on the basis that the terms and conditions of the facility remained largely unchanged. No refinancing occurred during 2018.

IFRS 9 also introduces a new hedge accounting standard. IFRS 9 requires the Company to ensure that hedge accounting relationships
are aligned with the Company’s risk management objectives and strategies and to apply a more qualitative and forward-looking approach
to assessing hedge effectiveness. The Company does not currently apply hedge accounting, and therefore is not impacted by this aspect
of IFRS 9.

IFRS 16, Leases

On January 13, 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”), which will replace IAS 17, Leases. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recog-
nition, measurement and disclosure of leases. IFRS 16 provides revised guidance on identifying a lease and on separating lease and non-lease
components of a contract. IFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model for all lessees and requires a lessee to recognize right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. Under IFRS 16, lessor accounting for operating and finance leases will remain substantially unchanged. IFRS 16 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier application permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15.

The Company has also early adopted IFRS 16 in its consolidated financial statements effective January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective
approach on transition, together with its adoption of IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 16 resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets and
liabilities on the Company’s existing leases as of January 1, 2018, as well as new leases entered into during the year. The Company used the
following practical expedients when following the modified retrospective approach:

* accounted for lease and non-lease components as a single lease component;

» used a single discount rate for a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
» applied IFRS 16 only to contracts previously identified as leases;

» excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset on transition;
* excluded short-term leases; and

* excluded low-value leases.

The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements as the Company had no
significant operating lease arrangements. The Company entered into a new lease arrangement during the year which has been accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 16, and is described in Note 12.

IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

In November 2016, the IFRS Interpretations Committee issued IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of foreign currency transactions for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. The adoption of IFRIC 22 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements as the Company has no significant foreign currency advance transactions with a third party.

Foreign currency translation

Currency translation

Foreign currency transactions (Canadian dollar) are translated into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the
measurement date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars using the historical
exchange rate or the exchange rate in effect at the measurement date for items recognized at FVTPL. Gains and losses arising from foreign
exchange are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

Subsidiaries
For subsidiaries that are required to be consolidated, the results and financial position of those subsidiaries with a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates. The Company uses monthly average exchange rates due to the volume
of transactions each month; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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The consolidated subsidiaries and their respective functional currencies are as follows:

Name

Functional currency

Tricon Holdings Canada Inc.

Tricon Housing Partners US Il (Canada) GP Ltd.

Tricon Capital GP Inc.

Tricon Housing Partners US Co-Investment Inc.

Tricon Housing Partners US Il A Incentive LP
Tricon Housing Partners US Il B/C Incentive LP
Tricon Holdings USA LLC

Tricon USA Inc.

Tricon JDC LLC

Tricon Development Group Ltd.

Tricon Luxury Residences PM Inc.

Tricon US TopCo LLC

Tricon US FTALLC

CCR Texas Agent Inc.

Tricon Head Office Inc.

SFR JV-1GP LLC

SFR JV-1Class B LLC

SFR JV-1 Class B REIT LLC

U.S. dollar
Canadian dollar
Canadian dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
Canadian dollar
Canadian dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
Canadian dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar
U.S. dollar

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity when the
Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through

its power over the entity.

The Company meets the definition of an investment entity and, as such, investments in subsidiaries (other than those that provide investment-

related services) are accounted for at FVTPL, rather than by consolidating them. All of the subsidiaries that provide investment-related services,
including the Company’s Canadian and U.S. asset management operating entities that earn contractual fees and performance fees from

private funds, continue to be consolidated.

The Company applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the

Company. The consideration includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Company recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The amounts attributable
to non-controlling interests are presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income below net income, and are included in the

equity section of the balance sheet.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on transactions between the companies are eliminated. Amounts

reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Company’s accounting policies.
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Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Associates that are held as part of the Company’s investment portfolio are carried on the balance
sheet at fair value even though the Company may have significant influence over those companies. This treatment is permitted by IAS 28,
Investment in Associates, which allows investments that are held by the Company to be recognized and measured at FVTPL and accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 9 and IFRS 13, with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Fixed assets

Building, furniture, office equipment, computer equipment and leasehold improvements are accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. On November 22, 2017, the Company acquired a commercial condominium, which serves as the Company’s new head office
in Toronto and has an estimated useful life of 30 years (Note 11). The building became available for use during the second quarter of 2018.
Depreciation expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the fixed assets, as follows:

Building 30 years
Furniture and office equipment 2-5years
Computer equipment 2-5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Estimated useful lives of fixed assets are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial year-end. As described below in Impairment
of non-financial assets, fixed assets are also reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is an indication of impairment.

Placement fees and rights to performance fees intangible assets

Placement fees represent costs incurred to secure investment management contracts. Performance fee rights represent costs incurred to
obtain rights to receive future performance fees from certain Investment Vehicles. These are accounted for as intangible assets carried at cost
less accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded using the straight-line method and is based on the estimated useful lives of the
associated Investment Vehicles, which is generally eight years.

Johnson intangibles

The contractual development fee intangibles from Johnson represent an estimate of the future management fees, development fees and
commissions that Tricon expects to collect over the lives of the projects that The Johnson Companies LP (“Johnson”) managed at the time of
the business combination. They are amortized by project over the estimated periods that the Company expects to collect these fees, which
is approximately seven years for management fees and lot development fees.

The customer relationship intangible from Johnson represents an estimate of the potential management fees, development fees and
commissions that Tricon could collect, based on potential future projects resulting from Johnson’s existing customer relationships at the
time of the business combination, and as such are considered to be definite-life intangibles.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the Company’s interest
in the net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to a cash-generating unit as it is the lowest
level within the Company at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impair-
ment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the greater of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortization and depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets are reviewed for possible impairment or reversal of a previously recorded impairment at each reporting date. Other
long-lived assets include goodwill and it is reviewed for impairment annually or at any time if an indicator of impairment exists.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Company’s financial assets are comprised of cash, amounts receivable and investments in Tricon American Homes, Tricon Lifestyle
Rentals and Tricon Housing Partners.

Transaction costs related to investments are expensed as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within
investment income.

Financial assets and liabilities classified and measured at FVTPL are presented within changes in operating assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Financial assets are derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the Company transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.

The Company assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether or not there is an expected credit loss with respect to amounts receivable.

If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the receivable
does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in net income.

Financial liabilities
Liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 are classified and subsequently measured at FVTPL or amortized cost, as appropriate.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

The Company’s financial liabilities consist of amounts payable and accrued liabilities, dividends payable, debt and derivative financial
instruments.

Interest expense is accounted for using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating

the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, which are comprised of the conversion and redemption options related to the convertible debentures,

are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with the
resulting gain or loss reflected in net income. Derivatives are valued using model calibration. Inputs to the valuation model are determined
from observable market data wherever possible, including prices available from exchanges, over-the-counter markets and consensus pricing.
Certain inputs may not be observable in the market directly, but can be determined from observable prices via model calibration procedures
or estimated from historical data or other sources.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible unsecured subordinated debentures that can be converted to
share capital at the option of the holder. The Company may settle the conversion right in cash in lieu of common shares unless the holder has
explicitly indicated that they do not wish to receive cash. The cash settlement amount depends on the weighted average trading price of the
common shares of the Company. This settlement option requires the Company to record the conversion option as a derivative financial
instrument measured at fair value at each reporting period, with changes in fair value recorded in net income.

In addition, the debentures contain a redemption option, subject to several conditions, which allows the Company to redeem the debentures,
in whole or in part, and the Company may settle the redemption option either in cash at par plus accrued and unpaid interest or in common
shares, with the number of common shares to be issued depending on the weighted average trading price of the common shares of the
Company. The redemption option is recorded as a derivative financial instrument measured at fair value at each reporting period, with
changes in fair value recorded in net income.

The host liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognized initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have
an equity conversion option. The conversion and redemption options are considered to be interrelated and therefore are treated as a single
compound embedded derivative which is recognized at fair value.

Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated entirely to the host liability component.
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported on the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right

to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company does not have any assets or liabilities that are subject to an offsetting agreement.

Leases
At the lease commencement date, a right-of-use asset and lease liability are recognized on the balance sheet for all leases, with the exception
of short-term and low-value leases.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs and subsequently accounted for at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of future lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease if that rate can
be readily determined; or if not, at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate for a similar term and with similar security.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
using the effective interest method.

Share capital
Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital to settle restricted share awards or for cancellation, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is determined using the weighted average number of shares outstanding including vested deferred share units,
taking into account on a retrospective basis any increases or decreases caused by share splits or reverse share splits occurring after the
reporting period, but prior to the financial statements being authorized for issue.

Diluted

The Company considers the effects of stock compensation and convertible debentures in calculating diluted earnings per share. Diluted
earnings per share is calculated by adjusting net income attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding based on the assumption of the conversion of all potentially dilutive shares on a weighted average basis from the
beginning of the year or, if later, the date the potential share compensation or convertible debentures were issued to the balance sheet date.

Dividends
Dividends on common shares are recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved
by Tricon’s Board of Directors.

Current and deferred income taxes
Income tax expense includes current and deferred income taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized directly in equity.

Current income taxes are the expected taxes payable on the taxable income for the year, using income tax rates enacted, or substantively
enacted, at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to income taxes payable in respect of previous years. The Company uses the
liability method to recognize deferred income taxes on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts. Deferred income tax assets are only recorded if it is probable that they will be realized. Enacted or substantively enacted
rates in effect at the consolidated balance sheet date that are expected to apply when the deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
tax liability is settled are used to calculate deferred income taxes.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Investment income
Investment income includes gains and losses arising on the remeasurement of investments at FVTPL, including foreign exchange gains
and losses.
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Compensation arrangements

Stock option plan

The Company accounts for its stock option plan by calculating the fair value of the options as of the grant date using a Black-Scholes option
pricing model and observable market inputs. This fair value is recognized as compensation cost using the graded vesting method over the
vesting period of the options.

Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”)
The Board of Directors approved a new Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”) in March 2018.

Aggregate AIP awards are calculated based on the sum of all employees’ individual AIP targets, which are market-benchmarked. This pool

is then subject to an adjustment factor, subject to the Board’s discretion, of between 50% and 150%, based on achievement of Company
performance objectives determined by the Board at the beginning of each year. The final pool is then allocated among employees based on
individual and collective performance. AIP awards will be made in cash and equity-based grants, with the proportion of equity-based awards
being correlated to the seniority of an individual’s role within the Company. Equity-based AIP awards are granted in a combination of restricted
shares, performance share units (“PSUs”), deferred share units (“DSUs”) and stock options, which vest in or over a one- or three-year period,
or another period as determined by the Board, pursuant to the Company’s Restricted Share Plan, Performance Share Unit Plan (“PSUP”),
Deferred Share Unit Plan (“DSUP”) and Stock Option Plan, respectively.

Long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”)

LTIP expense is generated from two sources: (i) 50% of the Company’s share of performance fees or carried interest from Investment Vehicles,
paid in cash when received; and (ii) 15% of THP1US investment income, payable in DSUs which vest over a five-year period. Amounts under
the LTIP are allocated among employees pursuant to the LTIP.

For the LTIP generated from the Company’s share of performance fees or carried interest from Investment Vehicles, the Company estimates
the LTIP liability by determining the performance fees at each reporting date based on the estimated fair value of the underlying investments.
Changes in the LTIP liability are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

For the LTIP generated from the Company’s investment income in THP1 US, as the deferred shares vest equally on the anniversary dates
following the grant date over a five-year period, the compensation expenses are recognized over a six-year period on a graded vesting basis.

Directors’ fees

In 2018, one-half of each independent Director’s base annual retainer was paid in DSUs which vest on the third anniversary of the grant date.
In addition, an independent Director may elect each year to receive a portion of the balance of his or her fees (including his or her base annual
retainer, any additional retainer, and meeting attendance fees) in DSUs, which DSUs vest immediately upon grant. Any remaining balance of
such fees not payable in DSUs is paid in cash. The DSUs granted to Directors are governed by the DSUP.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and: (i) represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; (ii) is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations; or (jii) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held or sale if it is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
usual and customary terms and the sale is highly probable. Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Company’s investment in Tricon Lifestyle Communities was classified as held for sale in early 2018 and disposed of on June 29, 2018.
The results of discontinued operations, net of tax, and net cash flows from discontinued operations are presented separately on the face of
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and consolidated statements of cash flows, respectively. The comparative periods
have been re-presented to conform to the current period presentation.

Reportable segments

Tricon is comprised of four reportable segments: Private Funds and Advisory (“PF&A”); and Principal Investing in Tricon American Homes,
Tricon Lifestyle Rentals and Tricon Housing Partners. The reportable segments are business units offering different products and services, and
are managed separately due to their distinct investment natures. These four reportable segments have been determined by the Company’s
chief operating decision makers (Note 17).
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Accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted

In June 2016, the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2, Share-Based Payments, addressing (i) certain issues related to the accounting for
cash-settled awards, and (ii) the accounting for equity-settled awards that include a “net settlement” feature in respect of employee withhold-
ing taxes. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. The Company is currently reviewing the
amendment to assess the impact it may have upon adoption.

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that are expected to have
a material impact on the Company.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and judgments applied that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below. Actual results could differ from these estimates and the
differences may be material.

Income taxes

The determination of the Company’s income and other tax liabilities requires interpretation of complex laws and regulations often involving
multiple jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining the Company’s consolidated income tax provision. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions. Furthermore, deferred income
tax balances are recorded using enacted or substantively enacted future income tax rates. Changes in enacted income tax rates are not
within the control of management. However, any such changes in income tax rates may result in actual income tax amounts that may differ
significantly from estimates recorded in deferred tax balances.

Judgment is also required in determining whether deferred income tax assets should be recognized on the consolidated balance sheets.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that the Company believes it is probable that the assets can be recovered when
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. The Company assesses deferred income
tax liabilities on its investments in TAH and TLR based on a reduction of its investment as opposed to a sale of underlying assets held by
the investment.

Fair value and impairment of financial instruments
Certain financial instruments are recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets at values that are representative of or approximate
fair value.

The fair values of the Company’s investments in Tricon American Homes, Tricon Lifestyle Rentals and Tricon Housing Partners are determined
using the valuation methodologies described in Note 5. By their nature, these valuation techniques require the use of assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the underlying assumptions could materially
impact the determination of the fair value of a financial instrument. Imprecision in determining fair value using valuation techniques may affect
the investment income recognized in a particular period.

Fair value of incentive plans

Management is required to make certain assumptions and to estimate future financial performance to estimate the fair value of incentive plans
at each consolidated balance sheet date. Significant estimates and assumptions relating to such incentive plans are disclosed in Notes 2 and
16. The LTIP requires management to estimate future non-IFRS earnings measures, namely future performance fees relative to each fund or
separate account. Future non-IFRS measures are estimated based on current projections, and are updated at least annually, taking into
account actual performance since inception.

Determination of investment entity

In accordance with IFRS 10, an investment entity is an entity that obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing

them with investment management services, commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income (including rental income), or both, and measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis. In addition, IFRS 10 clarifies that an investment entity may earn fee income from the provision of investment-
related services to external parties. After considering all relevant facts and circumstances to determine whether or not the Company should
still be considered as an investment entity, management believes that there has not been any event triggering a change to the status

during the year.
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4. INVESTMENTS

Investments — Tricon American Homes (“TAH”) are investments in U.S. single-family rental homes. The investments are managed through an
integrated business platform managed by the operating entity, which is responsible for the acquisition, renovation and leasing of the homes.

On June 27, 2018, the Company entered into a joint venture arrangement (“TAH JV-1”) with two leading institutional investors to assemble
a portfolio of single-family rental homes which will be acquired and managed by TAH. Under the terms of the joint venture, Tricon and the
two investors have each committed to invest approximately $250,000 for a one-third interest in TAH JV-1 and the capital is expected to be
deployed over a three-year investment period, followed by a five-year holding period.

Investments — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals (“TLR”) are investments in Canadian and U.S. Class A purpose-built rental apartments.

Investments — Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”) are for-sale housing investments or co-investments in funds, separate accounts and
side-car investments managed by the Company.

Investments held for sale — Tricon Lifestyle Communities (“TLC”) were investments in U.S. manufactured housing communities that leased
land to owners of prefabricated homes. Investments in TLC were classified as held for sale in early 2018 and disposed of on June 29, 2018.

The Company makes these investments via equity investments and loan advances. Advances made to investments are added to the carrying
value when paid; distributions from investments are deducted from the carrying value when received. The following is a summary of the
composition of the Company’s investments:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Internal debt Total Internal debt Total
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) instruments Equity investment instruments Equity investment
Investments — TAH

TAH wholly-owned $ - $ 1,099,086 $ 1,099,086 $ - $ 884,115 $ 884,115

TAH JV-1 - 46,135 46,135 - - -

- 1,145,221 1,145,221 - 884,115 884,115

Investments — TLR - 129,838 129,838 - 89,225 89,225
Investments — THP -

U.S. commingled funds - 112,332 112,332 - 119,714 119,714

Canadian commingled funds - 6,599 6,599 - 9,651 9,651

Separate accounts and side-cars 18,874 169,759 188,633 21,903 155,369 177,272

18,874 288,690 307,564 21,903 284,734 306,637

Investments held for sale — TLC - - - - 62,074 62,074

Total $ 18,874 $ 1,563,749 $ 1,582,623 $ 21,903 $ 1,320,148 $ 1,342,051

The underlying loan instruments within the Company’s THP investments, if utilized, are denominated in U.S. dollars and bear interest at rates
between 9.95% and 11.95%, compounded monthly.

Each investment vertical may utilize debt in order to finance normal business operations, with the debt secured by the underlying assets of
the related investment. The Company has provided specific guarantees to the lenders of the TAH warehouse facilities and the TLR land and
construction loans, on a non-recourse basis subject only to specific carved-out events in the case of the TAH guarantees.

In 2016, the Company entered into a financial guarantee contract in the amount of $25,500 (C$34,800) with a Canadian chartered bank

for the provision of a financial guarantee in respect of a construction loan held by 592 Sherbourne GP Inc. On October 23, 2018, the maturity
of the construction loan was extended from January 7, 2019 to January 7, 2020 with a one-year extension option remaining. This guarantee
contract is initially measured at fair value and subsequently recorded as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the
guarantor will be required to make payments under the guarantee provision.
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The following tables summarize the balances in the investment funds that are managed by Tricon, presented in the functional currency
of the fund:

(in thousands of dollars)

Tricon Unfunded Project Cash Total Investment at
THP Investments Currency commitment Advances' commitment fees distributions distributions fair value?
As at December 31, 20183
THP1US*® Usb  $ 226,775 $ 271,222 $ 9429 % - $ 280574 $ 280574 $ 86,067
THP2 US usb 25,000 22,012 2,988 - 28 28 26,265
THP US SP1LP usb 6,330 5,369 961 899 1,592 2,491 6,232
THP US SP2 LP usb 5,760 5,233 527 562 205 767 6,542
Cross Creek Ranch usb 12,960 12,484 476 6,522 18,345 24,867 8,298
Fulshear Farms usbD 5,000 3329 1,671 650 - 650 3,607
Grand Central Park usb 9,785 8,526 1,259 4,251 1,598 5,849 8,471
Trilogy at Verde River usb 12,600 10,312 2,288 4,422 1,323 5,745 7,254
Viridian usb 25,400 26,860 1,047 4,448 10,150 14,598 26,811
Trinity Falls usb 91,750 85,449 6,301 1,775 - 1,775 111,342
Side-cars usb 23,613 20,878 2,735 7,151 1,848 8,999 10,076
Total USD investments $ 444973 $ 471,674 $ 29,682 $ 30,680 $ 315,663 $ 346,343 $ 300,965
THP3 Canada CAD 20,000 12,462 7,538 - 8,977 8,977 6,599
Total CAD investments $ 20,000 $ 12462 $ 7538 $ - $ 8977 $ 8977 $ 6,599
Investments — THP $ 307,564
As at December 31, 20173
THP1 US*® usb $ 226,775 $ 269,676 $ 10975 % - $ 275,474 $ 275,474 $ 92,731
THP2 US usb 25,000 21,125 3,875 - 28 28 26,983
THP US SP1LP usb 6,330 5,331 999 554 1,592 2,146 5,051
THP US SP2 LP usb 5,760 5,210 550 21 15 326 5,688
Cross Creek Ranch usb 12,960 12,484 476 6,218 14,597 20,815 8,887
Fulshear Farms usb 5,000 3,255 1,745 650 - 650 3,246
Grand Central Park usbD 9,785 8,526 1,259 3,486 1,598 5,084 9,128
Trilogy at Verde River usb 12,600 10,312 2,288 3,461 - 3,461 9,739
Viridian usb 25,400 26,860 1,047 3,079 5,775 8,854 27,396
Trinity Falls usb 91,750 81,549 10,201 949 - 949 95,301
Side-cars usb 23,613 18,479 5,134 5515 429 5,944 12,836
Total USD investments $ 444,973 $ 462,807 $ 38,549 $ 24,123 $ 299,608 $ 323,731 $ 296,986
THP3 Canada CAD 20,000 12,299 7,701 - 3,580 3,580 9,651
Total CAD investments $ 20,000 $ 12,299 $ 7,701 $ - $ 3,580 $ 3,580 $ 9,651
Investments — THP $ 306,637

(1) In certain cases, distributions received during the investment period can be recalled and re-advanced, leading to a higher advance amount than total commitment.
(2) Investments at fair value as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are shown in thousands of U.S. dollars.

(3) Commitment, unfunded commitment, advances and distributions are shown in fund or separate account originating currency.

(4) $226,775 represents the Company’s total fund commitment; the purchase price of the 68.4% interest was $260,500.

(5) The cumulative actual cash distributions received from THP1 US were reduced by $9,529 of withholding tax.
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The controlled subsidiaries which are not consolidated by the Company include:

Principal place Country of Ownership Voting
Name Type of business incorporation interest % rights %'
Tricon SF Home Rental ULC Holding Company USA Canada 100% 100%
Tricon American Homes LLC Holding Company USA USA 100% 100%
SFR JV-1 Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 51% 51%
SFR JV-1LP Limited Partnership USA USA 33% 33%
Tricon Housing Partners US LP Limited Partnership USA USA 68% 68%
Tricon Housing Partners US Il B LP Limited Partnership USA USA 16% 16%
Tricon Housing Partners Canada Ill Co-Investment Ltd.  Holding Company Canada Canada 100% 100%
Tricon Housing Partners Canada Ill LP Limited Partnership Canada Canada 10% 10%
Tricon Housing Partners US Syndicated Pool | LP Limited Partnership USA USA 20% 50%
Tricon Housing Partners US Syndicated Pool Il LP Limited Partnership USA USA 20% 50%
Tricon USA Lender Inc. Holding Company USA Canada 100% 100%
Tricon Lender Il Inc. Holding Company USA Canada 100% 100%
CCR Texas Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 10% 50%
CCR Texas Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 9% 50%
Vistancia West Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 7% 50%
Vistancia West Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 6% 50%
FF Texas Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 10% 50%
FF Texas Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 10% 50%
Conroe CS Texas Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 10% 50%
Conroe CS Texas Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 10% 50%
Tegavah Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 10% 50%
Tegavah Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 9% 50%
Lake Norman Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 7% 50%
Lake Norman Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 7% 50%
Arantine Hills Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 7% 50%
Arantine Hills Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 7% 50%
Viridian Equity LP Limited Partnership USA USA 18% 50%
Viridian Holdings LP Limited Partnership USA USA 17% 50%
Tricon Manufactured Housing Communities ULC Holding Company USA Canada 100% 100%
TAH REIT LLC Holding Company USA USA 100% 100%
Tricon/COB MHC LP Limited Partnership USA USA 98% 67%
Tricon Luxury Residences Co-Investment Inc. Holding Company Canada Canada 100% 100%
592 Sherbourne LP Limited Partnership Canada Canada 15% 50%
57 Spadina LP Limited Partnership Canada Canada 30% 50%
6-8 Gloucester LP Limited Partnership Canada Canada 47% 50%
Tricon SLR US Multifamily LLC Holding Company USA USA 100% 100%
Tricon SLR US Multifamily | LP Limited Partnership USA USA 100% 50%
SLR-TCN McKenzie Project, LP Limited Partnership USA USA 90% 50%
SLR-TCN Canals at Grand Park Il Project, LP Limited Partnership USA USA 90% 50%

(1) Inrespect of major decisions only.
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5. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

In the fair value hierarchy, the level in which the fair value measurement is categorized is determined on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. For this purpose, the significance of the input is assessed against the fair value measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset

or liability.

The following describes the categories within the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The following table provides information about financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on the balance sheet and categorized
by level according to the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments — TAH
TAH wholly-owned $ - $ - $ 1,099,086 $ - $ - $ 884,115
TAH JV-1 - - 46,135 - - -
- - 1,145,221 - - 884,115
Investments — TLR - - 129,838 - - 89,225
Investments — THP
U.S. commingled funds - - 112,332 - - 119,714
Canadian commingled funds - - 6,599 - - 9,651
Separate accounts and side-cars - — 188,633 — - 177,272
- - 307,564 - - 306,637
Investments held for sale — TLC - - - - - 62,074
$ - $ - $1,582623 $ - $ - $1,342,051
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
(Note 8) $ - $ 3,936 $ = $ - $ 37,494 $ -

There have been no transfers between levels for the years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

Financial assets valuation methodologies

The Company’s Valuation Committee is responsible for fair value measurements included in the financial statements, including Level 3
measurements. The valuation processes and results are reviewed and approved by the Valuation Committee at least once every quarter,

in line with the Company’s quarterly reporting dates. The Valuation Committee consists of individuals who are knowledgeable and have
experience in the fair value techniques for the investments held by the Company. The Valuation Committee decides on the appropriate
valuation methodologies for new investments and contemplates changes in the valuation methodology for existing investments. Additionally,
the Valuation Committee analyzes the movements in each investment’s value, which involves assessing the validity of the inputs applied in
the valuation. Valuation results are discussed with the Audit Committee as part of its quarterly review of the Company’s financial statements.

The Company used the following techniques to determine the fair value measurements included in the financial statements categorized
in Level 3:

Investments — Tricon American Homes

All of the Company’s investments in TAH subsidiary entities are held through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Tricon SF Home Rental ULC, which
also invests in a joint venture partnership (“TAH JV-17) as a limited partner. The fair value of the Company’s investment in Tricon SF Home
Rental ULC is calculated based on the underlying net assets’ fair value. The fair value of net assets of the various entities, including the
investment in TAH JV-1, is based on a sum-of-the-parts approach, where assets and liabilities are measured at fair value individually.

Home values typically do not change materially in the short term, and capital expenditures generally do not significantly impact values in the
first three to six months after purchase. As a result, homes acquired in the last two quarters are recorded at their purchase price plus the cost

Tricon Capital Group 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended December 31, 2018
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)

of capital expenditures, if applicable. Homes acquired prior to October 1, 2018 were valued at November 30, 2018. Management has assessed
the impact of any market changes that have occurred subsequent to the date of valuation and has determined that values were valid at
December 31, 2018.

As of December 31, 2018, TAH managed 17,442 homes, of which 15,439 were wholly-owned rental properties. During the year ended
December 31, 2018, the Broker Price Opinion (“BPO”) valuation methodology was used to determine the fair value of 3,585 of TAH’s managed
rental properties. The remainder of the managed rental properties, including those previously valued by BPO, had their values updated using
the Home Price Index (“HPI”) methodology. The HPI is calculated based on a repeat-sales model using large real estate information databases
compiled from public records. Twelve-month trailing HPI was used where the quarterly HPI change was determined by averaging the index
movement over the past twelve months. The quarterly HPI change is then applied to the previously recorded fair value of the investment
properties. The data used to fair value the rental properties is specific to the zip code in which the property is located. The HPI increase during
the year was 6.1% compared to a 5.1% increase in 2017.

In addition to the investment properties generating rental income, a small percentage of the investment properties are held for sale (“for sale
homes”). These for sale homes were originally purchased as rental properties but subsequently selected for sale through the investee’s active
asset management process. All for sale homes are valued at fair value less costs to sell.

The fair value of external debt is based on a discounted cash flow model at a market rate of interest that TAH would have obtained for similar
financing. It was determined that the carrying value of variable term loans approximates fair value, considering their variable interest terms.
The fair values of the fixed term loans were estimated by modelling the contractual cash flows required under the loans and discounting them
back to their present values using market interest rate data and bid prices at the end of the period.

Deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates for future years. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized at TAH. Working capital
approximates fair value.

Debt
A summary of TAH’s debt outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Debt balance*®

Effective
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) interest rates Maturity dates December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Silver Bay acquisition warehouse facility' LIBOR+3.26% November 2018 $ - $ 155,828
Warehouse credit facility’ LIBOR+2.65% November 2019 100,546 184,167
TAH JV-1 warehouse credit facility? LIBOR+2.50% October 2020 95,832 -
Securitization loan, TAH 2016-1 3.59% November 2021 361,440 362,601
Securitization loan, TAH 2017-1 3.50% September 2022 462,594 462,594
Term loan LIBOR+2.00% October 2022 347,582 347,582
Securitization loan, TAH 2017-2 3.58% January 2024 364,574 365,000
Securitization loan, TAH 2018-13 3.86% May 2025 313,865 —
Total debt at operating entities $ 2,046,433 $ 1,877,772
TAH JV-1 subscription loan? LIBOR+1.75% August 2021 119,500 -
Total debt at TAH JV-1 partner-level entities $ 119,500 $ -

(1)  On November 20, 2018, TAH amended and restated its warehouse credit facility to revise the size of the facility to $150,000 and concurrently fully repaid the
outstanding balance of the Silver Bay acquisition warehouse facility of $22,602. The amended and restated credit facility has two one-year extension options.

(2) On October 25, 2018, TAH JV-1 entered into a new warehouse credit facility agreement. The facility has a commitment value of $300,000 and a one-year extension
option. Tricon’s proportionate share of the TAH JV-1 warehouse credit facility balance at December 31, 2018 is $32,263 (2017 — nil).

(3) TAH closed the TAH 2018-1 securitization loan on April 18, 2018. The transaction involved the issuance and sale of six classes of fixed-rate pass-through certificates
with a weighted average coupon of 3.86% and a term to maturity of seven years. The gross transaction proceeds represent approximately 61% of the value of the
securitized portfolio and approximately 81% of its all-in cost. The certificates have a face amount of $313,865 and approximately $280,000 of the proceeds was
used to repay the existing TAH warehouse facilities.

(4) Tricon’s proportionate share of the TAH JV-1 subscription loan balance at December 31, 2018 is $40,232 (2017 — nil).

(5) The fair value of debt at TAH approximates cost.

Sensitivity

As of December 31, 2018, TAH, and the Company where applicable as its sponsor, were in compliance with the financial covenants and
other undertakings outlined in the loan agreements. The one-month LIBOR during the year ended December 31, 2018 ranged from 1.56% to
2.35%. If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower, with all other variables held constant, investment income in TAH for the year ended
December 31, 2018 would have been $2,949 (2017 — $3,889) higher. If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher, with all other variables
held constant, investment income in TAH for the year ended December 31, 2018 would have been $2,805 (2017 — $3,889) lower.
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If the prices of single-family rental properties managed by TAH were to increase or decrease by 1% (December 31, 2017 — 1%), the impact on
investments in TAH fair value at December 31, 2018 would be $30,987 and ($30,987), respectively (December 31, 2017 — $26,613 and ($26,613)).

The weighted average of the quarterly HPI change was 1.4%. If the change in the quarterly HPI increased or decreased by 0.5%, the impact on
investments in TAH fair value at December 31, 2018 would be $13,542 and ($13,542), respectively (December 31, 2017 — $8,206 and ($8,206)).

Investments — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals

The Company’s investment in TLR Canada is held through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Tricon Luxury Residences Co-Investment Inc. Its invest-
ment in TLR U.S. is held through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Tricon SLR US Multifamily LLC. Both subsidiaries carry their investments at fair
value. The fair values of the investments in TLR are estimated based on the subsidiaries’ proportionate share of the net assets of TLR limited
partnerships. The fair value of the net assets is based on a sum-of-the-parts approach, where assets and liabilities are measured at fair

value individually.

Property values typically do not change materially in the short term, and development expenditures generally do not significantly impact
values in the first twelve months after purchase. As a result, properties acquired in the year are recorded at their purchase price plus the cost
of development expenditures. Properties acquired prior to January 1, 2018 were valued at December 31, 2018.

Quantitative information about fair value measurements of the investments uses the following significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Weighted Weighted
Valuation Significant Range average Range average
Description technique(s) unobservable input of inputs of inputs of inputs of inputs Other inputs and key information
TLR Canada Waterfall a) Discount rate' 6.0% 6.0% 9.0% — 9.3% Construction risk and leasing risk
distribution b) Future cash flow? | 1—-2years | 1.5years 10.0% 1.7 years | are taken into account in determining
model c) Appraised value® 1-3years the discount rate.
Net asset value, Price per square foot, timing of project
determined funding requirements and distributions,
using income stabilized net operating income.
approach
TLRU.S. Net asset value, | a) Discount rate’ 12.0% — 12.5% 14.0% - 14.25% Entitlement risk, leasing risk and
determined b) Future cash flow? | 13.0% 1.7 years 14.5% 2.2 years | construction risk are taken into account
using discounted 1-2years 2 - 3years in determining the discount rate.
cash flow
Discounted at expected return
for the project, subsequently adjusted
downward as development risk is
mitigated over project life.

(1) Generally, an increase in future cash flow will result in an increase in the fair value of the investments. An increase in the discount rate will result in a decrease in
the fair value of the investments. The same percentage change in the discount rate will result in a greater change in fair value than the same absolute percentage
change in future cash flow.

(2) Estimating future cash flows involves modelling developers’ or projects’ cash flows to determine the quantum and timing of project funding requirements and cash
distributions. Estimates of cash flows are based on annual budgets and include estimates of construction and development costs, anticipated selling/leasing prices
and absorption rates for each project.

(3) On an annual basis, the Company obtains external valuations dated December 31 for certain TLR Canada investments. As at December 31, 2018, the external
valuations for Tricon’s interest in two TLR Canada investments totaled $55,957. The Company’s investment team and finance team verify all major inputs to the
valuation and review the results with the independent appraiser. The significant inputs within the appraised value are stabilized revenues and expenses, discount
rates and the value of land per square foot.

Sensitivity
For those investments valued using discounted cash flows, an increase of 1% in the discount rate results in a decrease in fair value of $830,
and a decrease of 1% in the discount rate results in an increase in fair value of $849 (December 31, 2017 — ($1,385) and $1,424, respectively).

For those investments valued using appraised values, an increase of 5% in the appraised land value per square foot would result in an
increase in fair value of $860, and a decrease of 5% in the appraised land value per square foot would result in a decrease in fair value
of $860 (December 31, 2017 — $491 and ($491), respectively).
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Investments — Tricon Housing Partners

Tricon establishes wholly-owned subsidiaries that invest in limited partnerships of commingled funds, separate accounts and side-cars.

The investments are measured at fair value as determined by the Company’s proportionate share of the fair value of each limited partnership’s
net assets at each measurement date.

For investments in commingled funds the fair value of each limited partnership’s net assets is determined by the waterfall distribution
calculations specified in the relevant limited partnership agreement. The inputs into the waterfall distribution calculations include the fair value
of the land development project and working capital held by the limited partnerships. The fair values of the land development projects are
based on appraisals prepared by an external third-party valuator or on internal valuations.

A side-car is a co-investment vehicle under common sponsorship with a Tricon fund. Tricon’s ownership interests in the side-cars are held
through the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries. A side-car generally participates in larger investment opportunities provided by the fund
sponsor or general partner.

Quantitative information about fair value measurements of the investments uses the following significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Weighted Weighted
Valuation Significant Range average Range average
Description technique(s) unobservable input of inputs of inputs of inputs of inputs Other inputs and key information
Debt investments | Netassetvalue, | a)Discount rate' 10.0% — 11.3% 10.0% — 11.4% Estimated probability of default
determined b) Future cash flow? | 12.0% 5.1 years 12.0% 4.9 years
using discounted 2 — 6 years 3-6years
cash flow
Equity investments | Net assetvalue, | a) Discount rate' Entitlement risk, sales risk and
Commingled funds determined b) Future cash flow? construction risk are taken into account
using discounted in determining the discount rate.
THP1US cash flow 12.5% - 14.2% 12.5% — 14.7%
20.0% 3.2 years 20.0% 2.8 years U.S. funds: Lower of 20% and the
1-6years 1—4years expected return for the project,
subsequently adjusted downward as
THP2 US 12.5% - 15.0% 12.5% - 15% development risk is mitigated over
20.0% 1.7 years 20.0% 1.3 years project life.
1-10years 1-10years
Canadian funds: Discounted at
THP3 Canada 8.0% - 10.1% 8.0% - 10.9% contractual interest rate; may include
18.0% 1.2 years 18.0% 2.4 years contingent interest cash flows (received
1-8years 2-8years when developers’ project returns
exceed the underlying contractual
interest), which is discounted using
the same method as U.S. funds.
Separate accounts | Waterfall a) Discount rate’ 15.0% — N/A® 15.0% - N/A3 Entitlement risk, sales risk and
and side-cars distribution b) Future cash flow? | 24.0% 13.6 years | 24.0% 14.0 years | construction risk are taken into account
model c) Appraised value® | 1-17 years 1- 18 years in determining the discount rate.
Price per acre of land, timing of project
funding requirements and distributions.

(1) Generally, an increase in future cash flow will result in an increase in the fair value of debt instruments and fund equity investments. An increase in the discount rate
will result in a decrease in the fair value of debt instruments and fund equity investments. The same percentage change in the discount rate will result in a greater

change in fair value than the same absolute percentage change in future cash flow.

(2) Estimating future cash flows involves modelling developers’ cash flows to determine the quantum and timing of project funding requirements and cash distributions
to the investment vehicle. Estimates of developers’ cash flows are based on detailed quarterly and annual budgets and include estimates of construction and

development costs, anticipated selling prices and absorption rates for each project.

(3) On an annual basis, the Company obtains external valuations for its separate account equity and side-car investments excluding THP US SP1LP and THP US SP2 LP.
As at December 31, 2018, the external valuations for Tricon’s interest in eight separate account equity and side-car investments totaled $45,645. The Company’s
investment team and finance team verify all major inputs to the valuation and review the results with the independent appraiser. The significant input within the
appraised value is the value of land per acre.
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Sensitivity
The effects on the fair value of Investments — Tricon Housing Partners of a 1% change in the discount rates are as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
(in thousands of dollars) Currency 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
U.S. commingled funds usb $ (858) $ 813 $ (1,067) $ 1,094
Canadian commingled funds CAD (73) 75 (165) 169
Separate accounts and side-cars usD (2,925) 2,991 (3,002) 3,186

Investments held for sale — Tricon Lifestyle Communities

The Company’s investment in Tricon Lifestyle Communities was held through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Tricon Manufactured Housing
Communities ULC, which carried the investment at fair value. The fair value of the Company’s investment was estimated based on the
Company’s proportionate share of the net assets of the TLC limited partnership. The fair value of the net assets was based on a sum-of-
the-parts approach, where assets and liabilities were measured at fair value individually.

On June 29, 2018, TLC completed the previously-announced sale of its 14 manufactured housing communities to an institutional asset
manager for gross proceeds of $172,500. The net proceeds to Tricon were $85,186, which included $83,548 in proceeds from the disposal
and $1,638 in reimbursement of expenses. Tricon has received distributions of $80,944 to date; the remaining proceeds of $4,242 are
included in amounts receivable as at December 31, 2018.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018
Sales proceeds from disposition of investment properties $ 172,500
Settlement of mortgage balances (77,621)
Transaction costs on disposition (4,882)
Other net liabilities (102)
Distributions to non-controlling interest (6,347)
Proceeds from disposition of investments held for sale to Tricon 83,548
Reimbursable expenses 1,638
Total proceeds to Tricon $ 85,186

At the time of sale, the carrying value of investment properties on TLC’s balance sheet was $146,267, resulting in a gain from disposal of
investment properties of $26,233. In the year ended December 31, 2018, Tricon recognized investment income from discontinued operations
of $21,170 after deducting transaction costs and proceeds to TLC’s operating partner.

Investments held for sale — TLC

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Opening balance $ 62,074 $ 52,591
Advances made to investments 304 2,102
Proceeds from disposal of investments held for sale (83,548) -
Investment income 21,170 7,381
Ending balance $ - $ 62,074

Tricon Capital Group 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended December 31, 2018

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)

Continuity of investments

The following presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

TAH

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Opening balance $ 884,115 $ 479,938
Advances made to investments 170,174 354,110
Distributions received from investments (128,000) (63,000)
Investment income 218,932 113,067
Ending balance $ 1,145,221 $ 884,115
Unrealized fair value gain included in net income on investments still held 218,932 113,067
TLR

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Opening balance $ 89,225 $ 62,410
Advances made to investments 25,974 14,424
Distributions received from investments (767) -
Investment income 15,406 12,391
Ending balance $ 129,838 $ 89,225
Unrealized fair value gain included in net income on investments still held 15,406 12,391
THP

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Opening balance $ 306,637 $ 301,787
Advances made to investments 8,938 21,496
Distributions received from investments (19,460) (34,855)
Investment income 11,449 18,209
Ending balance $ 307,564 $ 306,637
Unrealized fair value gain included in net income on investments still held 11,449 18,209

Financial liabilities valuation methodologies

Derivative financial instruments relate to the conversion and redemption features of the convertible debentures and are valued using model
calibration, as discussed in Note 8. Inputs to the valuation model are determined from observable market data wherever possible, including
prices available from exchanges and consensus pricing. Certain inputs may not be observable in the market directly, but can be determined
from observable prices via model calibration procedures or estimated from historical data or other sources.

Quantitative information about fair value measurements (Level 2) using significant observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1

is as follows:

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

2020 convertible

2022 convertible

2020 convertible

2022 convertible

debentures® debentures debentures® debentures
Risk-free rate’ - 2.60% 2.09% 2.23%
Stock price? - C$9.69 C$11.55 C$11.55
Implied volatility® - 22.35% 25.01% 24.73%
Dividend yield* - 2.89% 2.30% 2.30%

(1) Risk-free rates were from the Canadian and U.S. dollar swap curves matching the terms to maturity of the debentures.

(2) Closing price of the stock as of the valuation date.

The 2020 debentures were redeemed in full as at October 9, 2018.

) Implied volatility was computed from the trading volatility of the Company’s stock over a comparable term to maturity.
(4) Dividend yields were from the forecast dividend yields matching the terms to maturity of the debentures.
)

Cash, amounts receivable, amounts payable and accrued liabilities (including interest payable), dividends payable, and revolving term credit
facility are measured at cost, since their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value due to their short-term nature.
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6. DEBT

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Revolving term credit facility $ 209,250 $ 161,500
Convertible debentures 157,112 214,147
Mortgage 7,150 7,957
Lease obligation (Note 12) 1,204 -
Total debt $ 374,716 $ 383,604

Revolving term credit facility

The Company has access to a $365,000 revolving term credit facility (the “Facility”). The Facility includes a syndicate of lenders comprised
of Canadian and U.S. banks. The Facility has a maturity date of June 30, 2020. The Company has provided a general security agreement
creating a first priority security interest on the assets of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the minimum balance drawn on the Facility was $161,500, and the maximum amount drawn
was $261,050.

Advances under the Facility are available by way of Prime, USBR and LIBOR loans as well as Banker’s Acceptances. The applicable margin
on advances is determined in reference to the senior funded debt-to-EBITDA ratio and is added to the applicable loan reference rate as
follows: Prime and USBR loans range from 2.25% to 3.00% above the respective reference rate, and LIBOR loans and Banker’s Acceptances
range from 3.25% to 4.00% above the respective reference rate. Standby fees ranging from 81.25 basis points to 1.00% of the unutilized
portion of the total commitment are payable, with reference to the funded debt-to-EBITDA ratio, on a quarterly basis. Total interest expense
incurred under the Facility for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to $12,677 (2017 — $6,580), which includes standby charges

of $1,317 (2017 — $1,730). The weighted average interest rate during the year ended December 31, 2018 was 5.48% (2017 — 4.47%).

The Facility agreement requires the Company to maintain the following covenants: (i) a senior funded debt-to-EBITDA ratio of 4.25:1 for each
fiscal quarter prior to June 30, 2018; 3.75:1 for each fiscal quarter ending between July 1, 2018 and June 30, 2019; and 3.25:1 for each fiscal
quarter ending thereafter; (ii) a minimum interest coverage ratio of 1.25:1 for each fiscal quarter ending prior to December 31, 2018; 1.40:1

for each fiscal quarter ending between January 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019; and 1.50:1 for each fiscal quarter ending thereafter; and

(iii) a consolidated total funded debt-to-capital not to exceed 55%. The Company was in compliance with each of the covenants of the Facility.

Convertible debentures

2022 convertible debentures

On March 17, 2017, the Company completed the offering, on a bought deal basis, of $172,500 aggregate principal amount of 5.75% extendible
convertible unsecured debentures (the “2022 convertible debentures”), including $22,500 aggregate principal amount of 2022 convertible
debentures issued pursuant to the exercise of underwriters’ over-allotment options. The net offering proceeds to the Company were $164,554
after transaction costs of $7,946.

Upon the closing of the acquisition of Silver Bay on May 9, 2017, the 2022 convertible debentures became convertible to common shares
of the Company in accordance with their terms, and their maturity date was extended to March 31, 2022.

The 2022 convertible debentures bear interest at 5.75% per annum, which is payable semi-annually in arrears in March and September,
and are convertible into common shares of the Company at a conversion rate of 95.6023 common shares per $1,000 principal amount of
2022 convertible debentures (equivalent to a conversion price of approximately $10.46 per common share (equivalent to C$14.27 as of
December 31, 2018)).

The Company may settle the conversion right in cash in lieu of common shares unless the holder has explicitly indicated that it does not
wish to receive cash.

The 2022 convertible debentures may not be redeemed by the Company prior to March 31, 2020, except in the event of the satisfaction

of certain conditions after a change of control has occurred. On or after March 31, 2020 and prior to March 31, 2021, the 2022 convertible
debentures may be redeemed by the Company at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, provided
that the Current Market Price (as defined in the trust indenture governing the 2022 convertible debentures) of the Company’s common shares
on the fifth trading day immediately preceding the date on which notice of redemption is given is not less than 125% of the conversion price.
On or after March 31, 2021 and prior to their final maturity date, the 2022 convertible debentures may be redeemed by the Company at a price
equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Company has an option to settle the redemption right, where
applicable, by delivering the number of common shares determined by dividing the principal amount of the convertible debentures by 95%

of the Current Market Price of the Company’s common shares on the fifth trading day immediately preceding the date fixed for redemption

or the maturity date. As of December 31, 2018, there have been no conversions of the 2022 convertible debentures.
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2020 convertible debentures

On August 30, 2018, the Company gave notice to debenture holders of its intention to redeem in full all of the outstanding balance of 5.60%
convertible unsecured subordinated debentures due March 31, 2020 (the “2020 convertible debentures”) effective October 9, 2018, and
elected to satisfy the redemption proceeds by the issuance of common shares of the Company. In total, the Company issued 8,695,539
common shares in connection with the conversion or redemption of C$85,693 aggregate principal amount of 2020 convertible debentures
during 2018. Cash was also paid in lieu of any fractional shares that would otherwise have been issued on conversion or redemption.

The following table summarizes the conversion and redemption activities during the year.

Number of Principal
(in thousands of Canadian dollars) shares issued amount
Conversions by holders from January 1, 2018 to October 8, 2018 8,097,134 $ 79,352
Redemption by the Company on October 9, 2018 598,405 6,341
Total principal amount converted and redeemed into common shares of the Company 8,695,539 $ 85,693

At the time of the conversions, the common shares issued by the Company were recorded at fair value based on their market price rather
than the conversion price. The difference between the fair value of the common shares and the fair value of the convertible debentures settled
was recorded as a reduction of the fair value of the embedded derivative related to the debentures. For the year ended December 31, 2018,
common shares valued at $72,125 (C$93,301) were issued, corresponding to $66,247 (C$85,693) principal amount of 2020 convertible

debentures, and accordingly, the difference of $5,878 (C$7,608) was deducted from the fair value of the embedded derivative.

The host liability components of the outstanding convertible debentures recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,

2018 were calculated as follows:

2020 convertible

2022 convertible

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) debentures debentures Total
December 31, 2018

Principal amount outstanding $ - $ 172,500 $ 172,500
Less: Transaction costs (net of amortization) - (5,454) (5,454)
Liability component on initial recognition - 167,046 167,046
Debentures discount (net of amortization) — (9,934) (9,934)
Convertible debentures $ - $ 157,112 $ 157,112

2020 convertible 2022 convertible

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) debentures debentures Total
December 31, 2017

Principal amount outstanding' $ 68,306 $ 172,500 $ 240,806
Less: Transaction costs (net of amortization) (1,304) (6,901) (8,205)
Liability component on initial recognition 67,002 165,599 232,601

Debentures discount (net of amortization) (6,051) (12,403) (18,454)
Convertible debentures $ 60,951 $ 153,196 $ 214,147

(1) 2020 convertible debentures principal amount outstanding of C$85,693 at December 31
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At the beginning of the year, the 2020 convertible debentures had an unamortized balance of $6,051in debentures discount and $1,304

in debentures issuance costs. During the year, the Company recognized debentures discount amortization of $1,635 and debentures issuance
costs amortization of $371. On August 30, 2018, the date on which the Company gave notice of redemption of the 2020 convertible deben-
tures, the remaining unamortized balance of debentures discount of $4,416 and debentures issuance costs of $933 were recognized on the
Company’s income statement as a $5,349 loss on debt extinguishment. As at December 31, 2018, there was no remaining unamortized
balance of debentures discount and issuance costs for the 2020 convertible debentures.

The fair value of the host liability component of the 2020 convertible debentures was nil as of December 31, 2018 and $68,362 (C$85,764) as
of December 31, 2017. The fair value of the host liability component of the 2022 convertible debentures was $168,994 as of December 31, 2018
and $169,310 as of December 31, 2017. The difference between the amortized cost and implied fair value is a result of the difference between

the effective interest rate and the market interest rate for debt with similar terms.

Mortgage

The Company obtained a mortgage loan to purchase a commercial condominium, which serves as the Company’s new head office in Toronto.
The mortgage carries a fixed interest rate of 4.38% compounded semi-annually and matures on November 22, 2024. Total interest expense
incurred on the mortgage for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $331 (2017 — $36). As at December 31, 2018, the outstanding principal
amount was $7,150 (C$9,755). The Company was in compliance with the covenants and other undertakings outlined in the loan agreement.

The coupon/stated interest rates and effective interest rates are as follows:

Debt balance

Coupon/stated Effective
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) interest rates interest rates Maturity dates December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Fixed rate
2020 convertible debentures 5.60% 6.46% 2018 $ - $ 60,951
2022 convertible debentures 5.75% 6.85% 2022 157,112 153,196
Mortgage 4.38% 4.43% 2024 7,150 7,957
Lease obligation N/A 5.60% 2026 1,204 —
Total fixed-rate debt 5.65% 6.74% $ 165,466 $ 222,104
Variable rate
Revolving term credit facility LIBOR+3.25% 5.48% 2020 209,250 161,500
Total debt $ 374,716 $ 383,604
The scheduled principal repayments and debt maturities are as follows:
Revolving term Convertible Lease

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) credit facility debentures Mortgage obligation Total
2019 $ - $ - $ 174 $ 122 $ 296
2020 209,250 - 182 134 209,566
2021 - - 190 148 338
2022 - 172,500 198 162 172,860
2023 - - 207 178 385
2024 and thereafter - - 6,199 460 6,659

209,250 172,500 7,150 1,204 390,104
Transaction costs (net of amortization) (5,454)
Debentures discount (net of amortization) (9,934)
Total debt $ 374,716
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Interest expense
The table below provides a summary of the components of interest expense.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Credit facility interest $ 12,677 $ 6,580
Debentures interest 14,522 13,156
Debentures discount amortization 4,104 3,949
Interest on lease obligation 52 -
Mortgage interest 331 36
Total interest expense $ 31,686 $ 23,721

7. AMOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Amounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of trade payables and accrued liabilities, AIP liability, income taxes payable and interest

payable, as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Trade payables and accrued liabilities $ 1,898 $ 6,187
AIP liability (Note 16) 1,227 420
Income taxes payable 59 256
Interest payable 3,245 4,410
Total amounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 6,429 $ 11,273

8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The conversion and redemption features of the convertible debentures are combined pursuant to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, and are measured at fair value at each reporting period using model calibration.

The conversion and redemption components were valued using a binomial pricing model and then the valued amount was calibrated to the
traded price of the underlying debentures. The valuation model uses market-based inputs, including the spot price of the underlying equity,
implied volatility of the equity, risk-free rates from the Canadian and U.S. dollar swap curves and dividend yields related to the equity.

The valuation of the conversion and redemption components assumes that the debentures are held to maturity. The value attributed to the

derivative financial instruments is shown below:

2020 convertible

2022 convertible

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) debentures debentures Total
December 31, 2018

Derivative financial instruments — beginning of year $ 13,605 $ 23,889 $ 37,494
Derivative financial instruments converted into common shares of the Company (5,878) - (5,878)
Fair value changes (based on market price) (7,727) (19,953) (27,680)
Derivative financial instruments — end of year $ - $ 3,936 $ 3,936

2020 convertible 2022 convertible

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) debentures debentures Total
December 31, 2017

Derivative financial instruments — beginning of year $ 28 $ - $ 28
Derivative instrument value of debentures issued - 14,188 14,188
Fair value changes (based on market price)' 13,5677 9,701 23,278
Derivative financial instruments — end of year $ 13,605 $ 23,889 $ 37,494

(1) Comparative periods have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018, the fair value of the embedded derivative payable on the 2020 convertible debentures decreased by
$7727, excluding $5,878 in fair value of the embedded derivative reclassified to common shares during the year. The fair value of the embedded
derivative payable on the 2022 convertible debentures decreased by $19,953. The significant change in the value of the conversion option,
which is reflected as income to the Company, was mainly because of the decrease in the Company’s share price on the TSX as well as an
unfavourable exchange rate that was applied to the Company’s share price.

The assumed conversion of both the 2020 and 2022 debentures was dilutive mainly due to the fair value gain recognized on the derivative
financial instruments in the year ended December 31, 2018; as a result, the shares issuable on conversion were included in the weighted average
diluted shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2018. The comparative period in 2017 excluded the impact of the assumed
conversion of the 2020 and 2022 convertible debentures because the fair value impact of the embedded derivatives was anti-dilutive.

9. INCOME TAXES

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Income tax expense — current $ 639 $ 4,889
Income tax expense — deferred 22,118 7,440
Income tax expense from continuing operations $ 22,757 $ 12,329
Income tax (recovery) expense from discontinued operations (1,957) 976
Income tax expense $ 20,800 $ 13,305

The tax on the Company’s income before income taxes differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to income of the consolidated entities as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Income before income taxes from continuing operations $ 215,985 $ 75272
Combined statutory federal and provincial income tax rate 26.50% 26.50%
Expected income tax expense 57,236 19,947
Non-taxable gains on investments (30,086) (15,857)
Non-taxable (gains) losses on derivative financial instruments (7,335) 6,168
Tax rate changes’ = (1,452)
Foreign tax rate differential (350) 628
Other, including permanent differences? 3,292 2,895
Income tax expense from continuing operations $ 22,757 $ 12,329

(1) On December 22, 2017, The United States House of Representatives and the Senate passed the “Tax Cuts and Jobs Act” into law. The overall impact of the new tax
rules is a one-time net tax benefit of $1,452. U.S. tax reform is not expected to have a material impact on Tricon’s consolidated effective tax rate.

(2) Other permanent differences are comprised of non-deductible share compensation and non-deductible debentures discount amortization.

Tricon Capital Group 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended December 31, 2018
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)

The expected realization of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months $ 34,109 $ 23,247
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 2,026 690
Total deferred income tax assets $ 36,135 $ 23,937
Deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities reversing after more than 12 months $ 80,189 $ 47,728
Deferred income tax liabilities reversing within 12 months 1,037 199
Total deferred income tax liabilities $ 81,226 $ 47,927

The movement of the deferred income tax accounts was as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Change in net deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax liabilities — beginning of year $ 23,990 $ 18,084
Charge to the statement of comprehensive income 20,161 8,416
Credit directly to equity - (2,054)
Other 940 (456)
Net deferred income tax liabilities — end of year $ 45,091 $ 23,990

The tax effects of the significant components of temporary differences giving rise to the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities

were as follows:

Long-term

incentive plan Issuance Net operating
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) accrual costs losses Other Total
Deferred income tax assets
At December 31, 2017 $ 4,201 $ 2,825 $ 15917 $ 994 $ 23937
Addition/(reversal) 1,743 (895) 10,462 888 12,198
At December 31, 2018 $ 5,944 $ 1,930 $ 26,379 $ 1,882 $ 36,135

Convertible Deferred

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Investments debentures placement fees Other Total
Deferred income tax liabilities
At December 31, 2017 $ 47,097 $ 490 $ 340 $ $ 47,927
Addition/(reversal) 32,650 (308) 957 33,299
At December 31, 2018 $ 79,747 $ 182 $ 1,297 $ $ 81,226

The Company believes it will have sufficient future income to realize the deferred income tax assets.
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible assets are as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Placement fees $ 5735 $ 1,415
Rights to performance fees 65 127
Customer relationship intangible 4,245 4,759
Contractual development fees 10,688 13,715
Total intangible assets $ 20,733 $ 20,016

Intangible assets represent future management fees, development fees and commissions that Tricon expects to receive over the life of the
investments that the Company manages. They are amortized by investment over the estimated periods that the Company expects to collect
these fees, which range from 2 to 13 years. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $4,282 (2017 — $4,952).

On June 27, 2018, Tricon entered into a joint venture arrangement (“TAH JV-1”) with two leading institutional investors to assemble a portfolio
of single-family rental homes which will be acquired and managed by TAH (see Note 4). A placement fee was incurred by Tricon to establish
TAH JV-1in respect of one investor, from which Tricon expects to receive future asset management fees. The placement fee totaled $5,000
and will be amortized over the estimated life of TAH JV-1, which is eight years.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Amortization Translation
For the year ended December 31, 2018 Opening Additions expense adjustment Ending
Placement fees $ 1,415 $ 5,000 $ (679 $ (1) $ 5735
Rights to performance fees 127 - (62) - 65
Customer relationship intangible 4,759 - (514) - 4,245
Contractual development fees 13,715 - (3,027) - 10,688
Intangible assets $ 20,016 $ 5,000 $ (4,282) $ (1) $ 20,733
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Amortization Translation
For the year ended December 31, 2017 Opening Additions expense adjustment Ending
Placement fees $ 1,805 $ - $  (391) $ 1 $ 1,415
Rights to performance fees 189 - (62) - 127
Customer relationship intangible 5,273 - (514) - 4,759
Contractual development fees 17,700 - (3,985) - 13,715
Intangible assets $ 24,967 $ - $ (4,952) $ 1 $ 20,016

There were no impairments to placement fees and rights to performance fees for the years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
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1. OTHER ASSETS

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Building $ 15,540 $ 13,295
Furniture, computer and office equipment 4,247 2,051
Right-of-use asset (Note 12) 1,140 -
Leasehold improvements 499 213
Goodwill 219 219
Total other assets $ 21,645 $ 15,778
On November 22, 2017, the Company acquired a commercial condominium at 7 St. Thomas Street, Toronto for its own use.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Depreciation Terelkien

For the year ended December 31, 2018 Opening Additions expense adjustment Ending
Building $ 13,295 $ 3,805 $  (308) $ (1,252) $ 15,540
Furniture, computer and office equipment 2,051 2,754 (592) 34 4,247
Right-of-use asset — 1,256 (116) — 1,140
Leasehold improvements 213 528 (242) - 499
Goodwill 219 - - - 219
Other assets $ 15,778 $ 8,343 $ (1,258) $ (1,218) $ 21,645
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Depreciation Translation

For the year ended December 31, 2017 Opening Additions expense adjustment Ending
Building $ - $ 13,295 $ - $ - $ 13,295
Furniture, computer and office equipment 910 1,568 (362) (65) 2,051
Leasehold improvements 247 56 61) (29) 213
Goodwill 219 - - - 219
Other assets $ 1,376 $ 14,919 $ (423) $  (94) $ 15,778

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $1,258 (2017 — $423). In 2017, no depreciation was taken on the building

as it was not available for use.
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12. LEASE OBLIGATION

On April 1, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to lease office space at 260 California Street, San Francisco. The right-of-use asset
and the corresponding lease obligation related to the office lease were initially recognized at $1,256 on April 1, 2018.

As at December 31, 2018, the carrying value of the Company’s lease obligation was $1,204 (2017 — nil) and the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset was $1,140. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company incurred interest expense of $52 (2017 — nil) related to the lease
obligation and depreciation expense of $116 (2017 — nil) on the right-of-use asset.

The present value of the minimum lease payments required for the lease over the next five years and thereafter is as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

2019 $ 186
2020 191
2021 197
2022 203
2023 209
2024 and thereafter 493
Minimum lease payments obligation 1,479
Imputed interest included in minimum lease payments (275)
Lease obligation $ 1,204

13. DIVIDENDS

Dividend amount Dividend reinvestment
(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) GRS per share Total dividend amount plan (“DRIP”)
Date of declaration Record date Payment date outstanding CAD usp' CAD usp' CAD USD?
February 27, 2018 March 31, 2018 April 16, 2018 133,556,334 0.070 0.054 $ 9349 $ 7,246 $ 2597 § 2,061
May 9, 2018 June 30, 2018 July 16, 2018 133,849,419 0.070 0.053 9,369 7,115 3,046 2,319
August 8, 2018 September 30, 2018  October 15, 2018 138,744,258 0.070 0.054 9,712 7,446 3,043 2,332
November 6, 2018 December 31, 2018 January 15, 2019 143,246,968 0.070 0.051 10,027 7,350 1,273 960

$ 38,457 $ 29,157 $ 9959 $ 7,672

February 22, 2017 March 31, 2017 April 17, 2017 113,030,589 0.065 0.049 $ 7347 § 5515 $ 1246 $ 938
May 9, 2017 June 30, 2017 July 14, 2017 133,806,806 0.065 0.050 8,697 6,682 2,764 2,169
August 8, 2017 September 30,2017 October 16, 2017 134,165,809 0.065 0.050 8,721 6,988 2,672 2,139
November 7, 2017 December 31, 2017 January 15, 2018 133,472,861 0.065 0.052 8,676 6,915 3,034 2,426

$ 33,441 $ 26,100 $ 9716 $ 7,672

(1) Dividends are issued and paid in Canadian dollars. For reporting purposes, amounts recorded in equity are translated to U.S. dollars using the daily exchange rate
on the date of record. Dividends payable of $7,350 recorded on the Company’s balance sheet are translated to U.S. dollars using the period-end exchange rate.

(2) Dividends reinvested are translated to U.S. dollars using the daily exchange rate on the date common shares are issued.

The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”) under which eligible shareholders may elect to have their cash dividends
automatically reinvested into additional common shares. These additional shares are issued from treasury (or purchased in the open market)
at a discount, in the case of treasury issuances, of up to 5% (1% to 3% in the current year) of the Average Market Price, as defined under

the DRIP, of the common shares as of the dividend payment date. If common shares are purchased in the open market, they are priced

at the average weighted cost to the Company of the shares purchased.

Brokerage, commissions and service fees are not charged to shareholders for purchases or withdrawals of the Company’s shares under
the DRIP, and all DRIP administrative costs are assumed by the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, 1,147,704 common shares were issued under the DRIP (2017 — 827,617) for a total amount of $9,138

(2017 — $6,608).
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14. SHARE CAPITAL

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares. The common shares of the Company do not have par value.

As of December 31, 2018, there were 143,246,968 common shares issued by the Company (December 31, 2017 — 133,472,861), of which
143,011,130 were outstanding (December 31, 2017 — 133,472,861) and 235,838 shares were reserved to settle restricted share awards in
accordance with the Company’s Restricted Share Plan (Note 16).

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Number of Number of

. Share capital . Share capital
shares issued £ shares issued P

(in thousands of dollars) (repurchased) usbD CAD (repurchased) usb CAD
Beginning balance 133,472,861 $ 713,553 $ 885,310 112,754,769 $ 567,677 $ 685,589
Shares issued under DRIP' 1,147,704 9,138 11,720 827,617 6,608 8,471
Stock options exercised? 70,320 470 593 146,734 722 949
Normal course

issuer bid (NCIB)? (431,931) (2,310) (2,865) (982,900) (5,249) (6,512)
Deferred share units exercised* 292,475 2,268 2,962 396,514 2,627 3,464
Debentures conversion® 8,695,539 72,125 93,301 3,877 28 38

Shares repurchased and
reserved for restricted

share awards® (235,838) (1,723) (2,310) - - -
Bought deal offering’ - - - 20,326,250 141,140 193,311
Ending balance 143,011,130 $ 793,521 $ 988,711 133,472,861 $ 713,553 $ 885,310

(1) In 2018, 1,147,704 common shares were issued under the DRIP at an average price of $7.96 (C$10.21) per share.

(2

(3) On October 4, 2017, the Company announced that the Toronto Stock Exchange approved its notice of intention to make a normal course issuer bid (NCIB) to
repurchase up to 2,700,000 of its common shares during the twelve-month period ending October 5, 2018. In the first quarter of 2018, the Company repurchased
431,931 of its common shares for $3,733 (C$4,621), which reduced share capital and retained earnings by $2,310 and $1,423, respectively. Common shares that
were purchased under the NCIB were cancelled by the Company.

In 2018, 92,500 vested stock options were exercised and settled by issuing 70,320 common shares.

In 2018, 292,475 common shares were issued for deferred share units (DSUs) redeemed at an average price of $7.75 (C$10.13) per share.
On August 30, 2018, the Company announced the redemption of its outstanding 2020 convertible debentures on October 9, 2018. As of December 31, 2018, $66,247
(C$85,693) principal amount of 2020 convertible debentures was converted along with $5,878 in fair value of the corresponding embedded derivative. As a result of
the conversions, the Company issued 8,695,539 common shares at an average price of $8.29 (C$10.73) per share for a total share capital amount of $72,125 (C$93,301).
(6) On December 18, 2018, 235,838 shares were purchased at $7.31 (C$9.79) per share in order to settle restricted share awards granted to employees. The restricted
shares will vest on the 12th anniversary of the grant date.
(7) On March 17, 2017, the Company completed the offering, on a bought deal basis, of 20,326,250 subscription receipts at a price of $7.41(C$9.90) per subscription
receipt for gross proceeds of $150,520 (C$201,230 translated to U.S. dollars using the March 17, 2017 exchange rate). Upon the closing of the acquisition of Silver Bay
Realty Trust Corp. (“Silver Bay”) on May 9, 2017, 20,326,250 common shares were delivered to holders of subscription receipts in satisfaction of their right to receive
one common share per subscription receipt. On the settlement date, the gross proceeds were revalued to $146,837 (C$201,230 translated to U.S. dollars using the
May 9, 2017 exchange rate). Net proceeds from the offering were $141,140 (C$193,311), which is net of $7,751 of equity issuance costs (including $964 of dividend
equivalent payments), offset by $2,054 of deferred tax recoveries.

(4

GRS
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon by the sum of the weighted average
number of shares outstanding and vested deferred share units during the period.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts which are in U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Net income from continuing operations $ 193,228 $ 62,943
Non-controlling interest 404 96
Net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon from continuing operations $ 192,824 $ 62,847
Net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon from discontinued operations 23,127 6,405
Net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon $ 215,951 $ 69,252
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 136,126,835 126,431,932
Adjustments for vested units 1,030,425 720,789
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic earnings per share 137,157,260 127,152,721
Basic earnings per share

Continuing operations $ 1.40 $ 049
Discontinued operations 0.17 0.05
Basic earnings per share $ 1.57 $ 054
Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive shares. The Company has four categories of potentially dilutive shares: stock options, restricted shares (Note 14), deferred
share units (Note 16) and convertible debentures (Note 8). For the stock options, restricted shares and deferred share units, the number of
dilutive shares is based on the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value with the assumed proceeds, if any, from their
exercise (determined using the average market price of the Company’s shares for the year then ended). For the convertible debentures, the
number of dilutive shares is based on the number of common shares into which the elected amount would then be convertible. The number
of shares calculated as described above is comparable to the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the vesting

of the stock compensation arrangement and conversion of debentures.

Stock options, restricted shares and deferred share units

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company’s stock compensation plans resulted in 1,930,279 dilutive shares (2017 — 2,149,934),
given that it would be advantageous to the holders to exercise their conversion rights, as the exercise prices of these potential shares are
below the Company’s average market share price of $8.16 (C$10.57) for the year.
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Convertible debentures

For the year ended December 31, 2018, both of the Company’s convertible debentures were dilutive, as debentures interest expense and
loss on debt extinguishment, net of tax, and the net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments would result in decreased earnings
per share upon conversion. Therefore, in computing the diluted weighted average shares outstanding and the associated earnings per share
amount for the year ended December 31, 2018, the impact of the 2020 and 2022 convertible debentures was included (2017 — excluded).

(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts which are in U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon from continuing operations $ 192,824 $ 62,847
Adjustment for convertible debentures interest expense — net of tax 14,623 -
Adjustment for loss on debt extinguishment — net of tax 5,102 -
Net change in fair value of financial instruments through profit or loss (27,680) -
Adjusted net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon from continuing operations 184,869 62,847
Net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon from discontinued operations 23,127 6,405
Adjusted net income attributable to shareholders of Tricon $ 207,996 $ 69,252
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 137,157,260 127,152,721
Adjustments for stock compensation 1,930,279 2,149,934
Adjustments for convertible debentures 23,025,343 -
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for diluted earnings per share 162,112,882 129,302,655
Diluted earnings per share

Continuing operations $ 1.14 $ 0.49
Discontinued operations 0.14 0.05
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.28 $ 054

16. COMPENSATION EXPENSE

The breakdown of compensation expense, including the annual incentive plan (“AIP”) and long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) related to various
compensation arrangements, is set out below. AIP awards include both short-term (cash and one-year DSUs) and long-term (three-year DSUs,

stock options, restricted shares, and PSUs) incentives.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Salaries and benefits $ 14,838 $ 14,169
Annual incentive plan (“AIP”) 10,391 11,205
Long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) 11,646 3,726
Total compensation expense $ 36,875 $ 29,100
For the years ended December 31 2018 2017

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) AIP LTIP AIP LTIP
Cash component $ 8,307 $ 8,986 $ 8478 $ 1236
Restricted shares and share units 1,924 1,254 2,593 1,799
Stock options 6 1,174 - 1,078
DRIP and revaluation loss (gain)' 154 232 134 (387)
Total AIP and LTIP expenses $ 10,391 $ 11,646 $ 11,205 $ 3,726

(1) DRIP represents additional DSUs granted at a fair value per unit equal to cash dividends paid per common share.
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The changes to transactions of the various cash-settled and equity-settled arrangements during the year are detailed in the sections below.

Cash component

AIP — The Company’s new AIP has been in effect since the beginning of 2018 and provides for an aggregate bonus pool based on the sum of
all employees’ individual AIP targets, which are market-benchmarked. This pool is then subject to an adjustment factor, subject to the Board’s
discretion, of between 50% and 150%, based on achievement of Company performance objectives determined by the Board at the beginning
of each year. The final pool is then allocated among employees based on individual and collective performance. AIP awards will be made

in cash and equity-based grants, with the proportion of equity-based awards being correlated to the seniority of an individual’s role within
the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recognized $10,237 (2017 — $11,071) in relation to the AIP expense, of which approxi-
mately 80% (2017 — 76%), being $8,307, was settled in cash in December 2018.

LTIP — A liability for cash-component LTIP awards is accrued based on expected performance fees that would be generated from the fair value
of the assets within each fund or separate account but disbursed only when such performance fees are earned and recognized as revenue.
Changes in LTIP are primarily caused by changes to fair values of fund or separate account assets, which result from timing and cash flow
changes at the project level of each fund or separate account, and changing business conditions.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company increased its accrual related to cash-component LTIP by $8,986 (2017 — $1,236) as
a result of an increase in expected future performance fees from Investment Vehicles that will be paid to management when cash is received
from each investment over time. The total LTIP cash payments for the year ended December 31, 2018 were $1,392 (2017 — $279).

Restricted shares and share units

AIP — The remainder of the AIP expense was awarded in: () DSUs with a one-year vesting period from the grant date; (ii) DSUs and stock
options which will vest over a three-year period from the grant date; (iii) three-year PSUs which will be settled in cash upon vesting; and
(iv) restricted shares which will vest on the 12th anniversary of the grant date. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recog-
nized $1,930 in AIP expense (2017 — $2,593), which was granted in performance share units (PSUs), deferred share units (DSUs) and stock
options on December 17, 2018 and restricted shares on December 18, 2018 with vesting periods as described above. PSUs are revalued
at each reporting date as the total liability amount is dependent on the Company’s share price.

LTIP — For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company accrued $1,254 in LTIP expense (2017 — $1,799) relating to investment income
from THP1 US that is paid in DSUs vesting equally over a five-year period commencing on the anniversary date of each grant. Compensation
expense related to the grants is recognized on a graded vesting basis and for the year ended December 31, 2018 is comprised of $1,254
relating to the prior year entitlements.

Stock option plan
For the year ended December 31, 2018, 426,959 stock options were granted (2017 — 990,000), and 92,500 stock options were exercised
(2017 — 804,000) (Note 14). For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded a stock option expense of $1,180 (2017 — $1,078).

The following table presents the inputs used to value the stock options:

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.0 1.6
Expected option life (years) 4.6 4.4
Expected volatility (%) 22.11 23.62
Average share price (CAD) during the year 10.57 10.82
Weighted average exercise price (CAD) 9.81 11.35
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The following table summarizes the movement in the stock option plan during the specified periods:

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Number Weighted average Number Weighted average
of options  exercise price (CAD) of options  exercise price (CAD)
Opening balance — outstanding 4,491,001 $ 9.08 4,346,835 $ 853
Granted 426,959 9.81 990,000 11.35
Exercised (92,500 7.50 (804,000) 8.89
Forfeited (1,500) 10.57 (41,834) 9.41
Ending balance — outstanding 4,823,960 $ 9.18 4,491,001 $ 9.08

December 31, 2018

Exercise price
Options Options on outstanding
Grant date Expiration date outstanding exercisable options (CAD)
May 19, 2010 May 19, 2020 521,000 521,000 $ 6.00
August 3, 2010 August 3, 2020 49,000 49,000 5.26
November 22, 2011 November 22, 2020 20,000 20,000 4.16
May 17, 2013 May 17,2020 590,334 590,334 6.81
November 25, 2013 November 25, 2020 148,333 148,333 7.74
March 16, 2015 March 16, 2020 531,666 531,666 10.57
November 17, 2015 November 17, 2020 756,668 756,668 10.03
November 14, 2016 November 14, 2023 790,000 513,332 8.85
December 15, 2017 December 15, 2024 990,000 329,994 11.35
December 17, 2018 December 17, 2025 426,959 — 9.81
Total 4,823,960 3,460,327 $ 9.18

AIP payable is recorded within amounts payable and accrued liabilities, and the equity component is included in the contributed surplus.

The breakdown is presented below.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Amounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7) $ 1,227 $ 420
Equity — contributed surplus 5,319 5,535
Total AIP $ 6,546 $ 5,955

LTIP’s liability and equity components are presented on the balance sheet as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

LTIP — liability $ 21,407 $ 15,224
Equity — contributed surplus 11,031 9,877
Total LTIP $ 32,438 $ 25,101
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(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)

17. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

In accordance with IFRS 8, Operating Segments, the Company discloses information about its reportable segments based upon the measures
used by management in assessing the performance of those reportable segments. The Company evaluates segment performance based

on the revenue and investment income of each investment vertical.

The corporate headquarters provides support functions in the areas of accounting, treasury, information technology, legal, and human
resources, and therefore, it does not represent an operating segment. Such corporate expenses have been included below to provide
a reconciliation to the overall results in accordance with IFRS 8.

The Company does not report balance sheet information by segment because that information is not used to evaluate performance

or allocate resources between segments.

The Company had five reportable segments in 2018, including investments disposed of in the current period, as follows: Private Funds and
Advisory (“PF&A”); and principal investing in Tricon American Homes (“TAH”), Tricon Lifestyle Rentals (“TLR”), Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”)
and Tricon Lifestyle Communities (“TLC”) (disposed of in June 2018). The reportable segments are business units offering different products and
services, and are managed separately due to their distinct investment natures. These five reportable segments have been determined by the

Company’s chief operating decision makers.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the year ended December 31, 2018 PF&A TAH TLR THP TLC Corporate Total
Revenue $ 30347 $ = $ = $ = $ - $ - $ 30347
Investment income - 218,932 15,406 11,449 - - 245,787
30,347 218,932 15,406 11,449 - - 276,134

Compensation and general

and administration expense - - - - - (46,675) (46,675)
Interest expense — — — — — (31,686) (31,686)
Realized and unrealized

foreign exchange gain - - - - - 1,511 1,511
Other income' - - - - - 16,701 16,701
Income tax expense - - - - - (22,757) (22,757)
Net income from continuing operations 30,347 218,932 15,406 11,449 - (82,906) 193,228
Net income from discontinued operations — — — — 23,127 — 23,127
Net income $ 30,347 $ 218,932 $ 15,406 $ 11,449 $ 23,127 $ (82,906) $ 216,355
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)
For the year ended December 31, 2017 PF&A TAH TLR THP TLC Corporate Total
Revenue $ 25399 $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ 25399
Investment income - 113,067 12,391 18,209 - - 143,667

25,399 113,067 12,391 18,209 - - 169,066

Compensation and general

and administration expense - - - - - (36,374) (36,374)
Interest expense — — — — — (23,721) (23,721)
Realized and unrealized

foreign exchange expense — — — — — (1,881) (1,881)
Other expenses' - - - - - (31,818) (31,818)
Income tax expense - - - - - (12,329) (12,329
Net income from continuing operations 25,399 113,067 12,391 18,209 - (106,123) 62,943
Net income from discontinued operations - - - - 6,405 - 6,405
Net income $ 25399 $ 113,067 $ 12,391 $ 18,209 $ 6,405 $ (106,123) $ 69,348

(1) Other income (expenses) include the net change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments, loss on debt extinguishment, transaction costs

and amortization expense.
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18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Company had a ten-year sub-lease commitment on the previous head office premises with Mandukwe Inc., a company owned and
controlled by a current director and shareholder of Tricon. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company paid $219 in rental payments
to Mandukwe Inc., including realty taxes, maintenance, insurance and utility costs (2017 — $283). As at June 30, 2018, the Company terminated
the sub-lease and recognized an early termination liability of $128 (C$169).

Transactions with related parties

The following table summarizes revenue earned from related parties, including revenue earned by consolidated subsidiaries. These are
contractual arrangements with investments managed by the Company, of which the Company is the general partner of the investment.
In addition, the table includes investment income from related entities fair valued by the Company.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Contractual fees $ 26,256 $ 23,486
General partner distributions 1,316 1,388
Performance fees 2,775 525
Total revenue $ 30,347 $ 25,399
Investment income — Tricon American Homes $ 218,932 $ 113,067
Investment income — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals 15,406 12,391
Investment income — Tricon Housing Partners 11,449 18,209
Total investment income from continuing operations $ 245,787 $ 143,667

Investment income from discontinued operations and gain from
disposal of investments held for sale — Tricon Lifestyle Communities $ 21,170 $ 7,381

Balances arising from transactions with related parties
The items set out below are included on various line items comprising the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Receivables from related parties included in amounts receivable

Contractual fees and other receivables from investments managed $ 6,784 $ 6,990
Employee relocation housing loans' 2,483 670
Proceeds from disposal of investments held for sale 4,242 -
Loan receivables from investment in associates and joint ventures 18,874 21,903
Annual incentive plan 6,546 5,955
Long-term incentive plan 32,438 25,101
Dividends payable 329 320
Other payables to related parties included in amounts payable and accrued liabilities 42 2,261

(1) The employee relocation housing loans are non-interest bearing for a term of five to ten years, maturing between 2018 and 2028.

Revenues and receivables from related parties relate to general partnership distributions and contractual and performance fees for services
provided by the Company. The receivables are unsecured and non-interest bearing. There are no provisions recorded against receivables
from related parties at December 31, 2018 (December 31, 2017 — nil).
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Key management compensation

Key management includes the Named Executive Officers (“NEOs”), who are the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the three
other most highly-compensated officers or employees of the Company. Compensation paid and awarded to key management for employee
services is based on employment agreements and is as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Total salaries and benefits $ 2,013 $ 1,789
Total AIP 7,244 5,689
Total LTIP 758 1,533
Total key management compensation $ 10,015 $ 9,011

19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to certain financial risks during or at the end of the reporting period, as described below. The risk
management function within the Company is carried out in respect of financial risks. Financial risks are risks arising from financial instruments
to which the Company is exposed during or at the end of the reporting period. Financial risk comprises market risk (including currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk, concentration risk and liquidity risk. The primary objectives of the financial risk management function are

to establish risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits.

The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investing excess liquidity. Key financial risk management reports are produced frequently
and provided to the key management personnel of the Company.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, and
the Company’s investment risk. Market risk includes the risk of changes in interest rates, foreign currency rates and changes in market prices
due to other factors, such as changes in equity prices or credit spreads. The sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a
change in one factor while holding all other factors constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the factors may

be correlated — for example, changes in interest rates and changes in foreign currency rates.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company invests in debt instruments, the fair values of which vary depending on market interest rates. The potential impact of
changes in interest rates on our investment income from debt instruments is disclosed in Note 5.

Interest rate risk arises primarily from the Company’s financing arrangements (Note 6). Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company
to cash flow interest rate risk. To limit its exposure to interest rate risk, the Company has a balanced portfolio of fixed rate and variable rate
debt, of which the revolving term credit facility is the only debt instrument subject to a variable interest rate. At December 31, 2018, if interest
rates at that date had been 50 basis points higher or lower with all other variables held constant, interest expense for the year would have
increased (decreased) by:

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease
Interest expense $ 106 $ (106) $ 55 $ (55)
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Foreign currency risk

The Company has exposure to monetary and non-monetary foreign currency risk due to the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
related to consolidated Canadian subsidiaries, investments in Tricon Lifestyle Rentals and Tricon Housing Partners, and cash and debt in
Canadian dollars held at the corporate level. A 1% increase or decrease in the Canadian dollar exchange rate would result in the following
impacts to assets and liabilities:

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Assets

Investments — Tricon Lifestyle Rentals $ 699 $ (699) $ 356 $ (356)

Investments — Tricon Housing Partners

Canadian funds 66 (66) 97 (97)

$ 765 $ (765) $ 453 $ (453)

Liabilities

Convertible debentures' - - 686 (686)

Mortgage 71 (71) 80 (80)

Derivative financial instruments' - - 137 (137)
$ 71 $ (71) $ 903 $ (903)

(1) The convertible debentures subject to foreign currency risk were redeemed in full on October 9, 2018, and the value of their associated derivative financial
instruments decreased to nil.

The Company manages foreign currency risk by raising equity in Canadian dollars and by matching its principal cash outflows to the currency
in which the principal cash inflows are denominated.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.
Management believes the credit risk on cash is low because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings. The Company has no
significant concentrations of credit risk and its exposure to credit risk arises through loans and receivables which are due primarily from
controlled subsidiaries. The loans and receivables due from subsidiaries are subject to the risk that the underlying real estate assets may
not generate sufficient cash inflows in order to recover them. The Company manages this risk by:

» Ensuring a due diligence process is conducted on each investment prior to funding;

* Approving all loan disbursements by management;

= Approving of total loan facilities by the Investment Committee; and

« Actively monitoring the loan portfolio and initiating recovery procedures when necessary.

The Company assesses all counterparties, including its partners, for credit risk before contracting with them. The Company’s exposure to
credit risk is detailed in the table below. The Company does not include any collateral or other credit risk enhancers, which may reduce the
Company’s exposure.

The Company provides loans to land developers, which are represented as debt investments. The credit quality of these investments is
based on the financial performance of the underlying real estate assets. For those assets that are not past due, it is believed that the capital
repayments and interest payments will be made in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions. No terms or conditions have been
renegotiated.

At December 31, 2018, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from its investment in debt instruments was $18,874 (December 31,
2017 — $21,903). Through the equity portion of its investments, the Company is also indirectly exposed to credit risk arising on loans advanced
by investees to individual real estate development projects.

As at December 31, 2018, the assets held by the Company are not past due or impaired (2017 — none).

For the year ended December 31, 2018, no unrealized gains (losses) (2017 — none) are attributable to changes in credit risk of these debt
instruments.
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Concentration risk

Concentration risk arises as a result of the potential concentration of exposures, by country, geographical location, product type, industry
sector or counterparty type. As at December 31, 2018, the Company’s largest investment, TAH, held 15,439 homes across 16 markets, with

the highest fair value investment within a single market comprising 24% of the total portfolio.

The following is a summary of the Company’s concentration risk, based on the composition of the fair value of its investments — Tricon
American Homes, Tricon Lifestyle Rentals, Tricon Housing Partners and Tricon Lifestyle Communities balances:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

State/Province

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

USA
Texas $ 380,837 $ 310617
California 220,049 218,776
Arizona 180,630 200,196
Georgia 255,903 202,737
Florida 221,782 188,294
North Carolina 111,915 76,894
Nevada 76,082 62,502
Ohio - 180
Indiana 28,849 18,740
South Carolina 30,777 17,983
Canada
Ontario 74,381 38,699
Alberta 303 2,233
British Columbia 2,115 4,200
$ 1,583,623 $ 1,342,051

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will have difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities as they fall due or can
only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous. Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash on hand

and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Company uses long-term borrowings to finance
its investment strategy for Tricon American Homes and Tricon Lifestyle Rentals. Periodic cash flow forecasts are performed to ensure the
Company has sufficient cash to meet operational and financing costs. Liquidity risk arising from the convertible debentures is mitigated by

the Company’s option, under the terms of the debentures, to settle the obligation with shares.

The maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities is as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Due on demand

and within From1to 3 From3to 5 Later than

As at December 31, 2018 the year years years 5 years Total
Liabilities

Amounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 6,429 $ - $ - $ - $ 6429
Dividends payable 7,350 — — — 7,350
Revolving term credit facility - 209,250 - - 209,250
Debentures payable — — 172,500 — 172,500
Mortgage 174 372 405 6,199 7,150
Lease obligation 122 282 340 460 1,204
Derivative financial instruments — — 3,936 — 3,936
Total $ 14,075 $ 209,904 $ 177,181 $ 6,659 $ 407,819
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(in thousands of U.S. dollars) Due on demand

and within From1to 3 From 3to 5 Later than

As at December 31, 2017 the year years years 5 years Total
Liabilities

Amounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 11,273 $ - $ - $ - $ 11,273
Dividends payable 6,906 - - - 6,906
Revolving term credit facility - 161,500 - - 161,500
Debentures payable - 68,306 172,500 - 240,806
Mortgage 181 388 421 6,967 7,957
Derivative financial instruments — 13,605 23,889 — 37,494
Total $ 18,360 $ 243,799 $ 196,810 $ 6,967 $ 465,936

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the change in the Company’s liquidity resulted in a working capital surplus of $12,451
(December 31, 2017 — surplus of $10,581). As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding amount under the credit facility was $209,250
(December 31, 2017 — $161,500) and $155,750 of the credit facility remained available to the Company. During the year ended
December 31, 2018, the Company received distributions of $229,171 (2017 — $97,855) from its investments and investments held for sale.

The future repayments of principal and interest on fixed-rate financial liabilities is as follows:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Within From 1to 3 From 3 to 5 Later than

As at December 31, 2018 the year years years 5 years Total
Principal

2022 convertible debentures $ — $ — $ 172,500 $ — $ 172,500
Mortgage' 174 372 405 6,199 7,150
Lease obligation 122 282 340 460 1,204
Interest

2022 convertible debentures 9,919 19,838 4,959 - 34,716
Mortgage' 307 590 557 221 1,675
Lease obligation 64 106 72 33 275
Total $ 10,586 $ 21,188 $ 178,833 $ 6,913 $ 217,520

(1) Mortgage amounts were translated to U.S. dollars at the period-end exchange rate.

The details of the net current assets are shown below:

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Cash $ 7773 $ 14,813
Amounts receivable 17,934 13,506
Prepaid expenses and deposits 819 622
Current assets 26,526 28,941
Amounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,429 11,273
Dividends payable 7,350 6,906
Mortgage 174 181
Lease obligation 122 -
Net current assets $ 12,451 $ 10,581
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20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are: (i) to safeguard its ability to meet financial obligations and growth objectives, including
future investments; (i) to provide an appropriate return to its shareholders; and (iii) to maintain an optimal capital structure that allows multiple
financing options, should a financing need arise. The Company’s capital consists of debt (including revolving term credit facility and convertible
debentures), cash and shareholders’ equity. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company manages equity as capital and
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants (Note 6).

21. WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the years ended December 31 2018 2017
Amounts receivable $ (4,428) $ 3,386
Prepaid expenses and deposits (197) 1,977
Amounts payable and accruals (4,844) 381

$ (9,469) $ 5,744

22. FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Non-cash changes

As at Foreign As at
December 31, exchange Fair value December 31,
(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2017 Cash flows movement changes Addition Other' 2018
Revolving term credit facility $ 161,500 $ 47,750 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 209,250
2020 convertible debentures? 60,951 - (2,088) - (58,863) -
2022 convertible debentures 153,196 - - - - 3,916 157,112
Derivative financial instruments 37,494 — — (27,680) — (5,878) 3,936
Mortgage 7,957 (176) (631) - - - 7,150
Lease obligation — (104) — 1,256 52 1,204
Total liabilities from
financing activities $ 421,098 $ 47,470 $(2,719) $ (27,680) $ 1,256 $ (60,773) $ 378,652

Non-cash changes

As at Foreign As at

December 31, exchange Fair value December 31,

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) 2016 Cash flows movement changes Addition Other’ 2017

Revolving term credit facility $ 113,750 $ 47,750 $ - 3 - $ - 3 - $ 161,500

2020 convertible debentures 55,107 - 3,165 - 2,679 60,951

2022 convertible debentures - 150,366 - - - 2,830 153,196

Derivative financial instruments 28 14,188 2 23,276 - - 37,494

Mortgage - 7,842 115 - - - 7,957
Total liabilities from

financing activities $ 168,885 $ 220,146 $ 3,282 $ 23,276 $ - $ 5509 $ 421,098

(1) Includes amortization of debentures discount and issuance costs and interest on lease obligation.
(2) For the year ended December 31, 2018, other non-cash changes for the 2020 convertible debentures include $66,247 of principal converted or redeemed for
common shares, net of debentures discount amortization of $1,635, debentures issuance costs amortization of $371, and loss on debt extinguishment of $5,349.
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23. INDEMNIFICATION

Pursuant to Indemnification Agreements with certain General Partners of Limited Partnerships managed by the Company and certain
shareholders of the Company (who are also officers and directors of the Company), the Company has agreed to indemnify the General Partner
and those shareholders and, where applicable, any of their directors, officers, agents and employees (collectively, the Indemnified Parties)

for any past, present or future amounts paid or payable by any of the Indemnified Parties to the Limited Partnership in the form of a capital
contribution or clawback guarantee relating to performance fees for any claim or obligation, as set out in the Limited Partnership Agreements.
There are no amounts payable in respect of this indemnification as of December 31, 2018 (December 31, 2017 — nil).

24. VARIABILITY OF RESULTS

The nature of our business does not allow for consistent year-to-year revenue comparisons.

Revenues earned from an Investment Vehicle are dependent upon where the Investment Vehicle is in its life cycle. At the beginning of

the Investment Vehicle’s life cycle, consistent contractual fees and general partner distributions are earned to the end of the investment
period. Subsequent to the investment period, contractual fees and general partner distributions start to decline as investments are realized.
Performance fees that are earned at the end of the life cycle can vary significantly depending on the Investment Vehicle’s performance,
resulting in volatile revenue streams.

Contractual fees earned from development management and advisory services through Johnson can be variable as they are dependent upon
the occurrence of a future event that is the sale of the developed property. Contractual fees earned through TDG are dependent on the
project timelines and the achievement of development milestones.

Similarly, the performance of the Company’s investments carried at FVTPL may not be consistent from period to period.

25. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 25, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a dividend of seven cents per share in Canadian dollars payable
on or after April 15, 2019 to shareholders of record on March 31, 2019.
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